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Financial Highlights

MBEmE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-BA=+—-BLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEBT BEET 28
Revenue N
OEM Business R EREET 1,784.0 1,855.3 (3.8)
Fashion Retail Business RETEER 479.6 480.1 (0.1)
Property Investment Business MEREES 11.2 — N/A T~ iE A
2,274.8 2,335.4 (2.6)
Operating profit 45 i F 49.0 158.1 (69.0)
Profit attributable to the Company’s RRRIRERE A
equity holders JE 1t V4 A 21.0 149.7 (86.0)
Dividend per share (HK cent) SR E EWL)
— Interim and special — R HE R HF R = 1.97
Dividend payout ratio K B & N/A TEH 28%
Equity attributable to the Company’s RATBREFEA
equity holders JEERE = 2,611.3 2,525.9
Equity per share (HK$) FRER BT 1.24 1.20
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of China
Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the 2018 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”).

In 2018, the global economy is filled with challenges and opportunities.
The uncertainties and pressure from the trade war between China and
U.S., Brexit and the increase of cost in our manufacturing areas has
brought uncertainties to the garment and textile industry. The global
economic growth was below expectation and the financial market saw
continued fluctuations, and the international trade risk remained high
level throughout the year.

Despite of the decrease in the sales of OEM/ODM business of the Group
as a result of the trade tension between China and US, the Group
continued to develop our business in European Union and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Besides, the Group has set up three
manufacturing business divisions with close industry-trade integration,
and completed a comprehensive modification and information-based
operation of the flexible and intelligent manufacturing equipment, which
help to provide customers with better services, better quality and
competitive pricing.

For our brand retail business, the Group has allocated more resources on
product design and marketing to promote the products; and expanded
our retail business on different platforms to develop our e-commerce
business in the PRC. In the future, the Group will put more effort in
procurement control, apply “Big-data” technology and introduce
premium international brands to ensure the Group’s brand retail
business will be developed healthily.

In 2018, the Group also changed part of the industrial complex to the
China Ting International Fashion Base ("Z=E& BIFREFMEXEH") in
order to develop diversified business models and enhance value. At the
same time, the fashion base also facilitates the development of the
fashion industry in Yu Hang District.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders
for their confidence in and support for us, and to express my gratitude
to our management team and staff for their diligent and hard work as
always.

TING MAN YI
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m A DN

(1

Business Review

In 2018, amid the latest development of China-US trade tension
and trade protectionism worldwide, and the effect of various
coastal political factors, the global economic development has
failed to achieved satisfactory performance since the middle of the
year. Moreover, the exchange rates between Renminbi and US
dollar experienced drastic fluctuations, and international trading
risk remained at high levels throughout the year. In the PRC, the
focus was still laid on investments in real estate and other fixed
assets against the backdrop of the stock market slump in China,
resulting in decreased liquidity and unfavourable appetite for
consumption on the domestic consumption market.

In 2018, the US remained the Group’s major market. Due to the
China-US trade tension, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$1,784.0 million from OEM/ODM business, representing a
decrease of 3.8% as compared to HK$1,855.3 million in 2017.
Against this unfavourable situation, the Group completed
comprehensive modifications and information-based operation of
the flexible and intelligent manufacturing equipment for women's
fashion apparel items, thereby creating a digitalized supply chain
system. The Group exerted fashion vigorous efforts in refining the
internal management structure by setting up three manufacturing
business divisions with close industry-trade integration, to provide
customers with better services and expand market presence.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

EEER® LD

(2)

With regards to the retail business, the Group focused its efforts
on further strengthening its design, research and development
capability, improving its management team and brand operating
capability, and expanding the scope of cooperation with quality
sales channel providers in 2018. Besides, the Group also
collaborated with different platforms to develop e-commerce
business
amounted to HK$479.6 million in 2018, which was relatively

business. The revenue generated from the retail
stable as compared with 2017.

With regards to the weaving business and the printing and dyeing
business, it was relocated in 2018 and the equipment has been
upgraded, so as to meet the increasingly stringent requirements
on production with environmental protection. We also improved
our product processing capability through technical improvement
to provide our customers with products of good quality.

Financial Review

Review of operations

>
wv
@

result, the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$21.0
million and the net asset value per share as at 31 December 2018
was HK$1.24.

OEM and ODM business

201710 HK$1,784.0 million [iA"2018: Products made from sk,

cotton and synthetic fabrics continue to be the major products
which contributed HK$1,402.3 million (2017: HK$1,285.9 million),
representing 78.6% (2017: 69.3%) of the total turnover of our
OEM/ODM business for the year ended 31 December 2018.

(2)
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m A DN

In respect of market concentration, sales to the market in the
United States of America (“US”) amounted to HK$820.2 million in
2018 (2017: HK$941.0 million), which accounted for 46.0%
(2017: 50.7%) of the OEM/ODM revenue. Sales to European
Union and other markets in 2018 were HK$196.9 million (2017:
HK$181.2 million) and HK$767.0 million (2017: HK$733.1 million),
respectively.

Fashion retail business

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the retail sales of the
Group amounted to HK$479.6 million, representing a similar level
when compared with the revenue of HK$480.1 million in 2017.
Finity, the major brand of the Group, contributed HK$200.4
million to the retail business, representing a decrease of 10.6% as
compared with HK$224.2 million for the year 2017.

In terms of retail revenue analysis by sales channels, sales from
concessionary counters amounted to HK$232.7 million (2017:
HK$295.1 million), accounting for 48.5% of total retail turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Sales from e-commerce,
freestanding stores and franchisees for the vyear ended 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$119.8 million (2017: HK$67.5
million), HK$35.5 million (2017: HK$27.2 million) and HK$91.7
million (2017: HK$90.3 million), respectively.

Property Investment Business

In 2018, the Group has changed part of the industrial complex to
the China Ting International Fashion Base ("% S B M EEHE
#,”) in order to facilitate the regional development, fashion expert
localisation and e-commerce development for the fashion industry.
All these provide significant contribution to the fashion industry in
Yu Hang District, Hangzhou, while allowing the Group to develop
diversified business models and enhance revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from our
property investment business amounted to HK$11.2 million (2017:
nil).

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis -
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A Nationwide Retail Network
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m A DN

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continues to retain a solid financial position. During
the year, the Group’s working capital needs were principally
supported by the financial resources generated from its ordinary
course of business. As of 31 December 2018, the cash and cash
equivalents were HK$448.5 million, representing a decrease of
4.5% from HK$469.4 million as of 31 December 2017. The Group
had bank borrowings of HK$367.1 million as of 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$247.3 million). The debt to equity ratio (total
borrowings as a percentage of total equity) was 13.9% (2017:
9.7%). The Directors consider that the Group has adequate
financial resources to support its working capital requirement and
future expansion.

The sales of the Group are mainly denominated in US dollars and
Renminbi and the purchase of raw materials are mainly made in
Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. As of 31 December
2018, all cash and cash equivalents, and bank borrowings were
mainly denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Hence, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

Entrusted loans to Zhongdou Group and Zhongdou
Shopping Centre

The Company announced the updated status of the NBC
Entrusted Loans and the BOCOM Entrusted Loans in its
announcements dated 10 February 2015, 10 December, 3
November, 19 August, 23 June 2014 and 5 February 2013 (the
“Entrusted Loans Announcements”). The total amount of these
two entrusted loans is RMB160.0 million (equivalent to HK$191.4
million). The borrowers of these two entrusted loans have failed to
make repayments, and the borrowers and the related companies,
namely # #F % %&£ B B R 2 & (Zhongdou Group Holdings
Limited*), W TR & FEMEEEFR 2 A (Zhejiang Zhongdou
Property Group Company Limited*), # I #H #H EF R A A
(Zhejiang Zhongdou Department Store Company Limited*), #t/
R EREE ¥ R B R A A (Hangzhou Zhongdou Shopping Centre
Company Limited*) have filed voluntary bankruptcy at the People’s
Court of Yuhang District, Hangzhou City. A creditor served a
petition for bankruptcy proceedings against #T/LEs 2 HE X H
[R A 7] (Zhejiang Linan Zhongdou Property Company Limited*)
which has pledged a parcel of land to secure due performance of
obligations under the NBC Entrusted Loan, at the People’s Court
of Yuhang District, Hangzhou City.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

In respect of such proceedings, the People’s Court of Yuhang
District, Hangzhou City, approved the appointment of the
administrator and accepted the petition for bankruptcy
proceedings. The first creditors’ meetings were held on 19, 20
March and 2 April 2015.

Pursuant to the order, each of the Bank of Communications
Limited, Zhejiang Branch and Ningbo Bank Corporation lodged a
proof of debt to the administrator in respect of the claims under
the BOCOM Entrusted Loans and NCB Entrusted Loans in the
amount of RMB33.6 million (equivalent to HK$40.2 million) and
RMB141.8 million (equivalent to HK$169.7 million) on 9 February
2015 and 16 February 2015, respectively.

Two rounds of open tender were held by the administrator in
November 2017 and March 2018, respectively, to identify
potential restructuring investors, which were both terminated with
no qualified investor identified. The third round of open tender
commenced in March 2019 and is still in progress up to the date
of this report.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of the pledged
collaterals held by the Group for entrusted loans is determined
based on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
valuer (the “Valuer”) using market based valuation techniques
with reference to current prices in an active market of similar
properties.

At as 31 December 2018, the BOCOM Entrusted Loans of
approximately HK$16,169,000 (2017: HK$16,990,000) were
impaired. Based on the valuation performed by the Valuer, fair
value of the pledged collaterals for the BOCOM Entrusted Loans
and NCB Entrusted Loans is higher than such entrusted loans’
carrying amounts. The directors are of the opinion that there is no
further impairment for such entrusted loans as at 31 December
2018.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m A DN

(3)

Outlook

The Group has completed the modifications and information-
based operation of the apparel manufacturing equipment, which
has significantly improved the efficiency and flexibility in
manufacturing capability of our factories in response to the
market demand for OEM/ODM business. Meanwhile, the Group
has recognised the necessity for re-locating the production
capacity, and will construct production base in the PRC and
Southeast Asia within the next three to five years.

Going forward, the Group will spend more efforts on the
development of new products and customer services, expand the
customer base that comprises customers from traditional sales
channels to cover those from new retail channels, and proactively
take advantage of various digital means to improve the efficiency
and quality of the customer service.

As for the retail business of the Group, it will increase the
investment to expand the market share of existing brands and
develop new retail business, put in place effective control on
inventories, and apply “big-data” technology to the development
of the Group's retail business. In the meanwhile, the Group will
introduce premium international brands proactively and put more
efforts on the cultivation of new designer brands to ensure the
all-round development of the Group’s brand retail business.

The weaving business and the printing and dyeing business
underwent comprehensive modifications and relocation in 2018,
and the plant and machinery are resumed for production after
modifications. The Group will promote the development of the
weaving business and printing and dyeing business by focusing on
the market demand, emphasizing on environmental protection and
ecological conservation and enhancing the core strengths of
technological innovation, so as to firmly maintain the Group's
advantage in the supply chain as a one-stop purchase destination.

Hangzhou has provided the Group with good foundation for the
operations of its industrial park. Despite the economic pressure
from various neighboring industrial parks, the Group’s industrial
park still managed to deliver outstanding performance because of
its location and infrastructure. With the advancement of
urbanization, the Group’s industrial park will enjoy a more
prominent advantage in terms of transport location, thus
providing more favorable conditions for the Group to further the
operations of our industrial park in greater depth.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 6,300
full-time employees. Staff costs for 2018 stand at HK$538.0
million, remaining stable when compare with previous year.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
its employees and has adopted an incentive bonus scheme for
them, under which bonuses are determined every year based on
the performance of individual employees and with reference to the
Group's annual profits and performance. Our Directors believe that
a competitive remuneration package, a safe and comfortable
workplace, and career development opportunities are incentives
for employees to excel in their areas of responsibilities.

Pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations, the Group has
participated in relevant defined contribution retirement schemes
administrated by the Chinese government authorities for the
Group's employees in China. For the Group’s employees in Hong
Kong, all the arrangements pursuant to the mandatory provident
fund requirements set forth under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are
duly implemented. There is no mandatory retirement schemes
under the applicable laws and regulations in the US. The Group
has not implemented retirement schemes for the Group’s
employees in the US.

(4)
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Executive Directors

Mr. TING Man Yi, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Group and an
executive Director. He is also a director of Longerview Investments
Limited (“Longerview”) and Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”), both
being substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. TING is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. TING started the
business of the Group in December 1992 and has considerable
experience in the silk fabric and silk garment manufacturing and trading
business. Prior to establishing the initial company of the Group, Mr.
TING worked for Hangzhou Silk Industrial Company (171N 17 44 48 T % 2
Al) from 1981 to 1986. Mr. TING is currently responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group, especially overseeing the expansive
manufacturing industrial complex in Hangzhou, as well as the planning
and implementation of major new investments and projects of the
Group. Mr. TING is the elder brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING
Jianer.

Mr. TING Hung Yi, aged 58 is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and an executive Director. He is also a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, a director
of Longerview, In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
TING joined the Group in May 2002 and is principally responsible for the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM, ODM, and retail businesses.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TING was the general manager of a
trading company in Hong Kong between 1991 and 2002. Mr. TING
graduated from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University G T 38 T K£2), formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles (/T 4 #48 T &%), in 1987
and has over 30 years of experience in the operations of garment
export. Mr. TING is the younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr.
DING lJianer, as well as the brother-in-law of Mr. CHEN Jun.

Mr. DING lJianer, aged 59, is an executive Director of the Group. He is
also a director of Longerview, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”)
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. DING joined the Group in October 1996 when he was
first involved in the management and business operations of Shenzhen
Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited. He has considerable experience in the
silk garment manufacturing business, with focus on various specific areas
ranging from the operations of weaving plants, sales and marketing to
printing and dyeing and is responsible for the Group’s fabric research
and development along with innovative techniques. Mr. DING is the
younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and the elder brother of Mr. TING
Hung Yi.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter, aged 55, is an executive Director of the
Company and the managing director of China Ting Garment Mfg
(Group) Limited and Concept Creator Fashion Limited. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHEUNG has extensive
experience in the garment and textile industry and joined the Group in
January 2000, and oversees the Group's sales and marketing teams. Mr.
CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of Arts (cum laude) Degree from the
University of Washington in 1987, and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Simon Fraser University in 1990. Mr. CHEUNG was
admitted as a member of the Golden Key National Honor Society and
Phi Beta Kappa in 1986 and 1988, respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. CHENG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
in 1992, a Master’s Degree in Business Administration in 1997 and a
Master’s Degree in Laws (Chinese and Comparative Law) in 2009. Mr.
CHENG is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Mr. CHENG is a Certified Public Accountant practicing in Hong Kong
with over 30 years of experience in auditing and business advisory as
well as financial management. Mr. CHENG was chief executive and
group financial controller of NWS Holdings Limited (“NWSH"), the shares
of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Prior to joining NWSH, he was a senior manager of
an international accounting firm. Mr. CHENG is now senior partner of
Leslie Cheng & Co. as well as an independent non- executive director
and chairman of audit committee of Tianjin Port Development Holdings
Limited and Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited all being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and chief executive officer of L&E
Consultants Limited.

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman and a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. WONG holds a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia, an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. WONG is also
the Responsible Officer of CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK)
company Limited and is licensed to carry out certain regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance namely asset management
and advising on securities.
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Mr. WONG has over 39 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management, and was, for over 10 years, an executive director, deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of Asia Orient Holdings Limited, Asia Standard
International Group Limited, Century City International Holdings Limited,
Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as China Nickel Resources Holdings Company Limited), Fortunet
e-Commerce Group Limited (formerly known as Changfeng Axle (China)
Company Limited), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited, Paliburg Holdings
Limited, Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited, TPV Technology
Limited, Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai Lik
Industrial Holdings Limited), and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited, which are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 23 May 2018, Mr. WONG has ceased to be an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of China Shanshui
Cement Group Limited (stock code: 691) (“China Shanshui Cement”).

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman and a
member of the nomination committee, and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in 1977. Mr. LEUNG
has over 25 years of experience in project finance and corporate finance
and has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital (China) Limited,
Crosby Securities (HK) Limited and Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. LEUNG was also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AIG
Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. LEUNG is an independent non-executive director and audit
committee member of NetEase, a NASDAQ listed company. Mr. LEUNG
is also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 1132), Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (stock code: 798) and Luye Pharma Group Ltd (stock code:
02186) which are all companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 30 November 2018, Mr. LEUNG has resigned as an executive
director of Unitas Holdings Limited (formerly known as Chanceton
Financial Group Limited, stock code: 8020) (“Unitas Holdings”). Mr.
LEUNG also resigned as an independent non-executive director, a
member of the nomination and remuneration committee, and the
chairman of the financial management and audit committee of China
Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (stock code: 1886) (“China Huiyuan”) with
effect from 25 January 2019.
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Corporate Management Team

Export, OEM and ODM Business

Mr. SHEN Ren, Tony, aged 42, is a vice president of the Group and the
president of China Ting Fashion Group (USA) LLC. Mr. SHEN joined the
Group in 2005 and has assumed the management post since late 2008.
Mr. SHEN holds an LLB from Zhejiang University Law School, an LLM
from University of Glasgow, Scotland (International Law) and an LLM
from University of Warwick, UK (Law in Development). Prior to joining
the group, Mr. SHEN worked as assistant manager within the
Department of Government Procurement of China and as consultant in
the international legal firm Horwath & Partners, Shanghai.

Weaving and Apparel Production Management

Mr. YE Ai Min, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s production management. Mr. YE
joined the Group in August 1993 and has served in various posts since,
including being the general manager of Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited and Hangzhou China Ting Fashion Company Limited.
Mr. YE graduated from Zhejiang Medical University (45T 8 &IKE2) in
1983 with a bachelor's degree in medicine. Mr. YE has more than
twenty years of experience in apparel production management and
product quality control.

Mr. FU Xiao Bo, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group overseeing
its export business and product development in Hangzhou. Mr. FU joined
the Group in May 1997. Mr. FU has considerable experience in business
expansion notably in fabric and product innovation, fabrication and
production techniques. In 1984, Mr. FU graduated with bachelor’s
degree from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University (#/T¥E T KE2) formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles (# /T # 48 T Zp%). He also
received extensive fabric technical training in Germany before he joined
the Group.

Ms. SHEN Xuan, aged 42, joined the Group in 2002 and is a vice
president of the Group and general manager of Zhejiang Xinan Fashion
Company Limited, in charge of finance, sourcing and production of retail
business of the Group. Ms. SHEN graduated from Zhejiang University of
Finance and Economics and has considerable experience in the
management of apparel manufacturing, production management and
product quality control. Ms. SHEN is also the niece of Mr. TING Man Yi,
Mr. TING Hung Yi, and Mr. DING Jianer.

Mr. XIA Wei Feng, aged 40, joined the Group in 2014 and is a vice
president of the Group and the general manager of China Ting Woolen
Textile Company, Limited, in charge of the operating management of
woolen and new materials production. Mr. XIA graduated from Ningbo
University, major in Business Administration. He has over ten vyears
experience in exploitation, management and marketing in the field of
textile apparel.
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Retail and Brand Management

Mr. LIU Gang, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and the
managing director of Zhejiang China Ting Brand Management Company
Limited and the director for art and design for the Group. Mr. LIU
joined the Group in August 1998 and is responsible for the design,
promotion and management and exploitation of the Group’s various in-
house brand names in the China market, including the Group’s own
brands of FINITY, ELANIE and RIVERSTONE. Mr. LIU graduated from
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University (H7)T 32 T K 2) formerly known as Zhejiang
Institute of Silk Textiles (4 )T # #1 T 2 §%) in 1987.

Mr. TING Yu, aged 30, is the general manager of the Group’s retail
brands. Mr. TING joined the Group in 2011, and was initially responsible
for the operation and development of the brand of RIVERSTONE and is
mainly responsible for the operation and development of all the brands
of the Group at present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of
Manchester with a bachelor's degree in 2010, and then from Cass
Business School of City University of London, U.K. with a master’s
degree in 2011. Mr. TING has advanced concepts of innovation and
years of experience in retail management. Mr. TING is the eldest son of
Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. TING Fan, aged 30, is the general manager of the Group’s business
development and a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. TING
joined the Group in 2011 and is mainly responsible for investor relations
and global business development at present. Mr. TING graduated from
The University of Manchester in 2010, and then from Cass Business
School of City University of London, U.K. with a master's degree in
2011. Mr. TING has extensive experience in market development and
sales management, and has been in charge of the introduction and
management of some international fashion brands, like CALVIN KLEIN
PERFORMANCE, VINCE CAMUTO and TRENTA. Mr. TING is the second
son of Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Accounting and Finance

Mr. MAO lJian Hua, aged 65, is the Financial Controller and Chief
Accountant of the Group. Mr. MAO joined the Group in December
2003 and is responsible for the overall accounting and budget control
for the Group’'s OEM production in China. Mr. MAO is a holder of the
Certificate of Certified Public Valuer of the PRC (% AR EFE &
EfFEENEE) as well as a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (B8 5 ffit & 5 AT i €). Mr. MAO has over 20 years
of work experience in financial management and accounting in China.

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, aged 41, is the Financial Controller and
also the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Group. Mr.
CHENG joined the Group in May 2005, and is responsible for the Group's
overall matters related to financial and treasury management, financial
accounting and reporting, budgetary control, taxation and statutory audit.
Mr. CHENG graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and also holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
(MBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. CHENG worked as audit manager for an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors recognise the importance of corporate governance and are
committed to maintain high-standards of corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures of the Group, in
order to make sure that all business activities of the Group and the
decision-making process are properly regulated to safeguard
shareholders’ interests and as well as the Company’s assets. We
recognize the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to promote corporate transparency and
accountability and to enhance shareholders’ value. This report
summarises how the principles as set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report have been applied in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018. The company has complied with the
principles and code provisions set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments. The key corporate governance principles and practices of
our Company are summarized below.

The Board of Directors
Board Composition
The Board currently comprises seven directors and the composition is set

forth as follows:

Mr. TING Man Yi
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Chairman and Executive Director

TEHREE ITREEATESF

Mr. TING Hung Yi Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
THEREE TRERFATES

Mr. DING Jianer Executive Director

TRREE HITES

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter Executive Director

REBLE HITES

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Independent Non-Executive Director
B NS 5t & BURITES

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Independent Non-Executive Director
HZEEE BIURITES

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit Independent Non-Executive Director
ZREEFE BIURITES
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of our Group.
The principal roles of the Board are:

— to formulate the medium and long-term strategies of our Group;

— to lay down the objectives, policies and business plans of our
Group;

— to monitor and evaluate the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

— to review and approve the Group’s annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, interim and annual results, material contracts
and transactions, declaration of dividend, Directors’ appointment
or re-appointment following the recommendation(s) by the
Nomination Committee as well as other ad hoc matters which
need to be dealt with by the Board;

— to establish effective control measures so as to assess and manage
risks in pursuit of our objectives; and

— to review and ensure the Group has in place adequate accounting
systems and appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating
experience and industry knowledge, and also instructs the management
to implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition, the
Board has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to various Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Details of the Directors are set forth on pages 26 to 28 of this report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in its terms of reference, including:

— to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

The four executive Directors include three brothers, namely Mr. TING
Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer, and Mr. CHEUNG Ting
Yin, Peter. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter has no family relationship with
any of the other executive and independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has entered into service contract with each of the
executive Directors and appointment letter with each of the independent
non-executive Directors setting out their duties, terms and conditions of
service and appointment, respectively.

The articles of association of our Company (“Articles of Association”)
provide that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of our Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in
this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of shareholders
to a standard commensurate with that of the code.

The Articles of Association also provides that any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the Company’s next following general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Board considers that its diversity is a vital asset to the business. The
Board adopted a board diversity policy for better transparency and
governance. Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.
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Board Meetings

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had held 4, 2, 1 and 1 meeting respectively in 2018. The
attendance at the Board, respective Board Committee meetings and
Annual General Meeting held in 2018 are as follows:

Audit
Director Board Committee
=2 Esg EREZEE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. TING Man Yi 3/4 _
THREE
Mr. TING Hung Yi 3/4 o
TR
Mr. DING lianer 2/4 o
TEREE
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter 4/4 -
REELE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang 4/4 212
B 5 M8 5 A
Mr. WONG Chi Keung 4/4 2/2
|2 REE
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit 4/4 2/2
RERGSEE

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall business
strategies and objectives, the monitoring and evaluation of the operating
and financial performance, the review of the corporate governance
standard and the supervision of the management of the Group. The
management of the Group is responsible for the implementation of the
business strategies and the day-to-day operations of the Group under
the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have full
access to information on the Group. All senior management of the
Group also provide the Directors from time to time with information on
the business of the Group.

Training and Development

The Company places great importance on directors training and annually
holds a Board of Directors conference to reaffirm Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and to advise the Directors on various subjects including,
Listing Rules compliance, updates to the Listing Rules, rules and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
enforcement actions taken by the SFC and Stock Exchange and how the
rules and regulations impact on the Company’s business and corporate
governance.
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All Directors are provided with a Directors Manual with summaries of the
directors’ duties and responsibilities as a director of a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (including connected and notifiable transactions;
disclosure of interest in securities of the Company and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by a Director of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) and also contains the group chart and
the Company’s Articles of Association. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to refresh and develop their
knowledge and skills as well as to receive updates on developments in
corporate governance practices. This is to ensure their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A record of the Director’s participation in the continuous professional
development program is kept with the Company Secretary.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills by attending training and by reading
materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director and the latest developments in the relevant rules and
regulations.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2018 and they
participated in the following types of continuous professional
development:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. TING Man Yi THREE

Mr. TING Hung Yi THEREE

Mr. DING lianer TEREE

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter REBSLE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang B % A&

Mr. WONG Chi Keung H2REA

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit RERGTE

(): Attending internal training sessions.

(In): Attending seminars.

(I): Reading materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director

and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) and its amendments from time to time as the
code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the Company’s
securities. Formal written notices are sent to the Directors prior to the
commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication of our interim results announcement and 60 days
immediately preceding the publication of our annual results
announcement, as a reminder that Directors may not deal in the
securities of the Company during those periods up to and including the
date of publication of results. Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards under the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate
and are held by Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. TING Hung Vi, respectively,
who are siblings. The Chairman is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of the Group, overseeing the manufacturing business of the
Group in Hangzhou and the planning and implementation of major new
investments and projects of the Group. The Chairman will ensure that
the Group maintains good measures and effective corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the business of the Group and the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM and retail business. With the
assistance of other members of the Board and other senior
management, the Chief Executive Officer closely monitors the operating
and financial results of the Group, identifies weakness of the operation
and takes all necessary and appropriate remedial steps.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and Rules 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, one independent non-executive
Director of which has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise and the
independent non-executive Directors represent at least one-third of the
Board. All three independent non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years, commencing from 18 November
2017. All of them have satisfied the independence criteria, and each of
them has made such confirmation on independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established the following committees whose authority, functions,
compositions and duties are set out below:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board has three members, namely Mr.
TING Hung Yi, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
Remuneration Committee is established primarily for the purpose of
ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate high quality personnel
who are essential to the success of our Group. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing the terms of remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management and
determining the award of bonuses. Its terms of reference are available on
request, and are also posted on the website of the Company. The
Remuneration Committee was established on 18 November 2005.

The Company has adopted the model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for formulating and recommending remuneration policy to the Board and
reviewing and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The fees for Directors are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
general meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee consults with Chairman on its
proposals and recommendations if necessary, and also has access to
independent professional advice if necessary. The Remuneration Committee
is also provided with sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2018 and reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board the Directors’ fees and the
emoluments of the executive Directors and remuneration package of
senior management. All the committee members attended the meeting.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and senior
management is made up of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive. The fixed component comprises mainly salary,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other allowances which are
determined by reference to the remuneration benchmark in similar
industry or industry with similar market capitalization and prevailing
market conditions. The variable incentive is bonus, which s
performance-based and determined by the Board and the Group based
on the Group’s and individual work performance.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set forth below:

In the band of
M 48 Bl

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,000,001 7T £2,000,000/% JT

Below HK$1,000,001
1,000,001 7T A T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board consists of Mr. TING Hung Yi, Mr.
CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. The Nomination Committee
is established primarily for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and making recommendations to the
Board on nominations and appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates, based on his or her prior experience and
qualifications, to the Board on the appointment of Directors of the Group.
The Nomination Committee has recommended to the Board the Directors
who should retire and make themselves available for election pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, assessed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors. Its terms of reference are available on
request and are also posted on the website of the Company. The
Nomination Committee was established on 18 November 2005. One
Nomination Committee meeting, discussing the nomination procedures,
was held in 2018 and all the committee members attended the meeting.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr.
LEUNG Man Kit. Mr. WONG Chi Keung is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the
financial reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, and corporate governance of
the Group and oversee the auditing processes. The authority, role and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in written terms of
reference which are available on request and are also posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
was established on 18 November 2005. The Company has been in full
compliance with requirements of Rule 3.21 in the Listing Rules
throughout the year. Two Audit Committee meetings were held, together
with senior management and the external auditor in 2018. All the
committee members attended these meetings.

During 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the recent updates and
development of accounting and financial reporting standards and
assessed their potential impact on our Group, overseeing the relationship
with the Company’s external auditor (including making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor), considered the external auditor’'s proposed audit fees;
discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature
and scope of the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial
statements, particularly judgemental areas, before submission to the
Board; reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the CG
Code, reviewed our Group’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems and discussed with the external auditor on our
Group's financial reporting function, in particular on the adequacy of
resources of our Group's accounting and financial reporting function,
qualifications and experience of our staff and their training program,
conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of our Group. The Audit Committee recommended the
Board to adopt the interim and annual report for 2018.

The professional fee charged by the Company’s auditor in respect of the
auditing services is disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements. The
remuneration of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
for audit and non-audit services (namely taxation services and interim
review) rendered during 2018 was HK$3.3 million and HK$0.7 million,
respectively. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of reference are
posted on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the vyear
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
and audited by external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Director’s Responsibilities for the Financial

Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group with a view to
ensure that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group, selecting suitable accounting policies,
applying the selected accounting policies consistently, and making
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and of its results and cash flows
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set forth in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 62 to 70.

Internal Control

The Board and the management of the Group have overall responsibility
for maintaining a sound and effective internal control system of the
Group so as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations
of the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting
and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, management team and both

internal and external auditors.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board has, through the Audit Committee of the
Board with the assistance of the management, conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of these internal control systems, including without
limitation to financial control, operations control, compliance control and
risk management functions, on a regular basis. For the year ended 31
December 2018, based on the assessment made by the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit team, the
Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by our
Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, the Company Secretary of our
Company, has confirmed the completion of relevant professional training
of not less than 15 hours.

Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an
equal opportunity to receive and obtain information provided by the
Company. The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for exchange of
views and direct communication between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the independent
non-executive Directors, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors. Poll voting
was adopted for all decisions to be made at all general meetings. Details
of the poll voting procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
which call for a general meeting and are explained during the
proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders. Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. We maintain a website
www.chinating.com.hk to keep our shareholders and the general public
informed on our latest corporate news, interim and annual results
announcements, financial reports and other public announcements. We
always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders may send
their enquiries in writing to the Board by addressing them to our
Company Secretary. The contact details of our Company Secretary are as
follows:
Address: The Company Secretary

China Ting Group Holdings Limited
27/F, King Palace Plaza

55 King Yip Street Kwun Tong
Hong Kong
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Shareholders’ right to convene a
shareholders’ meeting and putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company the “Requisitionist(s)”)
shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require (the “Requisition”) an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in the Requisition.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
Requisition. In the event that the Board fails to convene the EGM within
twenty-one days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Investors Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company has been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. There has been no changes in the Company's
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at
the same time, to ensure that the Company is to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

Any proposed distribution of final dividends shall be formulated by the
Board and will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of any
dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including the results of
operations, cash flows, financial conditions, operating and capital
expenditure requirements, distributable profits and other applicable laws
and regulations and other factors that the Board may consider important
and appropriate.
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Corporate Risk Management and Intemal

tERRE?

Project Review

Significance and important statement

According to the Corporate Risk Management and Internal
Control Regulation Rules and relevant guidance and other
internal control regulation requirements (hereafter referred
as the “Corporate Internal Control Standard System”),
combining with the internal control policy and appraisal
measures of Company, on the basis of regular supervision
and special supervision on internal control, we have
conducted an investigation on the management and
internal control for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31

December 2018.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to
establish, complete and implement effectively the internal
control and appraise its effectiveness and truly disclose the
internal control appraisal report in accordance with the
Corporate Internal Control Standard System. The Audit
Committee conducts the supervision in terms of
establishing and implementing internal control by the
Board. The executives of the Group and general managers
of companies are responsible for the organization of daily
operation of the corporate internal control. The Board, and
senior managements assure that there is no false,
misleading statement or significant omission in the report,
and assume several and joint legal liability on the truth,
correctness and completeness of the report.

The corporate internal control is conducted to properly
assure the legal compliance of operation and management,
assets safety, truth and completeness of financial statement
and relevant information, to improve the operation
efficiency and effectiveness and accelerate to realize our
development strategy. Due to the inherent restriction of
internal control, it only provides reasonable assurance for
above purpose. In addition, as any change of circumstance
may cause improper risk appraisal and internal control or
low compliance degree on the control policy and procedure,
thus to predict future effectiveness of the internal control
basing on internal control appraisal may bring risk to some
extent.
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Risk Identification and Risk Analysis

Scope of internal control appraisal

In accordance with enterprise development condition in
2018 and new trend of social policy and regulation,
businesses and items involved in this appraisal comprise
development strategy, human resource, social responsibility,
enterprise culture, capital event, procurement, assets
management, business event, research and development,
construction, guarantee business, outsourcing business,
financial management, budget management, contract
management, internal information transmission, information
system, and environmental factor; and high risk areas with
attention mainly include business management risk, financial
management risk, labor management risk, production
management risk, inventory risk, sale risk and major
decision legal risk.

Risk level identification

The Company leverages on risk matrix method to identify
risk level by categories. Through risk matrix, loss caused by
risk event is categorized to six levels, and the possibility of
risk event is also correspondingly categorized to six levels.
With loss level in line of table and possibility level in row of
table, to assign figures of 6-1 score according to the
degree from high to low, and then categorize risk level
basing on figures calculated by multiplying such
corresponding figures of intersection point. Following risk
matrix table shows: 1-2 score represents low risk, 3-8 score
represents general risk, 9-16 score represents moderate
risk, 18-25 score represents significant risk, 30-36 score
represents especially serious risk.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Significant risk categories and summary 3 EXEKBEBEREMR

According to feedbacks on our internal control KERNERSERE  BHMEFKE
questionnaires and by ways of interviewing with our T UREABREBEREREFR £
president group, monitoring risk indexes and others, the FIATOEERAEE —T— \F—
following nine risks were identified as significant risks of A—B&E=-FT—N\F+=ZA=+—

the Group during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31

December 2018, for which we need to adopt efficient risk MEBREEFE-
management and control measures.

FEEsANER F2RHAANL

Risk Risk description Assignment

m ki EB [ B 4 BE

China-US trade friction |The “America First” idea put forward by the Trump Administration and a series of trade protection |30
hEXEZBER and trade sanction activities have resulted in repeated trade frictions between China and the United [Especially serious

States, which will exist for a long time in the future. The largest customer of China Ting originated
from the United States, accounting for 46.0% of China Ting's total trade. Therefore, if the
instabilities continue to last in China-US trade activities, the continued stability of China Ting's
business will be materially affected.
HESHEBRARENEXEEEIBEE-FRIESRENBESHRTE  £EPEXEHERTH
RE UTHESEHRERBEAFE MESEANTLFRRNER  HELEFETENI6.0%
AP EBSN T RBEEERRETENREVEESEBONRETR -

risk
55 R E K& B

Weak operating
capability in new retail

HEEEERNIRS

The size of China’s new retail market represented by e-commerce was expected to exceed RMB37
trillion in 2018, of which apparel e-commerce was expected to exceed RMB1 trillion. Statistics show
that more than 40% of China’s top 100 apparel e-commerce companies are those newly established
in the past three years, and e-commerce is the most promising part of the China’s apparel stock
market. Since the launch of the e-commerce business segment in 2012, China Ting has not
experienced explosive growth in scale and is losing its competitive advantage in the new retail
market.

FRAEFEABARRNIZEN S T \FRARBARBIZEE T EFREEHEFEE
ARMIBEL RABERTFEREEEI1008RBBI0%RZEIFHRINAT  EFHBEREPE
REGEMSHIEERERENRNTD MELE T —_FHBEFHBEBRBUANR /B
BIRERABRBUER EEXENTETHOREES -

30
Especially serious
risk

Bl E KR B

Weak operating China Ting will construct a great number of properties in 2019 for the creation of a fashion industry |20
capability of industrial | complex. The construction of a great number of buildings has brought new challenges to China Ting | Significant risk
park in terms of the investment attraction capability, property support capability and complex operating BARER
EENEELERIRS capability of the industrial park, which is a brand new business field for China Ting. If China Ting is

not well prepared with comprehensive capabilities, it will face the risks of excessive capital investment

and long payback period.

ERER-_ZT-NFRAZ-AUAVERNERTHELGAE ASEFNARUESNARR

BN MEIRENNGARBESENRETENNER  RESEVNEKEL - TREHINZ

FRIRE N EH BEESERESRABR EL0KEBROARK -
Continued reduction in | With the surging increase in labor cost in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai, and the back-flow of 18
the number of front-line [young and middle-aged laborers caused by the great efforts exerted by the traditional labor output |Significant risk
technicians provinces in developing local economy in recent years, the inflow of front-line employees experienced | & X & &
—BEMEITHERD a continuous decline in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai. As such, the problem of labor shortage has

now seriously affected the continuation of China Ting's labor-intensive business in Jiangsu and

Zhejiang.

IHRBHERIRAER LA HERARERLBREEOFRBERNBRABERE  BRE

FEHH F/RINEHR - REINTAERETRE AIRHARTEARENVEINTES

SESHTEREEC TN DEOFEELT -
Significant fluctuations of | Since February 2017, the RMB exchange rate has experienced a continuous appreciation for 14 18
RMB exchange rate months, with an increase of 11.2%, an unprecedented rate of appreciation rarely seen before. Significant risk
ARMERARBERD However, in the second half, the RMB exchange rate turned sharply downward and rapidly EPN:T

depreciated by over 10%, causing simultaneously a panic in the market. The significant fluctuations of
RMB exchange rate in recent years have brought difficulties to China Ting in terms of foreign
exchange management because of its focus on the trade activities with U.S. players.
“EHFEZANUK ARBERERET REIMEAANBFEE  RIEBZD11.2% - FHEZRATA
FRIOMBETROEF ARBEXRXZEET  ARTE  KIRBBI10%  THERFESERLE
Mo FRRBERDNARBEXFHXESATNEREEEINEER LFERANHE -
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TERR

EEEANIENRE

Risk Management and Improvement

Report

Risk management summary

The Group’s business and market are both at risk. Facing
constant change of market, we need to continuously
identify and control relevant risks, so as to decrease,
transfer, prevent or master risks. Therefore, we need to
adopt scientific measures to actively carry out
comprehensive and in-depth analysis, and implement an
efficient structure of corporate risk management. In respect
of strategy, the Group focuses on identifying and managing
significant risks that may affect the Group, business and
functions, so as to realize the Group’s strategy and business
target. In seeking growth opportunities, the Group will aim
at optimizing risk and return decision mechanism and
establishing strong and independent approval procedures. In
respect of operation, the Group aims at being able to
identify, analyze and appraise management harm and risk to
provide safe, healthy, effective and environmental friendly
working condition for employees; to ensure public safety
and health and at the same time minimize the impact on
the environment.

Significant risk indexes supervision and control

The Company has set up supervision indexes for each risk
identified and conducts closed supervision for the indexes.
A risk will highly likely occur when corresponding indexes
go beyond warning scope. In order to prevent risk or try to
decrease the probability of risk as much as possible, the
Company has pre-formulated relevant risk control measures
against each risk identified,
probability of the risk occurred.

so as to minimize the

In terms of nine risks identified in this internal control
survey of the Group, we suggest following risk supervision
indexes and actively cope with such risks, expecting to
realize the basic objective of controlling risks, avoiding risks
or minimizing damage brought by such risks.
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UL

Weak operating International and domestic new retail reports Strengthening the construction of the Group’s new

capability in new retail |EIFRE R TERS retail team

FEEEEEIRS The Group's report on new retail performance MASEHTEBERERNONE
SEFTEEERS Putting more efforts on the exploration of Group’s
Competency assessment of the Group’s new retail team new retail channels
SEEATEMMBKREENFTH MAEEFEZERBERANNE

Deeply exploring big data and using big data to
improve the working capabilities in product design,
product promotion, product pricing and inventory
clearing, etc.

AREZBABEEE  MARBBRSERR
ERHEE EQEE EFEFESHIEMNIERN
Improving brand operation ability in the era of
informatization

RIEBLRRN RS S EL

Weak operating Report on the industrial plant lease market Making full use of the resources inside and outside

capability of industrial |TE¥BWERAENHRE the Group, enhancing market exploration, and

park Report of the Group on the internal control over leased properties |attracting high-quality customers

EENXELENRS SEEHEMENERS EOFBEBAINER  MATERMBANE - Hal
BEEF AL

Improving internal property service and property
management capabilities, improving customer
satisfaction, and making full use of word-of-mouth
marketing

TEABMERBADEEERL N REARETP
HMBE - oA A O

Striving for government support to provide better
preferential policies and financial subsidies for the
investment attraction in the industrial park
SRR H - REEREHREEFOEEBRN
BB RS N E
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CEREREEEANIZEN RS

Risk Risk supervision index

mEEB R ERER

Risk control measures

B B R

Continued reduction in | Statistics on the number of staff
the number of front-line | & T A #1551k

technicians Statistics on the age structure of staff
—BEMEIHERD BT FlEBRGEE
Statistics on the technical capabilities of staff
8 T il 68 N st Bug

Analysis on staff turnover
BTRABRD T

Establishing excellent internal incentive mechanism
and promotion mechanism to retain outstanding
talents of the Company

B EBORAEESE - B BERRE
BN

Establishing a directed talent delivery mechanism
with vocational and technical schools

SR B 3R BT R BOGR LA TE A 8
Establishing a directed talent delivery mechanism
with poor areas in central and western areas

g eh 7 308 R 3 [ 52 37 A A E () 8 X

Fully demonstrating the feasibility of industrial
transfer to relocate the production base to more
suitable areas

ROMEEXEBOITME  BEEEMRESE
HE MR

Significant fluctuations of | Expectations of forward exchange rate
RMB exchange rate & & 3% Hi 18 A

ARMEZREERS Real-time exchange rate quotations
ok

Monitoring of international financial events

BEREREGEE

Stopping entering into new foreign exchange
contracts with banks
LiERETHEFNINEER

Regularly assessing the RMB exchange rates and
taking appropriate measures based on the degree of
risk

TE A/ A RS BE A R A - 1R E R B AR R ER
AN

Vigorously developing domestic business to reduce
the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on the
Company'’s results

ANBERBNER VR DIMNERBH QB EEY
E-4

Continuous improvement measures

Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the
Board will finalize and issue the risk management manual,
and further enhance measures to cope with risks. Internal
Control and Risk Management Committee promotes the risk
management in other business process, and gradually
manage such risks in order from high to low. Person in
charge of relevant risk constantly supervises the
effectiveness of measures on risk warning indexes and risks
identified, so as to control risks in a reasonable and timely
way. To establish regular risk management report
mechanism, and regularly report risk management to the
Board and Audit Committee. The Board of the Group is
fully liable for maintaining completed and effective internal
supervision and risk management procedure, and will also
include the risk management in strategy development,
business plan, capital allocation, investment decision on
internal supervision and daily operation.

Conclusion

Based on the results of the internal control review for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the assessment of the
Audit Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk
management and internal controls systems are noted. The
Board therefore is satisfied that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems have been
maintained for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

Principal Business Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal business activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set forth in note 9 to the financial statements.

The Group’s principal business activities during the financial year ended
31 December 2018 were garment manufacturing for export, retailing
branded fashion apparel and property investment in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 by business and geographical segments is set out in
note 5 to the financial statements.

Business Review

Details of the activities during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including fair review of the Group's
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” on pages
10-13, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14-23 and
Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report on pages 43—
48 of this Annual Report.

Environmental policies of the Group is to maintaining the highest
environmental standards to ensure sustainable development of its business,
with compliance of all relevant laws and regulations having significant
impact on the Group in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2018 are set forth in note 9 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s consolidated results for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 are set forth in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 73 and 74 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 198 and 199 of this
report.

Borrowings
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set forth in Note 23 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

No new shares or share options were issued during the year. Details of
shares issued by the Company are set forth in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purpose are set
out on note 7 to the financial statements. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on page 200 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distributions amounted to HK$1,532.3 million comprising share premium,
contributed surplus and retained earnings.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, sales made to the
Group's top five customers and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 33.9% and 13.9% of the total sales. The Group
purchased less than 30.0% of its goods and services from its five largest
suppliers.

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued shares) have any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers and

Employees

The Group values relationships with, and have been maintaining good
relationships with its customers, and garment
manufacturing suppliers and the employees of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, there were no material dispute between
the Group and its customers, suppliers and employees.

raw material
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The Company has always been closely communicating with its
stakeholders, actively responding to their needs, and taking those into
consideration during corporate strategy formulation and decision making
process. The Company sees sustainable development as the key for a
corporation to succeed and therefore, it aims to seek a win-win situation
for the Group, society and environment by balancing between the
creation of economic value and the impact on the environment.

The Group strictly complies with various national environmental
protection laws and regulations. It has implemented a series of measures
to alleviate environmental impacts of weaving, dyeing and garment
manufacturing. The Group has established rules for pollutant control and
waste disposal, including airborne dust and sewage during the process of
dyeing and manufacturing; electricity consumption has been reduced by
improving the Group’s facilities and technologies, thereby controlling
greenhouse gas emission; the Group supports green operations and
encourages its employees to adopt environmentally friendly working
habit. For further information about the Company’s environmental
performance during the year, please refer to the Company’s separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued by the
Company. The report will be available on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website after its publication.

Compliance with laws and Regulations

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under various
laws. These include, among others, the Work Safety Law of the PRC*
("“REARLMBEZ2EEL"), Labour Law of the PRC* ("FE AR
FNE & L"), Environmental Protection Law of the PRC* ("FFEE AR
MBIERIF R L"), Labour Contract Law of the PRC* (“HZE A R ANE
8 8)4 [JE"), Regulations of the PRC on Prohibiting the Use of Child
Labour* ("ZEIHEFAZE T HRE "), Fire Protection Law of the PRC* (“
EAREMEERB L"), Law of the PRC on Wholly Foreign-Owned
Enterprises* ("H#E AR FEMEINE R L") and Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax* (“HEARKFMBMEMEHE") and the
applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued or promulgated
under or in connection with these statutes. In addition, the Listing Rules
also apply to the Company. The Company seeks to ensure compliance
with these requirements through various measures such as internal
controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at different
levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of ensuring
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
by the Group that have significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TING Man Yi (Chairman)

Mr. TING Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. DING Jianer

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang

Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter will
retire and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”).

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company, which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules is set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter Entitled to an allocated monthly salary, based on
services rendered to the Group, in an amount of
HK$118,000 commencing from January 2019.

Independent Non-Executive Director:

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Resigned as an independent non-executive director

and a member of each of the audit committee,

remuneration committee and nomination

committee of China Shanshui Cement with effect

from 23 May 2018

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit Resigned as an executive director of Unitas

Holdings with effect from 30 November 2018.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director,
a member of the nomination and remuneration
committee, and the chairman of the financial
management and audit committee of China
Huiyuan with effect from 25 January 2019
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The updated
biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the
preceding section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company received from each of Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, Mr. WONG
Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit a confirmation of their
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all of them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set forth on pages 24 to 30 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The annual salary and bonus of each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING
Hung Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$3.0 million, HK$3.0
million, HK$2.1 million, and HK$1.5 million, respectively. The annual
salary and bonus of each executive Director shall be recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board and subject to
the annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Company,
provided that any increment shall not be more than 15% of the annual
salary received by each executive Director for the immediate preceding
year.

Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a management bonus,
the amount of which is determined with reference to the audited
consolidated net profits of the Group after taxation and minority
interests but before extraordinary items (the “Net Profits”) as the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, approve, provided that the aggregate
amount of the management bonus payable to all executive Directors in
respect of any financial year shall not exceed 4% of the Net Profits for
the relevant financial year.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment dated 18 November 2017 with the Company under which
each of them has agreed to act as an independent non-executive
Director for a period of three years, commencing from 18 November
2017, unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions
specified therein. The initial annual fee payable to Mr. WONG Chi
Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit is HK$360,000,
HK$240,000 and HK$240,000, respectively.
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Save as mentioned above, none of the independent non-executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director. Save as disclosed
above, there is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within one vyear without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), entered into with any
of the executive Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company'’s

business

Except for the continuing connected transactions disclosed on pages 59
to 61 of this report, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

Emolument Policy of the Group
The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and decided by the Board on the basis of the relevant
executive Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(ii) non-cash benefits may be provided to the executive Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(iii)  the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board with
the endorsement of the Remuneration Committee of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.

The emolument policy of the Group is aimed at attracting, retaining and
motivating talented individuals. The principle is to have performance
based remuneration which reflects market standards. The employee's
remuneration packages are generally determined based on their job
nature and position with reference to market standards. Employees also
receive certain welfare benefits. The Group’s emolument policy will be
adjusted depending on a number of factors, including changes to the
market practice and stages of the Group’s business development, so as
to achieve the Group’s operational targets.
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Interests and/or Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executive in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures of the

Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register required to be maintained, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Shares of the Company
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(a) REAQARODHER

Approximate percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company*
EEHE g% ;i gvik - g=| HAEAGERZMAE DL
(Note 1)
(B &E1)
Mr. TING Man Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THRRE S A R (Note 2)
(M &E2)
Mr. TING Hung Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
TR % A& P A R (Note 3)
(M 5E3)
Mr. DING lJianer Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
TEREE S A R (Note 4)
(M 5x4)
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Directly beneficially owned 200,000 (L) 0.01%
5 Ns %k & ERERER
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Directly beneficially owned 1,000,000 (L) 0.05%
BHZREAE ERERER
# The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued " ERARERBAOE DL NEARBNR-F
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018. FHZA=T—HAMNDEITRATE -
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Notes:

f==3
=

The letter “L” stands for the Director’s long position in the shares.

Longerview Investments Limited (“Longerview”) is owned as to 41.5% by
Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Man Yi.
Longerview is a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr.
TING Man Yi. As such, under the SFO, Mr. TING Man Yi is deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings"”) which
is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Hung Yi. Longerview is a controlled corporation
(within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr. TING Hung Yi. As such, under the SFO,
Mr. TING Hung Yi is deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered
into between Mr. TING Man Yi, Firmsuccess, Mr. TING Hung Yi, In Holdings,
Mr. DING Jianer, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) and Longerview
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling
Shareholders (other than Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive
arrangements in respect of their shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO, each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr.
DING Jianer is therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of
the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, under the SFO, Mr.
DING Jianer is also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.
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(b)

Interests in the Shares of Associated Corporations
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(b) REBZERONES

Name of Approximate percentage
associated of interest in the
Name of Directors corporation Nature of interest Number of shares associated corporation
IHEEEEER
o= B EE LS BRttE RHEE BHED
Mr. TING Man Yi Firmsuccess Personal interest 1 100%
TR EE (PN
Longerview Corporate interest 415 (Note 1) 41.5%
EE S (B 5E1)
Mr. TING Hung Yi In Holdings Personal interest 1 100%
THREE (PN
Longerview Corporate interest 405 (Note 2) 40.5%
EE S (B 522)
Mr. DING Jianer Willport Personal interest 1 100%
TREREE 18 A 21
Longerview Corporate interest 180 (Note 3) 18.0%
EEEE (B 53)
Notes: W
1 The 415 shares in Longerview are held by Firmsuccess, which is wholly-owned 1 Firmsuccess# 4 Longerview #9415 i 13 - T
by Mr. TING Man Yi. 52 5% 4 Bll & & ¥ AFirmsuccess °
2 The 405 shares in Longerview are held by In Holdings, which is wholly-owned 2 In Holdings# A Longerview #4058 i {5 + T 4 /R
by Mr. TING Hung Yi. S Al2EHABIn Holdings °
3 The 180 shares in Longerview are held by Willport, which is wholly-owned by 3 Willport#§ % Longerview #1808 & £+ T 12 52 58

Mr. DING lJianer.

A4 R 2 & ¥ B Willport ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2018, the persons,
other than Directors and chief executive of the Company, having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, which were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, were
as follows:

Name of substantial

FERRRAQXARMG KBERK
BHEBNERR KR

BEEMM R_Z-N\F+-_A=+—-H0 R
ARAPdn AR NEEEDEA BRI
B MREES LB EKRIEIBHRASLNA
RAFFENECMANAL(EFEEHAR
BETBRAE)MT :

Approximate percentage of

shareholders Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company

TERRER 514 RHHE HERABAEEHNES
(Note 1)
(B 7ET)

Longerview Beneficial owner 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
EmiEB A (Note 2)
(B 5E2)

Firmsuccess Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
XA E R (Note 2)
(B 5E2)

In Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
XA E R (Note 3)
(B 5E3)

Willport Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
R HE E s (Note 4)
(Bt 5%4)

Notes:

1 The letter “L" stands for the substantial shareholders’ long position in the shares.

2 Longerview is owned as to 41.5% by Firmsuccess. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Firmsuccess. Firmsuccess is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

3 Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of In Holdings. In Holdings is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

4 Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into

between the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders (other than
Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in respect of their
shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, each of
Firmsuccess, In Holdings and Willport is therefore deemed to have effective voting
power in respect of the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, Willport is
also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.
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Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’

Interest in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business, which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, appropriate insurance
covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s liabilities arising out
of activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company. As of the
date of this annual report, such insurance covering remained effective.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities

Transaction

Details of compliance by the Directors with the Model Code are set forth
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 42 of this Annual
Report.

Continuing Connected Transaction

Particulars of Transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a
non-exempt continuing connected transaction (as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 December 2016). A supply
contract dated 20 December 2016 was entered into between Hangzhou
Huasheng Accessories Company Limited (“Huasheng Accessories”) and
various members of the Group for a period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019, whereby Huasheng Accessories has undertaken to
supply to members of the Group the required plastic bags and hangers
at such prices which are not higher than the prices offered to
independent third parties after taking into consideration the prevailing
market rates for providing similar products from time to time. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate purchase of plastic bags
and hangers by the Group from Huasheng Accessories amounted to
HK$7.1 million (2017: HK$6.7 million) which was below the annual cap
of HK$25.5 million.
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A factory lease agreement dated 1 June 2017 (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 29 March 2018) (the “Factory Lease
Agreement”) and a machinery lease agreement dated 1 June 2017 (the
“Machinery Lease Agreement”) were entered into between Dingyuan
(Hangzhou) Textile Technology Limited (“Dingyuan”) and China Ting
Woollen Textile Company Limited (“Huabeina”), a member of the Group.
Under the Factory Lease Agreement, Huabeina agreed to lease to
Dingyuan a portion of a factory building for a period from 1 June 2017
to 31 December 2019. The annual rental for the leased factory will be
determined by the actual gross area provided by Huabeina to Dingyuan
with rental payment is fixed at RMB120 per square meter. Under the
Machinery Lease Agreement, Huabeina agreed to lease the textile waste
processing machinery to Dingyuan and the actual rental for the leased
machinery is fixed at RMB5.5 million (approximately HK$6.3 million) for
a period from 1 June 2017 to 31 December 2019. Such leases were
terminated in August 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
aggregate amount receivable by Huabeina from Dingyuan under the
leases was HK$4.7 million (2017: HK$4.9 million).

Information on Connected Person

Huasheng Accessories

Huasheng Accessories is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability. Huasheng Accessories is owned as to 25% by Hong Kong
Fuhowe and as to 75% by Mr. MO Jiangtao, who is the brother-in-law
of Ms. ZHOU Shi Min. Ms. ZHOU is the spouse of Mr. DING Jianer, an
executive Director, and thus, a connected person as defined under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. Therefore, Huasheng Accessories is an
associate of a connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 1.01
of the Listing Rules.

Dingyuan

Dingyuan is a company established in the PRC with limited liability.
Dingyuan is owned as to 2.5% by FBZREZABR QA and as to
97.5% by fMZ45 AR &6 A R A 7] which is owned by Ms. SHEN Xuan.
Ms. SHEN is the niece of Mr. TING Man Yi, the Chairman and an
executive Director and thus, a deemed connected person as defined
under Rule 14A.21(1)(b) of the Listing Rules.

Confirmations

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above non-
exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group and have
confirmed that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the respective cap amounts set out in the
relevant agreements referred to above.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’'s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 59-61 of the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph
14A. 56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Parties Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

The purchases of accessories from Huasheng Accessories, being the
significant related party transactions of the Group, constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The disclosure requirements in
respect of these continuing connected transactions have been complied
with in accordance with the Listing Rules. Save for the aforementioned,
other related party transactions as set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements did not constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, and has adopted terms of
reference which are in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review financial information of the
Group, make recommendation on the external auditor and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and
to provide comments and advice to the Board. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board
TING Man Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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To the Shareholders of China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 197, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As discussed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$289 million (“FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran”) as at 31 December 2018
with respect to Zhejiang Haoran Property Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Haoran”), representing the Group’s equity interests in, shareholder’s
loans and advances granted to Zhejiang Haoran. The Group is continuing
to seek for recovery of a portion of the shareholder’s loan and advance
to Zhejiang Haoran and to enforce its right as a shareholder of Zhejiang
Haoran to access the books and records of Zhejiang Haoran through
legal proceedings.

In assessing the fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31
December 2018, management adopted the adjusted net asset value
(“Adjusted NAV") approach to estimate the fair value of FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran, which was described in notes 4(a) and 16(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements. However, the Group was unable to
obtain any financial information of Zhejiang Haoran as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2018 due to the court judgement and further
appeals. As such, the fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31
December 2018 was estimated by management using the Adjusted NAV
approach based on Zhejiang Haoran’s financial information as at 31
December 2016, which was its latest financial information available to
the Group. A number of assumptions were adopted using Zhejiang
Haoran’s financial information as at 31 December 2016 to arrive at the
estimated fair value as at 31 December 2018, the details of which were
described in note 16(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, having obtained advice from the Group’s legal counsel and
after considering the merits and basis of the legal proceedings between
Zhejiang Haoran and the Group, despite of the appeals as referred in
note 16(ii) to the consolidated financial statements lodged by the Group
being dismissed by the relevant court, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group will be successful in the forthcoming legal
proceedings. Thus, the directors of the Company considered that it is
appropriate the assumptions and basis applied in the fair value
assessment of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran that such financial assets will
be realised in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2018.
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As at the date of this report, the outcomes of legal proceedings
between Zhejiang Haoran and the Group are uncertain. We were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences we considered necessary
to assess management’s valuation and classification of the FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran as at 31 December 2018, including a written opinion
from the Group’s legal counsel in relation to the likelihood of success of
the legal proceedings and the probabilities of any other outcomes, the
latest financial information of Zhejiang Haoran, a valuation from an
independent valuer on the relevant property owned by Zhejiang Haoran,
and direct access to the management of Zhejiang Haoran to assess the
appropriateness of the financial information, the assumptions and the
basis adopted by management in their assessment of the fair value of
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran. Given the scope limitation, there were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could perform to determine
whether any adjustments to the carrying value of the FVPL in Zhejiang
Haoran as at 31 December 2018 were necessary, and whether the
classification of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as current assets was
appropriate.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section, key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessment of entrusted loans

o Impairment of trade receivables

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Key Audit Matters

BEETTEE

Impairment assessment of entrusted loans
ZALE 8 E TG

Refer to notes 2.13(d), 4(b) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements

2GR E MK 2 M 552.13(d) ~ 4(b) K15

The Group entered into two secured entrusted loans, Entrusted
Loan A and B, with principals of RMB30 million and RMB130
million, respectively, through its lending agents, Bank of
Communications Limited, Zhejiang Branch (“BOCOM") and
Ningbo Bank Corporation (“NBC"). As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying value of the Entrusted Loans A and B, net of
provision for impairment, are HK$18 million and HK$148
million, respectively. The borrowers of the Entrusted Loans A
and B (“Borrowers A and B”) have both failed to settle the
interests and principals in accordance with the agreed payment
schedules since 2014 and subsequently filed voluntary
bankruptcy. BOCOM and NBC, as the lending agents acting on
behalf of the Group, then entered into civil claim mediation
agreements with the Borrowers A and B under the People’s
Court of Yuhang District (“Court”), Hangzhou, during the year
ended 31 December 2014. According to the mediation
agreements, BOCOM and NBC have the legal rights to claim
and priority on the claim over the pledged collaterals. The
bankruptcy proceedings have been ongoing since early 2015.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EPNESFTNMNEERRETSHE

We obtained and reviewed the entrusted loan
agreements for both Entrusted Loans A and B, which
stated the lender’s right in case of default.
BMEEFIEZEETERARBNZRE R H=  H
HES B R R R A Z R o

We obtained and inspected the certificate of other’s
right of the pledged assets which showed that the
properties and land were pledged to BOCOM and NBC
respectively. We also reviewed the civil claim mediation
agreements issued by the Court which stated that the
entrusted banks of the Group have the legal rights to
claim and priority on the claim for the pledged
collaterals. We noted it is consistent with management
representation that no other creditor has any priority
right over such pledged assets based on the audit
evidence obtained.
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Key Audit Matters

BERETER

Management assessed the recoverability of Entrusted Loans A
and B by engaging an independent valuer to perform valuation
of the pledged collaterals, including certain properties pledged
for Entrusted Loan A and a parcel of land located in Hangzhou
pledged for Entrusted Loan B, using direct comparison
approach. Key underlying parameters used in the valuation are
the recent selling prices of comparable market transactions.
EREEBTEBIAEMEEEMNERR (RFEFTZ
FRERANE TYRRER FEREEFBOLAMME —1E L
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We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the entrusted
loans balances and the significant judgements made by
management in estimating the fair value of the pledged
collaterals.
HMEIZBOREREXERRENREREEREHFTE
HAR Y o A T EE B E K I
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN ESHNAEERRETSE

We performed land search for the pledged collaterals
to confirm the ownership and existence as at 31
December 2018.

RZZBE-N\FE+ZA=+—H ZMHALERNHER
mETT LM EMARBAERREFEL -

We obtained from management the legal opinion
issued by an external PRC lawyer as the audit evidence
to support the Group's legal right and priority over the
claim of the collaterals pledged for Entrusted Loans A
and B through its lending agents. We have also
evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the lawyer.
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In addition, we held discussions with the lawyer as
well as the trustee of the bankruptcy to understand
the legality of the Group’s priority right and the latest
development of the bankruptcy proceedings to
understand if there is any foreseen difficulties in
exercising the Group’s right.
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We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer. We involved our
internal valuation specialists in our discussion with
management and independent valuer to understand
the rationale of the valuation method and the
parameters used to assess the fair value of the
collaterals, based on which we assessed the
appropriateness of such methodology and parameters.
We also compared the recent selling prices of
comparable market transactions with the market data,
including the latest selling prices of comparable land
and properties’ sale transactions and the local property
price index.
BMTETBLGEEMOERE a2 REBM - FM
EABEEER2ETREERE KRBV GERZ R
NEBEREFERABEREZERNRER2% - UEFTE
ERm A FE ER I RAFETZERERZ
HzAEE BRMNERTSHEBRERAE LERTS
RGZHZOEE BREAMEALRTMEVEHERS
ZEMEBREMYEBEIEE -

We consider the impairment assessment of the
entrusted loans was supportable by the available
evidence.

BMBRERERZBEFEXABEERZ X -



Key Audit Matters

BEEITEE

Impairment of trade receivables

JEW B 5 B 500% (8

Refer to notes 3.1(d), 4(b) and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

BLHRE VBRI E ) - 4b)&R15

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$529 million and provision for impairment of
trade receivables of HK$66 million.
RZZBE-NF+A=+—H EKEZEFRREBESERIE
#RS529B BB L M B E 5 BR SR B o6 BB T

Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on trade
receivables.

BREDREVEZRFINGFERAAEEBEN R -

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying
expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.

ERBAE GIRPEEEEREL HE o HE X H3E MBI H#
dimEEREERRERKRIENEF A O E KRR BB
HEHRRERE RREEBEETRBE S HEELXRASEERR
R R AT Al e 0 AT BRI RO FIBR FE WK IR AR B - ZEEEF M
B H IR B N AR A B DA K S R Uk Rk TE 9 AR E AR T AR RE PR
REMEEEBEEMMA S -

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 12 months
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
RHEEEREDERBET —_BAANEENBEGEREE
MET  WAFABARBRELAELEN e F&
HEWVWRIBR N ZBEBERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables.
HMARUESEREEBRAUREETERKE 5 EFNE
HEEFERBRS2MA RAB MBI @ -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3L % BRI

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EMNESFNANEERARETSHE

We understood and validated the credit control
procedures performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
receivables.
BHMNTHRERRBEEENTHNEERHRER 8EFH
B8 PR TE HR AR 5 2 A BF R B R Y B KUK TE DA R BT i PR U
HEEBREEBREENRERF -

We tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices.
HMBEZEREEHEEEZTMEAARKE ZRKRIE
SLH) SEREME o

We tested on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank receipts.
HMERBTRIBEHBANAERE SRR EBEE

B -

We obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern from the
past 12 months, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the relevant
public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in
management’s assessment.

BMERGSEREHEUSIERBEEBRE BN
e HZMERBET_EANBAELAEEN HEF
BB RANMSRRERNER(BREEER P
MBEERABRANARARER) REEEENGHMA
BESE R Z S AT E SR A B TS R ER
I B 7E B IR FE P MERT A4 o

We consider the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.

BHMRA BEEEREEENTREHREEBEERE N
R W 13 1 BT R M & R H I BE 4 DA T A FE AR AE ST HE ©
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
the fair value and the classification as current assets of the FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3L % BRI
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kit Vi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEeEBEEBREX

As at 31 December 2018

R=ZF—-N\F+=A=+—AH

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 FHET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WERFZE 6 469,646 568,050
Investment properties REME 7 363,711 88,721
Land use rights = 3th {56 A A 8 76,384 70,334
Interests in associates REERNR 2= 10 1,846 1,806
Interests in joint ventures REERRZHEDR 11 14,690 3,307
Intangible assets EmVEE 12 10,623 22,301
Promissory note R 15 — 34,978
Prepayments T8 14 R E 15 15,526 —
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTEHRHEE 21 78,463 80,862
1,030,889 870,359
Current assets EEE
Inventories e 13 995,661 944,406
Trade and other receivables FE W B 5 BR 7 K H M FE I
IE 15 746,107 727,645
Tax recoverable A] g B 7 18 9,939 15,403
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ES/REE — 286,002
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEIRERERP
profit or loss (“FVPL") REZEREE 16 304,269 19,967
Promissory note N E 15 38,124 1,936
Entrusted loans ZRER 15 166,022 174,443
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 17 50,957 28,939
Fixed deposits TE B 17 3K 17 20,553 —
Cash and bank balances e RIBTTER 17 448,547 469,447
2,780,179 2,668,188
Assets held for sale RELERE 18 8,674 —
2,788,853 2,668,188
Total assets EERAR 3,819,742 3,538,547

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

bl
a

=

R

EREEERERAA

—E-N\FER

71



Consolidated Balance Sheet
REEERABER

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZT—/\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-NF —E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Fff 2% FExT FAET
EQUITY Ew
Equity attributable to equity holders ZAXQTKREZFE A
of the Company FEiL =
Share capital & A< 19 209,982 209,982
Reserves (ER] 20 2,401,303 2,315,954
2,611,285 2,525,936
Non-controlling interests FEFMER 28,724 23,325
Total equity ERAE 2,640,009 2,549,261
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Deferred income tax liabilities BREFSEHRAE 21 83,136 21,752
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables ENE SRR R
H i & {5 FR 22 694,161 707,889
Contract liabilities ERNAaE 5 29,534 —
Bank borrowings |ATIE R 23 367,057 247,271
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT ISR & & 5,845 12,374
1,096,597 967,534
Total liabilities EEHAE 1,179,733 989,286
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 3,819,742 3,538,547

The financial statements on pages 71 to 197 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

FENBVENUBHRER_Z—NLF=A
Zt-HBREZSHE  YHAUTEERAEE -

TING Man Yi TING Hung Yi
TRREXE THRREE
Director Director
EF 2%
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ H78F 1978 2 7t & 45 & B 75 M 3k & A AL
financial statements. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

VA—ANGF AN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-Z

/\‘/T\ /|

2|l A K

—NF+ZA=+—RALFE

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue WA 5 2,274,818 2,335,429
Cost of sales 84 & AR A 28 (1,711,636) (1,670,143)
Gross profit EAX 563,182 665,286
Other income H i A 24 21,476 28,718
Other gains, net H W 2505 58 25 52,115 12,849
Net impairment loss provided for financial 3t & B & & 5t 12 AR (E
assets &5 18 R R 15 (19,025) —
Selling, marketing and distribution costs 8% - % 4 & 9 $5 Ak A& 28 (258,431) (277,417)
Administrative expenses THRAX 28 (310,324) (312,478)
Reversal of impairment on loans to an BERT—HBERAFZ
associate 1B 5 2] 10(b) — 41,135
Operating profit FEE =i 48,993 158,093
Finance income AME KA 26 7,342 11,346
Finance costs Bl & A 26 (10,603) (8,668)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates ol =0: NI bz
(B8 10(a) 146 (632)
Share of losses of joint ventures DiEEERREBE 11 (4,603) (2,791)
Profit before income tax R P 18 Bt A % R 41,275 157,348
Income tax expense FrigBi M = 27 (14,067) (16,901)
Profit for the year F R Fl 27,208 140,447
Other comprehensive income Eﬂtéﬁlﬁll
ltems that may be reclassified to AREFSHEEEEN
profit or loss 18 B
Currency translation differences BEEmE xR (144,098) 172,314
Fair value gains on transfers of owner- ERMEERIEEME
occupied properties to investment ZAFERE MR
properties, net of tax IR 207,638 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to profit RS —HEEARE
or loss upon deregistration of an ERERFERER
associate — (20,278)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax HMEEMA-MRAR | .. 63540 | ] 168,988
Total comprehensive income 2HEHBAEE 90,748 309,435
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ #78% 1978 Z Ml i B Z E48 & B 1% R = A9 48 1K
financial statements. o -
ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEZHBEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZEZZ—/\F+=-A=1+—HILLFE

2018 2017
o —E—t5
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FEx FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT ALESGZ®F,
(B58) :
Equity holders of the Company RATREREEA 21,045 149,689
Non-controlling interests FE 22 i) 1 4 2 6,163 (9,242)
27,208 140,447
Total comprehensive income/(loss) DTATEARZZE
attributable to: WA (E8) 88 :
Equity holders of the Company RATREREEA 85,349 316,371
Non-controlling interests I 122 i) 14 4 2 5,399 (6,936)
90,748 309,435
Earnings per share for profit FRAEATREZEA
attributable to equity holders of the E{5EANzEREF
Company during the year (expressed (LA BB 481l 2 3)
in HK cents per share)
— basic — BEK 30 1.00 7.13
— diluted — #E 30 1.00 7.13

The notes on pages 78 to 197
financial statements.

are an integral part of these consolidated

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZEZ=T

;\\/ \ |:|

In Equity

Y L
2 m )RR

—NF+ZA=+—RALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAAREREAER
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
FEH
BE  RAEE  HtRE  RERF @zt EE  RERER
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2018 RZB-NF
=Jij=F 209,982 978,251 485,541 852,162 2,525,936 23,325 2,549,261
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year ERE A - - - 21,045 21,045 6,163 27,208
Other comprehensive income ~ H2EWA
Currency translation differences ~ SHBEEE 20 - - (143,334) - (143,334) (764)  (144,098)
Revaluation surplus upon transfers BB £EAREN
of owner-occupied properties o~ £% 7 EfE B
investment properties, net of tax 1B 78 - - 207,638 - 207,638 - 207,638
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWALHE - — 64,304 21,045 85,349 5,399 90,748
Transaction with owners BREAZRS
Profit appropriation a7 i - — 5,300 (5.300) - - -
Total transaction with equity EAAFREZEA
holders of the Company ZRHER - — 5,300 (5.300) — - -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
+ZA=+-H 209,982 978,251 555,145 867,907 2,611,285 28,724 2,640,009
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated — 278E 1978 Z M it /2 S 4R & B 75 Mk 69 4 K
financial statements. D o
ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEERZHWME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZEZZ—/\F+=-A=1+—HILLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAIRERE AR

Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
JEFRRHI1E
kx  RibEE  EtEE  REEF b En  BERfR

Note  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
M TAL TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL TEL

At 1 January 2017 R=B-t&

-A-A 209,982 978,251 316,397 764,149 2,268,779 30,261 2,299,040
Comprehensive income EEHA
Profit for the year FERET = = = 149,689 149,689 (9,242) 140,447

Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EHKA
Currency translation differences ~ EH¥HEZH 20 — — 170,008 — 170,008 2,306 172,314
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of & TERNEEA

certain portion of an owner- REMER ER

occupied property to investment & # ¢ MR HE

property, net of tax = = 16,952 = 16,952 = 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to M —HHEAF

profit or loss upon BENESREE

deregistration of an associate B = = (20,278) = (20,278) - (20,278)
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWALHE = = 166,682 149,689 316,371 (6,936) 309,435

Transactions with owners BEFAZRS

Profit appropriation B DR = — 2,462 (2,462) — — —
2016 final dividend paid ZE-AERERE
S = = = (17,848) (17,848) = (17,848)
2017 interim and special dividends =% —+F & H5 5
paid REZH = = = (41,366) (41,366) — (41,366)

Total transactions with equity EAAFREFEA

holders of the Company PELE L] = = 2,462 (61,676) (59,214) = (59,214)
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&
+ZA=1-H 209,982 978,251 485,541 852,162 2,525,936 23,325 2,549,261

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ F78F1978 2 Wi AZ 4R A M RE A
financial statements. it
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=IVAN
AR

=R &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ=ZT—/\F+=-A=+—HIFE

mE R

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tfF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities ZEZBHRERE
Net cash generated from operations KEmBReFE 32(a) 4,693 24,842
Interest paid 21 A (10,603) (8,668)
Income tax paid B FTEH (31,075) (50,149)
Net cash used in operating activities LEEESAERESFE (36,985) (33,975)
Cash flows from investing activities ®RETHREHRE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEREZE
equipment 6 (70,817) (53,499)
Prepayments for purchases of property, BEE®E WMELEED
plant and equipment TE T RRIE (15,526) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & ¥ % « BE K &R #&
and equipment FT{8 518 32(b) 7,334 8,180
Compensation from requisition and M- BEREHEAR LT
demolition of property, plant and 5 BB R ARBR A
equipment and land use rights Ee 32(c) 40,349 =
Repayment of loans from an associate —EBERAREEER 10(b) — 250,489
Compensation received from available-for- ] f i & & @b & &= A7 13
sale financial assets wHiE 16(ii) — 10,052
Investment in an associate REE R RRE 10 — (658)
Investment in a joint venture RELRRINKRE 11 (17,781) —
(Increase)/decrease in fixed deposits with RHIFR BB =18 7 ~ FH
initial term of over three months FROGEM) R (20,553) 4,800
Increase in pledged deposits B 3 17 5L (22,018) (6,546)
Interest received SR EES 6,132 5,704
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE(FTR) FTRE
investing activities EE (92,880) 218,522
Cash flows from financing activities ®MEZFHRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERATBRIE 267,829 119,399
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (145,258) (158,753)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the B fIARQGEREAE A
Company fi% B — (59,214)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEFBME (FTA)
financing activities & F 8 32(d) 122,571 (98,568)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBELEEER
cash equivalents (R2) /EmiEsE (7,294) 85,979
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January WR—A—HBZR&NRE
£fE1ERE 469,447 367,954
Exchange difference X =5 (13,606) 15,514
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—RHzHR&
31 December kR&EEIERE 17 448,547 469,447

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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General information

China Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2005 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
engaged in manufacturing and sale of garments and property
investment.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 15 December 2005 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting

policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of FVPL and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value and assets held for sale which are
carried at fair value less cost to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for

the first time for the financial year beginning on or

after 1 January 2018:

Amendment to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendment to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK (IFRIC) 22

Amendments to HKFRSs

First time adoption of
HKFRS

Classification and
measurement of share-
based payment
transactions

Insurance contracts —
Applying HKFRS 9
financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 insurance
contracts

Financial instruments

Revenue from contracts
with customers

Investments in associates
and joint ventures

Transfers of investment
property

Foreign currency
transactions and advance
consideration

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs standards
2014-2016 cycle

RA SR M

EXETTHEBE (&)

fm BLE ()

KEFRAR 2 H 5] RAZME
FTERR 2B

VAT #R] B 8B 5T 2 22 Rl Je
BERAEER -2 —\F—
H—BRZ&RFERN P RFEE
BIRERA

BEEUBRE BRENEE
AR 15 sl E Al
CHEN)

BERUBRE UWROHIAFXH
A B 565255 ZoEREE
CHEN)

BERTEHRE RBREH — &
% Bl 4%, BEREBRE
(1BEIA) % B B45 R

BREXNERE
BH RS
% Bl E95R
SRIA

ERIEHRE ¢BMIA
% Il 95K

ERTBHRE TEAEHKA
% Bl 51555

BEBGIEN RBENAE
2857 NRIMRE
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BB RR BEREME

405k
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A MWK

B &

2 Summary of significant accounting

2 EAREFHEBEGE)

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBEEE(E)
(a) New and amended standards and (a) AEBEFRHZFHETREE
interpretations adopted by the Group ETEAIR#FE ()
(Continued)
The Group had to change its accounting policies and R ER 4 25 78 B 71 3 5 22 BI| 289
make certain retrospective adjustments following the S B B iR S 2RI E155%
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (see Note 2.2). % AEENESESITBR
Most of the other new and amended standards and RELETERARE (R
interpretations listed above did not have any impact 22)° EXFRS 2 REHEA
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are ] RS TR R 2R &
not expected to significantly affect the current or HUATHMERNSEE T
future periods. A2 - HTEE T & ¥ AR Hi ok
ARHBEEEATE -
(b) New and amended standards and (b) 5K ERA 2 FET R AZAME 5T
interpretations not yet adopted EAIRZRE
Effective for RUTREH
annual periods ZEBRZ
beginning on or after FERRER
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019 B (BREKRERE MEHTREE —S-hE-HF-H
Z58)513% SHEMAE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative 1 January 2019 ERMBRERANESS REEXRBLR —2-n4%-A-A
compensation (CHEY BHE
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 BRNBREEE165 BE “E-N¥-A-A
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or 1 January 2019 EAQHENE19%  HEEY KR ZT-hE-A-A
settlement (B3T%) B
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates and joint 1 January 2019 ERQHEENT REERAARE ZE-hnF-A-AH
ventures (B3TA) ERANKRS
i
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2019 BB RS 2R EENEREE —T-NF-HF—H
standards 2015-2017 cycle (BETA) H-Z-nfF
EIEtF
BHZEE
Wit
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations 1 January 2020 BERARBRERREN EBAMH “Z-ZF-f—H
(B3T7)
Conceptual framework for Revised conceptual framework for 1 January 2020 E-\FHBREHS BBEREHSE —2-F5-A-A
financial reporting 2018 financial reporting S e VA H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021 EERBREENSE7E RRAH —E--£-f-H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an  To be determined BRHBREEFI0% REEAERE #E
and HKAS 28 investor, associate o joint venture REBCHENFS DAAHAEA
tHCHES) AzAtER
IARE

China Ting Group

Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

None of the above new standards and amendments
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,

except the following set out below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term

and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group has reviewed all of the Group’s leasing
arrangements over the last year in light of the new
lease accounting rules in HKFRS 16. The standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group's

operating leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$22,792,000. Of these commitments,
approximately HK$10,160,000 relate to short-term
leases or low value leases which will
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in the

consolidated profit or loss.

2

RA SR M

EXETTHEBE (&)

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

2 Summar¥cof significant accounting

policies

ontinued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

For the remaining lease commitments, the Group
expects to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$11,941,000 and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$11,711,000 (after adjustments for
prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised
as at 31 December 2018) on 1 January 2019. Overall
net assets will be approximately HK$230,000 higher,
and net current assets will be HK$4,184,000 lower
due to the presentation of a portion of the liability as
a current liability.

The Group does not foresee any material impact on
the net profit of the Group as a result of adoption
of HKFRS 16.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and
hence the Group does not expect any significant
impact on the financial statements. However, some
additional disclosures will be required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use
assets for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been
applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EAEFTBESE(E)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 22 BIFBEX#EE

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 AN M SR AR RE AN B A B 7 R 2 A

“Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from FoRIeMITEIRBEMBRESE

Contracts with Customers” on the Group’s consolidated AIEISRIE R AN WA IHAREEH

financial statements. HEMBRENTZE -

(a) Impact on the consolidated financial (a) BHEEBHBEHRANEZE
statements
As explained in notes below, HKFRS 9 was generally TN XML - NEEE —
adopted without restating comparative information. RRER 405 78 B 75 3R &5 2RI B9
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from 5% BN MmE L AR o
the new impairment rules are therefore not restated MREEREENER S ER
in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December RAEALRTER=_ZT—tF
2017, but are recognised in the opening consolidated +—BA=1+—BHNEGREEESR
balance sheet on 1 January 2018. BERPES  BEER=Z—N

F-HAB—BROENREEES
BERFER -

The following tables show the adjustments TREFIERZBEB KA #
recognised for each individual line item. Line items REFAE - RKMARZEER
that were not affected by the changes have not been ZWIEE - Bt - FTEERN N
included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals BT R4 & B EAIB B ATIR 4t
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers WEBRENAE - FEAEN
provided. The adjustments are explained in more SRR T XER -

detail by standard below.

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
ZT-tF —E-N\F
+=B=1+-8 -A-H
As originally
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
AEMBRE BAEUKERE

GEEERER(BE) M 23 A B9 KR E 155, &KE5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TER TER TER

Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 85 30 R E o FE M FUE 727,645 (17,528) - 710,117
Available-for-sale financial assets IHHEEREE 286,002 (286,002) — -

FVPL BRATEIIGRERRRTREL

CREE 19,967 303,530 = 323,497
Total assets EELE 1,033,614 = = 1,033,614

Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ENEZRAREMENHE 707,889 = (29.912) 677,977
Contract liabilities ANERE = = 29,912 29,912
Total liabilities BEAE 707,889 = = 707,889

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR 83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that

relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, instruments,

impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

derecognition of financial

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from
1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.13 below.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative figures
have not been restated.

(1) Classification and measurement
On 1 January 2018 (the date of
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management assessed which business models

initial

apply to the financial assets it held and has
reclassified its investments in Zhejiang Haoran
previously classified as available-for-sale and
loans and receivables into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

EXETTHEBE (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 BIFBX#ZE (&)
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (b) TEHBREERFIY Z
T A ()
(i) Classification and measurement () DHER;=E(E)
(Continued)
The main effects resulting from this BENOBEENEEY
reclassification are as follows: Z2MF
Available-for-
sale financial Other
assets receivables FVPL Total
BRATENE
THEELR EBEERTR
EE HUEWRE EBEzemEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHL FHT FHT
Closing balance at 31 December ~ WZZE—+F+ZA=+—
2017 — HKAS 39 BNERESR —BF8
FHE R E39% 286,002 17,528 = 303,530
Reclassified available-for-sale financial #a &t tiE & REEEH S
assets 1o FVPL BERAFEIIGESR
BRRTRBZGHAE (286,002) = 286,002 =
Reclassified other receivables to FVPL #E i B HEEH S E
BRATEIREERR
MREEREE = (17,528) 17,528 =
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R=Z—\E—fF—AKE
— HKFRS 9 Ntk — BARBRE
EIF9% - - 303,530 303,530

The Group elected to present in the profit or
loss changes in the fair value of its 29%
equity interest in Zhejiang Haoran that was
previously classified as available-for-sale
because management plans to dispose such
investment in the foreseeable future. As a
result, an asset with a fair value of
HK$43,617,000 was reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to FVPL on 1 January
2018.

EREEERERAA

AEEEERERZY
RIS HERIHEERN
29% AT & RIRBER 1A
FTEEEH RAEHEE
FTEIRATREREESR
BIE - Fit AFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEWMBBRWE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

The shareholder’s loans and advances granted
to Zhejiang Haoran were reclassified from
available-for-sale and other receivables to FVPL
as the contractual cash flows under such
financial assets do not represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount.

There was no impact on retained earnings as
at 1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has only one type of financial
assets, which is financial assets carried at
amortised cost, that is subject to HKFRS 9's
new expected credit loss model.

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for
such class of assets. The impact of the change
in impairment methodology on the Group's

retained earnings and equity is not material.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables, except for those
individually significant trade receivables or trade
receivables at default which are to be tested
individually. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the invoice dates.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption (if any) was
recognised in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018
and that comparatives was not restated.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of garments and property investment.

The Group's obligations to provide a refund for
faulty products are under the standard warranty
terms. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large
volume and low value of each individual product, the
amount of products returned were immaterial. It is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was
recognised. The validity of this assumption and the
estimated amount of returns are reassessed at the

end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

2

EXETTHERBE (&)

22 EIBER#EE(E)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (c) BEHBHZEREISH
Customers (Continued) EEEAWA ()
The Group does not incur costs to fulfil contracts AEBEEBITEBELOHEIL
which should be capitalised as they relate directly to BEEKN(ETERLE) T
the contracts, generate resources used in satisfying RAEEEAENERER EE
the contract and are expected to be recovered. RARBITENZERKIERE
e o
The Group does not have any contracts where the REBEWEBAEERERE
period between the transfer of the promised goods FTEFERFPNRZERBER
to the customer and payment by the customer —FEMEMEL - At - A&
exceeds one year. Thus, the Group does not adjust B EpnEEREEERARE
any of the transaction prices for the time value of AR HE1E -
money.
As a result, other than certain reclassification of Hit - REEHBEETET
contract liabilities, the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not BEHOBIN HREEREE
result in any net impact on the profit for the period, P& ONE ON RS
as the timing of revenue recognition on sales of T BWEHRAEAMBRESE
products and rental income is not changed. BIl 55 1557 3 4 39 B (9 /0 % K B
EERERE -
The following adjustment was made to the amounts TREIFXEABHR(C=T
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at the —N\NE—A—B)REGEREE
date of initial application (1 January 2018): BERERANSEEENSA
B’
Trade and
other Contract
payables liabilities Total
ERESEK
% H e
HRIE aREaE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHT FH&T
Closing balance at RZZT—tF+=A
31 December 2017 — =+ BWERER
HKAS 18 — ARG ERE 18
Ui 707,889 — 707,889
Reclassified other payables to HEMENRIBEEH D
contract liabilities HEAGHEE (29,912) 29,912 —
Opening balance at 1 January RZZE—-N\E—-—HA—H
2018 — HKFRS 15 MENEER — BB
B 75 4 & 22 B 51557 677,977 29,912 707,889
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CRURLE S

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated profit or loss (Note 2.11).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred assets. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that

do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair
consideration paid and the

acquired of the carrying amount of net assets

value of any
relevant share

of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. It means the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS IRER M

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’'s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated

profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investments in the
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associates and its
carrying values and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of losses of associates” in the consolidated profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses in
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who make strategic decisions.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company's presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars (“US$").

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
functional

into
currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive
recognised in other comprehensive income.

income are
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were previously recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

2040 years or shorter of
remaining lease term

Leasehold land and buildings

or useful life

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Vehicles 3-10 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings, costs of
plant and machinery, and borrowing costs arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during the year of
construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to respective property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group’s entities, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash
outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.
Some of those outflows are recognised as a liability,
including finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified
as investment property; others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss, as part of the “other gains, net”.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For
this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified
as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.11 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in interests in associates and
annually for impairment as part of the overall
balance. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs") for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.

(b) Trademarks

Trademarks are shown at historical cost. Trademarks
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10

years.

(c) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected life

of the customer relationship of 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRA S R R MY RE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Intangible assets (Continued)

(d) Exclusive supply rights

Exclusive supply rights represent the rights to sell
pre-determined amount of garments to customers
over certain periods of time pursuant to the legal
binding agreements entered into between the Group
and the customers. Exclusive supply rights are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Exclusive supply rights are
amortised over the unexpired periods of the
agreements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

= those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

2

EXETTHERBE (&)

2.1

2.12

2.13

BIELEE (H])

(d) BHREEE
BRUEERERIEANSEEE
PRI EERNRN ZH#ER
ETHRARTEHERELE
TEBRZ R ZRER - BRHE
&R 32 AR AN R R A 8 T AR ]
AR RS - BRI EREE
B B8 o R JE 2 H IR
B

FERMEEZRE

& BE T A (R PR A B SR el R AT ({2 R
ZEEBANIREY UEBFET
—RBREAHA - EHREARER
WEERAR VK EREER - A
BRI ZSEEEZRE - REKBRE
122 4 i T LR 38 L T e [ B (D
BE R ER SR A EE R EE
MEZBEE) 2 ZEHER - el
MEMmMS  BERAUBILEMNRS
MEZ RIKKF 5 - BB IAS
i 3R ORE 2 3F © B & A TR %
& A BApt AT pe B MRl (EEFT B -

(a) &

B-Z-N\F—-A—Bi &
SEBEESMEESBUTE

— HERQATFEIERGE
Hth 2EPAREBERK
TRB)ZEBMEE:
K

—  REERATIRZEE
AE -

DERIARNALEEESHE
ENEBREARRERENS

#I K o



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (the “FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M mARME

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

()

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which an entity classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated profit or
loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in “other gains, net”. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

— FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI| are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(d) for
further details.

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, at fair
value through profit or loss, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(1) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “loan receivables”, and

cash equivalents” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

“cash and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

(ir)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the consolidated
profit or loss within “other gains, net” in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “operating activities” as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.18

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 3.1(d) for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

2

EXETTHERBE (&)

2.15

2.16

2.18

rE
FERKRAREAZRFERE 2R
18 % 51 Bk o A AS 62 B N4 S 190K
EoHKmMERRMZKABIER
ME - BETE Bt EERKA KA
MAEELTERX (B REEERR
H) TREEEKA A ZRFE
HEAREBEREDZMHAER
HERZZEHER

FE W B 5 BR X

B ZRERTIN —REBBRET
HREEERMBRETLPZEE - WE
WE ZRARIEIN —F AT (B
REBK-—REEBHZRERME) K
BB SEARBEE - BRI HE
SISIERBEE -

U B 2 B8R R A 5 1R B R AR 0 ) (B
SRER RIFLEZEEARE
K5 BIRAFEFE - AEERFE
fEU B 28R B R T ELE B3R
EmE Bt ERERERF KX
REHEKATE - FRAEERER
BERFANEHRIERANEBRE
BRFBHE - T ERF2HM T
3.1(d) °

ReRBEELZEEEH

EmeRen8RikT RERR
CEEEEREFRRES BHEA
RBzZRTERREHARS=1EA
KA T2 EMERBERERRE -

R A

TR B AERD - BITHRAE
BREEERE ZIEEKNAERERT
FIRAEFIAZ IR (HKREA) -



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
recognised
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

value is in the consolidated statement of

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The pension plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and the relevant Group's entities.
The Group pays contributions to the pension plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis which are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
make further payments required
contributions have been paid, even if the plans do

once the

not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior years.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

shown net of value-added tax,

returns and discounts and

after eliminating sales within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales

Sales are recognised when control of the garment
has transferred, being when the goods are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
customers, and either customers have accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts (if any). Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using
the expected value method, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund
liability (included in trade and other payables) is
recognised for expected volume discounts payable to
customers in relation to sales made until the end of
the reporting period. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with credit
terms that are consistent with market practice. The
Group's obligation to provide a refund for faulty
products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a provision.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales
(Continued)

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, a contract asset is recognised. If the
payments exceed the services rendered or products
delivered, a contract liability is recognised.

Sales of goods — retailing of branded
fashion apparel

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are in
cash or by credit cards, through internet payment
service providers or collected by department stores/
online retailers on behalf of the Group. The recorded
revenue includes credit card fees payable for the
transaction. Such credit card fees are included in
selling, marketing and distribution costs. It is the
Group's policy to sell its products to the end
customer with a right of return. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for such
returns at the time of sale. Because the number of
goods returned has been steady for years, it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised over the period
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income on assets leased out under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains or losses on these assets as part of “other gains, net”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes is presented as “finance income”
where it is earned. Any other interest income is included in
"other income”.

Government grants

Government grants are subsidies on export of textile and
clothing and assistance on certain projects approved by local
government. Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants
be received and the Group will
attached conditions.

will comply with all

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk,

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),

credit risk,

concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Sales are made to overseas customers as well as
the customers in the PRC while purchases are mainly
from suppliers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
functional currencies of the Group’s entities in Hong
Kong and the PRC are US$ and Renminbi (“RMB"),
respectively.

Foreign exchange risks arise on monetary assets and
liabilities being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency. The Group’s entities in the
PRC have monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US$, which is not their functional currencies. The
Group does not speculate on foreign currencies.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2017: 5%) against the US$
with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year and equity holders’ equity would have been
approximately HK$5,617,000 (2017: HK$7,196,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated
monetary assets and liabilities held by the Group's
entities in the PRC.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain listed equity securities held by the
Group are classified in the consolidated balance sheet
as FVPL. Result for the year would increase/decrease
as a result of gains/losses on listed equity securities
classified as FVPL. At 31 December 2018, if there had
been a 5% (2017: 5%) increase/decrease in the
market value of FVPL with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$770,000 (2017: HK$998,000)
higher/lower.

The Group has not entered into derivatives to

manage such exposures.
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are

substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates except for bank deposits, as most of
the interest-bearing assets including promissory notes
and loan receivables are at fixed rate. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank deposits and borrowings.
Bank deposits and borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The interest rates of the
Group's bank deposits and the rates and terms of the
Group’s borrowings are disclosed in Notes 17 and 23

to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by one percentage point (2017:
one percentage point) with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been HK$2,551,000 (2017: HK$1,744,000)
lower/higher and HK$4,342,000 (2017:
HK$4,156,000) higher/lower, respectively, resulting
from the change in the interest expense on bank
borrowings and interest income on bank deposits.

Credit risk

(i) Risk management
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and bank balances, promissory
notes, entrusted loans and trade and other
receivables (except for prepayments). The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the

carrying amounts of these financial assets.
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CRURLE S

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. OEM garment
sales to large or long-established customers
with good repayment history comprise a
significant proportion of the total Group’s
The Group also has

policies on granting different settlement

OEM garment sales.

methods to different customers to monitor the
credit exposure. Letters of credit are normally
required from new customers and existing
customers with short trading history for
settlement purposes. Sales to retail customers
are made in cash, via credit cards, through
online payment service providers or collected
by department stores/online retailers on behalf
of the Group. The Group's historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances. At 31
December 2018, trade and bill receivables
amounted to approximately HK$528,710,000
(2017: HK$498,981,000)
companies operating under international and

were due from

domestically well-known brand retailers and
department stores in the PRC. Loss allowances
of HK$66,137,000 has been provided for such
trade and bill receivables as at 31 December
2018.

The Group has policies to place its cash and
cash equivalents only with major financial
institutions with good reputation and does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Security

For certain trade receivables the Group may
obtain security in the form of letters of credit
which can be called upon if the counterparty
is in default.

For the Group's entrusted loans, there are
pledged as
securities. See Note 15(iii) for further details.

certain land and properties

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

= Trade receivables

= Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
except for those
individually significant trade receivables or trade

for all trade receivables,

receivables at default which are tested
individually.
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3

CRURLE S

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2018, the
balances of such individually assessed trade
receivables and the loss allowance in respect
of these receivables are HK$50,664,000 (2017:
HK$14,241,000) and HK$23,271,000 (2017:
HK$14,241,000), respectively.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected loss rates are based on
the payment profiles of sales over a period of
12 months before 31 December 2018 or 1
January 2018, respectively, and the
corresponding historical credit
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are further adjusted to
current and forward-looking information on

losses

reflect

macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed trade receivable balances is
HK$42,866,000 based on an average expected
loss rate of approximately 9% applied on
different groupings (2017: 6%, which does not
have a material impact to the Group's

consolidated financial statements).

Trade receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment loss on trade receivables is

presented as net impairment loss within
operating profit. Subsequent

amounts previously written off are credited

recoveries of
against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment
of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the incurred
loss model. Individual receivables which were
known to be uncollectible were written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been incurred
but not yet identified. For these receivables,
the estimated losses were
recognised

impairment.

impairment
in a separate provision for
Receivables for which an
impairment provision was recognised were
written off against the provision when there
was no expectation of recovering additional

cash.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(e)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
promissory note, entrusted loans and other
receivables (except for prepayments).
Management assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account the
historical risk of default and capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

These financial assets at amortised cost, except
for the entrusted loans which an impairment
loss has been provided for (See Note 15), are
considered to be of low credit risk primarily
because historically they had no history of
default and the debtors had a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. For entrusted loans, the fair
value of pledged collaterals are sufficient to
cover their carrying amounts. No impairment
loss has been provided for such financial assets
as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018.

(iv)  FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to investments that are measured at
FVPL. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amounts of
these investments.

Concentration risk

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group’s sales to the top 5 customers who are
international well-known brand retailers accounted
for approximately 33.3% (2017: 30.9%) of the total
revenue. The Group aims to maintain long-term
relationship with reputable customers in the
expansion of its business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
purchases of materials, machinery and equipment and
payments of employee benefit expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and
bank loans. The Group generally operates with a
working capital surplus.

According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
“Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”, if a term
loan agreement includes an overriding repayment on
demand clause (“callable feature”), which gives the
lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional right

to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as
a current liability in its balance sheet, as the

borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Accordingly, the
long-term portion of the Group’s bank borrowings
was classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, except for the bank
borrowings as shown in the table below, all the
Group’s contractual obligations mature within 1 year.
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3

3.1

(f)

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 B #¥EKREE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEREZE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) () mEEZLEREE)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis TR —IBEBHE R 2 E 8
of a term loan with a repayment on demand clause Aol EREEREREER
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the 1§58 DIRBER BT 2
loan agreement. The amounts include interest MEBRKHERME - RFE
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking BERAEHNMNEHE 2 FER
into account the Group’s financial position, the HoKERAEER 2B
directors do not consider that it was probable that Ao BEFRARITHETAEETT
the bank would exercise its discretion to demand {50 HL B 15 4 LA SR BN (542 ©
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such EEHEZAHRERSREE
term loan will be repaid in accordance with the A e -t =R P
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan T LAEE -
agreements.
Between Between
Within 1 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 5
year years years years Total
-fR -Z@MFE —EEF RBBIF gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHET THEL FTHT FTHEL
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H
Bank borrowings RITER 181,092 41,332 79,232 13,954 315,610
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tHF
—R=+-H
Bank borrowings BITER 43,035 43,035 98,595 30,415 215,080
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
issue new

shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

shares or increase debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as bank borrowings of
approximately HK$367,057,000 (2017: HK$247,271,000)
divided by total equity of HK$2,640,009,000 (2017:
HK$2,549,261,000). The ratios as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are 13.9% and 9.7%, respectively.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HEERERERE (&

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (&
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TERENREBR T —NF+=
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 A=+—HARAFEFEZeHE
December 2018. EREE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
& Al & B2 & B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHExT FTHExT
Assets BE
FVPL BRAFEIRERRKRT
BREZEMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAFES 15,393 — —
— FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran — BRI AERMIE A
FEYREEZR
RPREZSH
BE — — 288,876
15,393 — 288,876
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets THREINAEER-_ZE—+F+=
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 A=+t—HARAFEFEZEHE
December 2017. ERBE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FUQEIIN % 512 53
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Assets BE
FVPL BAFEINKRERRRT
BREZGCMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRARES 19,967 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEES/REE
— Equity security — IRANEE 2 = = 43,617
— Debt security — BB E 2 = = 242,385
19,967 — 286,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 classified as trading securities comprise
Stock

primarily equity investments listed on Shanghai

Exchange.

Financial instruments in level 3

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held available-for-sale
financial assets, which represented the equity interests in,
and shareholder’s loans granted to Zhejiang Haoran
amounted to HK$43,617,000 and HK$242,385,000,
respectively. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” on 1 January 2018, such available-for-sale
financial assets, together with advances due from Zhejiang
Haoran of HK$17,528,000, were reclassified to FVPL (Note
2.2(b)(i)).

The basis of fair value measurement and valuation
technique of such FVPL are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There were no other changes in valuation techniques during
the current year.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

B35 B b B 12 (AR
3.3 AFEMEH ()
B2 BT A (M)

TREWNHEE-_ZE—+tHEFR_ZFT
—NEF+_A=+—"HLEFEZ#H&

2018. B3TAZE-

2018 2017

—®-N\F —E—tf

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 286,002 276,712
Reclassified upon the adoption of RER N B A B 15 3R 5 £ R
HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2 (b)(i)) FoR e B H A (&=

2.2(b)(i)) 17,528 —

Repayment of debt security EEEBES — (10,052)

Exchange differences mE =R (14,654) 19,342

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 288,876 286,002

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

4 Critical accounting estimates and 4

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

Fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran is comprised of the equity interest
in, shareholders’ loans and advances to Zhejiang Haoran.

Fair value of such FVPL is determined based on the
valuation performed by management using asset based
valuation techniques. Management used their judgement to
select Adjusted NAV approach as the appropriate valuation
approach, supplemented by direct comparison approach
adopted to value the commercial property project held by
Zhejiang Haoran.

Management used their judgement to adopt Zhejiang
Haoran’s financial information as at 31 December 2016,
being its latest financial information made available to the
Group, as key inputs in the valuation. The fair value of
Zhejiang Haoran's property has been adjusted to take into
account the latest market price movements of similar
properties at nearby locations during the current year
assuming the construction of such property was completed
during the current year. Interest expense for the current
year has been accrued for interest-bearing liabilities
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and assuming the
balance outstanding and the interest rates remained
unchanged from those as at 31 December 2016.
Construction costs incurred subsequent to 31 December
2016 have been accrued up to mid 2018 assuming such
costs have been incurred in accordance with the original
project budget provided to the Group with certain overruns.
Other inputs applied in the valuation model, including but
not limited to the minority interest discount rate, are
assumed to remain unchanged from those as at 31
December 2017. A degree of judgement is required for
management in establishing the fair value of FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

Trade and other receivables (including promissory
notes and entrusted loans)

The Group makes provision for expected credit losses of
trade and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of trade and
other receivables requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and the provision for expected credit losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

On each balance sheet date, the fair value of the pledged
collaterals held by the Group for entrusted
determined based on the valuation performed by an
independent professional using market based
valuation techniques. The valuer used its judgement to

loans is
valuer

select market approach as the appropriate valuation
approach for the pledged properties and a parcel of land
(Note 15). The inputs applied in the valuation models, such
as the recent selling prices of comparable market
transactions for the properties and the land, are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing

fair values.

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined at
each balance sheet date based on valuation techniques
(Note 7).

The fair value of investment properties would change by
approximately HK$36,371,000 (2017: HK$8,872,000) if the
market values of comparable properties differ by 10% from
the Group’s estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAMIERERNE

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries and deferred income tax
assets of the Group mainly arise from tax losses carry-
forwards. The realisability of the deferred income tax
liabilities and assets mainly depend on its subsidiaries’
dividend pay-out ratio and whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future, whichever is applicable. In cases where the actual
dividend payout ratio is more than expected or future
profits generated are less than expected, such difference
will impact the income taxes in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on profit/(loss) before income tax, which is
consistent with that in the financial statements. Other
information, as noted below, is also provided to the executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group started to
engage in property investment in the PRC and such new business
changed the executive directors’ review on the Group’s segment
performance and resource allocation over that in prior years.
Currently, the executive directors consider the Group has four
reportable segments: (1) manufacturing and sale of garments on
an OEM basis (“OEM"); (2) manufacturing and retailing of
branded fashion apparel (“Retail”); (3) property development in
the PRC (“Property development”); and (4) property investment in
the PRC (“Property investment”).

Total segment assets exclude certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong, corporate assets, listed equity securities at FVPL
and entrusted loans, all of which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets.

Turnover comprises sale of goods and rental income. Sales
between segments are carried out based on terms agreed. The
revenue from external parties reported to the executive directors is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

RA SR M

7 EHEH

NITEFLERTATELEREA - H
TEEEMARE L APBEAFHERR
RHRER EEEERBULSEERE

HEDH -

HWITESRBEMBREAT ZERAER
AER (BE)FEEESH2RE - &
EF - MTLE  TERETFTHITE
=o

HE_T - \F+_A=+—HLLFE"
AEBERBERPEREYRKRE  MKE
MEBHERBEFERETHATESTHE
SESBRBALER &R - BRI
HITEERRASERENEANRE 2D
B ERERRERETRXERE]) EE
HEREERK  QRERTEMERE
(TZED QRFBEZYERE(WEHR
B RAORFBEZYWERE((YER
&l -

DHMEERBIEREHPREEZE T
REEBNREYNE CXEE RATE
IR EEERTRECSMEEANN LT
BAEFELSREZTER - MERBAEEE
BERZEERRYEK-

EXTREREMEERRESHA - 2
ZHEZHETIENETF B 2 RFETT -
ERTHITEZ 2T BAZFTET X
TEGE2EBARER -

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

Segment information (Continued) 5 2WBER(E)
Property Property
OEM Retail  development investment Total
REERE € WERR NERE “E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER TERT THER
Year ended 31 December HZ-Z—\F
2018 +=ZB=+-H
LtFE
Total revenue WABE 1,799,594 479,604 - 14,842 2,294,040
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA (15,553) — — (3,669) (19,222)
Revenue (from external WA CRENBEF)
customers) 1,784,041 479,604 — 11,173 2,274,818
Timing of revenue W N HE R 0 s
recognition
At a point in time R — (AR5 1,784,041 479,604 — - 2,263,645
Over time R—RERRA - - — 11,173 1,173
1,784,041 479,604 — 11,173 2,274,818
Segment profit/(loss) before B Fif5 i a1 5 2Bk 51,/
income tax (&) 105,664 (58,688) — 4,825 51,801
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% - BE RGN E
plant and equipment (71,135) (25,016) — — (96,151)
Amortisation of land use 13 { FIFE 54
rights (1,514) (32) - — (1,546)
Amortisation of intangible & E# §
assets (4,256) (2,442) — — (6,698)
Impairment loss on goodwill 7% il E & 18 (4,930) - - - (4,930)
Finance income HERA 7,129 213 - - 7,342
Finance costs MARA (8,637) (1,966) - - (10,603)
Share of losses of joint NEEERAER
ventures — (4,603) — — (4,603)
Income tax (expense)/credit BTG (%) /#H & (22,059) 9,198 - (1,206) (14,067)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

Segment information (Continued) 5 Zo@HER (EF)
Property
OEM Retail ~ development Total
[RER S =& ek BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T F& T FET FET
Year ended 31 December HEZE-Z—tF
2017 +=—A=+—H
HEE
Total revenue WA 4B %8 1,881,921 480,310 — 2,362,231
Inter-segment revenue 7 5B WA (26,614) (188) = (26,802)
Revenue (from external WA (REINEBE )
customers) 1,855,307 480,122 — 2,335,429
Timing of revenue W A 7R A e T
recognition
At a point in time 7 — {5 B 1,855,307 480,122 — 2,335,429
Segment profit/(loss) before [ B 15 i Al 2 263 1,/
income tax (B8 185,684 (78,534) 45,668 152,818
Depreciation of property, M- REREZERE
plant and equipment (71,027) (26,279) = (97,306)
Amortisation of land use b {5 R AR 8
rights (4,701) (32) — (4,733)
Amortisation of intangible &2 & & # §5
assets (5,193) (2,442) = (7,635)
Finance income AE KA 6,471 342 4,533 11,346
Finance costs BMEKA (6,721) (1,947) = (8,668)
Reversal of impairment loss B3 F —[EH# & 2 FH
on loans to an associate AEEEEE = = 41,135 41,135
Share of loss of a joint AMEEERREE
venture — (632) — (632)
Impairment loss on available- A 4 (£ & & &b & & 2 &k
for-sale financial assets BB = (2,791) — (2,791)
Income tax expense FriEfimAx (8,604) (8,297) — (16,901)
ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

Segment information (Continued) 5 SHER (&)
Property Property
OEM Retail development  investment Total
ERERE Z£ WERE NERE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL FTAT THT THEL
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\f
+=ZR=+—-H
Total segment assets PREELS 1,977,042 992,556 288,876 336,711 3,595,185
Total segment assets include: AHEERERE
Interests in associates iNGA-NCIPA 5 1,846 — — — 1,846
Interests in joint ventures REERA 2R - 14,690 — - 14,690
FVPL BATEIIRERRRD
REZERHAE — — 288,876 — 288,876
Additions to non-current assets A EFRBEE (£ 5
(other than financial instruments T B RiEIEFEH
and deferred income tax assets) ~ BEFR ) 52,039 18,778 — - 70,817
Tax recoverable A IE 8,555 1,384 - - 9,939
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 15,676 62,787 - - 78,463
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+#F
+ZA=+-H
Total segment assets NBEELTE 1,987,008 1,039,211 286,002 = 3,312,221
Total segment assets include: PREELBRE
Interests in associates REEE DB 2 s 1,806 = = = 1,806
Interest in a joint venture REERRZER = 3,307 = = 3,307
Available-for-sale financial assets Ak & & BEE = = 286,002 = 286,002
Additions to non-current assets  REIFERBEE (SR
(other than financial instruments T & REIEFTEH
and deferred income tax assets) & ERSIN) 38,007 20,362 = — 58,369
Tax recoverable A e E 15,403 = = = 15,403
Deferred income tax assets EREHEE 23,639 57,223 — — 80,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

7 BB E Y (4)
AR 5 B 2 B B 48 51 AT SR
Hi kI8 2 BER T -

Segment information (Continued) 5
A reconciliation of reportable segments’ profit before income tax
to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

GE)

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHx FH&ET

Total segment profit before income tax B BT 1S %1 B 2 25 i 71| 48 58 51,801 152,818
Net fair value (losses)/gains on FVPL RATFEYREE K T EE
ZERMEEATAEERE)

WY & % 2R (3.822) 10,429

Corporate overhead TrELKEER (7,400) (6,653)

Rental income iz ON 696 754
Profit before income tax per consolidated #: & & M U4 A % B 51l & P 15 ¢

statement of comprehensive income Al A 41,275 157,348

A reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets to total assets is

provided as follows:

BEDHZEEREERBZHERNT

2018 2017

e —£%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER F& T

Total segment assets DEEEHETE 3,595,185 3,312,221
FVPL BRAFEINRERRKPRE

ZEMEE 15,393 19,967

Corporate assets rEEE 16,142 3,616

Investment properties BE Y 27,000 28,300

Entrusted loans ZEK 166,022 174,443
Total assets per consolidated REEERABRMINEERSE

balance sheet 3,819,742 3,538,547

ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

7 &b E F ()
ARRARNHSBBEMA Y - RIEEF it

5 Segment information (Continued) 5
The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The results of

its revenue from external customers based on the destination of
the customers are as follows:

HED 2B EPEALRAT

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —ET—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

The PRC H 1,216,129 1,157,691
North America ik = 820,163 940,988
European Union X B8 196,928 181,152
Hong Kong BB 25,556 33,617
Other countries H B xR 16,042 21,981
2,274,818 2,335,429

NRATHR ZFRDEELB(TERE
RBERR 2w RNAERA 2R
EHEBRBEERESHREE(RREEHR
FELEERMEENREN))WMT :

The total of non-current assets other than interests in associates,
interests in joint ventures, promissory note and deferred income
tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights
arising under insurance contracts) located in the following
geographical areas are as follows:

2018 2017

—®-NF —E—tf

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET AT

The PRC e 774,616 593,898
Hong Kong BB 144,545 151,719
North America ik = 2,613 3,789
921,774 749,406

BHE_Z—-N\E+-_A=+—RBIFE"
#9316,404,000% (= T — £ F:
386,920,000 7T) 2 WA R B B — N EF &
P(ZZE—tF:8RA) ZFWATDERB
RRBEREZAIRED M WHAEE
WA ZI0%IA £ - BEEMEFEREAR
EEBERANIORA E(ZE—+4F 4/
@) -

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenues of approximately
HK$316,404,000 (2017: HK$386,920,000) are derived from a
single external customer (2017: Same). These revenues are
attributable to the OEM reportable segment and accounted for
greater than 10% of the Group’s revenue. There are no other
customers which individually accounted for more than 10% of the
Group's total revenue (2017: Same).
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RA B RS R & MY AT

Segment information (Continued)

The contract liabilities represent the advance payments received
from counterparties for goods or services that have not yet been
transferred or provided to the counterparties. As at 31 December
2018, the Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

2 EE R (&)

7]
EHABERNAERIRBTRIES
MEMHREERSEHWERA A -
RZZE—N\F+_A=+—0 AEE=m®
RERFENBENATEE

2018 2017

—®-NF —E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Current contract liabilities REBANEE 29,534 —

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2018 relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

TREIEBE_FT-N\F+_HA=1+—H
LTFEEREEANBEMBERNKRATHE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Revenue recognised that was included in st AT &L B BELEHT
the contract liabilities balance at B ER KA
the beginning of the year 23,718 =

The Group expects their performance obligations under the
contracts with customers to be satisfied over a period of no more
than 2 years.

AEERHBREREFPANBTITNENR
RN B2F IR AT -

EREEERERAA

—E-N\FER
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RAEWMBBRWE

6 Property, plant and equipment

ME- -BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fittings and ~ Construction
buildings  improvements machinery Vehicles equipment in progress Total
HELHER BAEER
BT HENEEE  BEREA RE #E ERIR ag
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THn THT THL THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2017 R-E-tF-f-A
Cost A 703,321 199,664 435,863 42,899 67,502 60,130 1,509,379
Accumulated depreciation 25 7 E (272,916) (152,713) (359,953) (42,026) (61,923) = (889,531)
Net book amount EEFE 430,405 46,951 75,910 873 5,579 60,130 619,848
Year ended 31 December HZ=-F-t%
2017 tZA=+-R
LEE
Opening net book amount  E)E 5 & 430,405 46,951 75,910 873 5,579 60,130 619,848
Exchange differences EHER 19,534 190 4418 30 374 2,053 26,599
Additions RE - 23,506 14,410 4,081 3212 8,290 53,499
Transfers an 30,809 = 38,617 = = (69,426) =
Disposals & (129) = (3,070) (1,053) (26) — (4,278)
Depreciation ik (30,236) (27,860) (33,252) (3216) (2,742) - (97,306)
Transfer to investment EERENE
property (Note) (Fs) (30312) = = = = = (30,312)
Closing net book amount  ER IR (E 420,071 42,787 97,033 715 6,397 1,047 568,050
At 31 December 2017  R=-E-t&
tZA=t-A
Cost A 722,865 223,360 478206 42,046 70,784 1,047 1538308
Accumulated depreciation ~ 25 7 & (302,794) (180,573) (381,173) (41,331) (64,387) - (970,258)
Net book amount EEFE 420,071 42,781 97,033 715 6,397 1,047 568,050
Year ended 31 December BZ=-F-N\%
2018 +=B=t-A
LEE
Opening net book amount  EJE 5 & 420,071 42,787 97,033 15 6,397 1,047 568,050
Exchange differences EHER (10,911) (1,664) (5,236) (66) (314) (465) (18,656)
Additions RE - 29,465 25,049 1,852 L7 12,234 70,817
Disposals e (35) - (10,631) (566) (61) - (11,293)
Depreciation Vil (27933) (27.471) (37,791) (695) (2.261) - (96,151)
Demolition and relocation ~ #% R EE
(Note 25) (HizE25) (954) - (9,438) - (1,136) (284) (11,812)
Transfer from investment EEZENE
property (Note 7) (Fi&7) 37,815 — - — - — 37,815
Transfers to investment ~ BZERENE
properties (Note) (K1) (62,070) - - - (1,900) - (63,970)
Transfers to assets held for EZ{EHERE
sale (Note 18) (H18) (5,154) - - - - - (5,154)
Closing net book amount ~ FREEFE 350,829 83117 58,986 1,240 2,942 12,532 469,646
At 31 December 2018 ~ RZ=E- £
t-A=t-A
Cost & 679,591 251,161 385,864 38,208 68,337 12,532 1,435,693
Accumulated depreciation ~ 237 (328,762) (208,044) (326,878) (36,968) (65,395) - (966,047)
Net book amount BHEE 350,829 83,117 58,986 1,240 2,982 12,532 469,646
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment 6

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$51,087,000 (2017:
HK$56,629,000) and HK$45,064,000 (2017: HK$40,677,000) have
been charged in cost of sales and administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, leasehold land and buildings with net
book amount of approximately HK$125,674,000 (2017:
HK$127,210,000) were pledged as securities for the Group’s bank
borrowings (Note 23).

Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group transferred
certain owner-occupied properties located in Hangzhou to investment properties

RA SR M

ME-BERRE(E)

& 5 X #951,087,00008 T (ZF —+ 4 ¢
56,629,000/ JT) }45,064,000% 7T (= =
—- % 1 40,677,000/ 70) B 5 IR & A
RN RATER B 0B o

R=ZB—N\FE+-_A=+—8 E@FE
#9125,674,000% mT(= T — + F:
127,210,000 70) 2 T & + #h R 1& F K
HIEABASEEZEBTERZ ER(H=E
23) °

fig: BE-F-N\FR-F-—tF+=A=+—1
FEREBRRMOETORNENARED

and rented them out (Note 7): F 0 A (K aE7) ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
On the date of transfer R A
— Fair values of properties transferred — FTEREYENATE 300,261 36,399
— Carrying amounts of properties transferred — FTEBRYENEEE 63,970 30,312
Excess of fair values over carrying amounts ATERAEHENSRE 236,291 6,087
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) OB E B IR (B EE21) (59,073) (1,522)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other REMEEBRAERNEERH%
comprehensive income 177,218 4,565

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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7 Investment properties 7 BREYE
2018 2017
—2- )% —T—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 88,721 27,500
Transfer to owner-occupied property EEHAYE T

(Note) (58,026) —
Transfers from owner-occupied properties % &5 B % % (Hf 556 28)

(Notes 6 and 8) 345,069 56,042
Exchange differences IE % =% (16,186) 2,993
Fair value gains (Note 25) AT E W = (f7E25) 4,133 2,186
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 363,711 88,721
Amounts recognised in the consolidated #& &2 EKRAXRERZ L :

statement of comprehensive income:

Rental revenue from property investment FREIREWENHE L KA

in the PRC 11,173 —
Other rental income HaBe WA 6,210 9,945
Direct operating expenses arising from EEHSWAZEEME

investment properties that generate FIBBNEEEERY

rental income (316) (273)

17,067 9,672

Note:  The lease on one of the Group's investment properties located in Hangzhou was
expired in August 2018, upon which the property was transferred from
investment property to owner-occupied property of the Group (Notes 6 and 8).

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the Group's
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Hangzhou are

determined on the basis of valuation carried out by the directors
and an independent qualified valuer (the “Valuer”), respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment properties (Continued)
Valuations were determined either with reference to current prices
in an active market of similar properties, or where such
information is not available, information from a variety of sources
were considered including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows; or

(iii)  capitalised income projections based upon a property’s
estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate
derived from an analysis of market evidence.

Fair values of the Group's investment properties located in Hong
Kong are determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to current prices in an active market of similar
properties.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties located in
Hangzhou are derived by the Valuer using the investment method
of the income approach, by taking into account the current rental
income from the existing tenancy agreements and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate term/reversionary yields,
which are derived from analysis of sales transaction and the
Valuer’s interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. For the reversionary potential of the properties, the
Valuer refers market price of similar comparable properties.

Term and reversionary yields are estimated by the Valuer based on
the risk profile of the investment properties being valued. The
higher the yields, the lower the fair value. As at 31 December
2018, yield ranged from 6.0% to 6.5% (2017: 5.5% to 6.0%)
were adopted in the term yields analysis for the Group's
investment properties in Hangzhou.

Prevailing market price are estimated based on recent sales
transactions within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the prices, the lower is the fair value. As at
31 December 2018, prevailing market prices ranged from HK$21
to HK$25 (2017: HK$13 to HK$15) per month per square meter
were adopted in the term and reversionary analysis for the
Group's investment properties in Hangzhou.

The valuation gains are included in “Other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 25). The
following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value by valuation methods.

7

EREEERERAA

RA SR M

REWE (&)
fEE M BT S RN LR ERT B Y
BB MRERESEAEGN  ABE
T & RS

(i) AREEZDERFERTSZEA
BRIBUNDERRNAFRM IS Z
I E AR (AR RIR bl 22 R 4F

)

@iy WEBAKBEREZASEM[ETME
HZBRBERETM 3

(i)  RIEWE 2 fEETI5 AR A R
RETSBEINASZER L
K {F H 2 B AN WA TR

AEERBEBNRENVEZAFEREAR
AEES2ERUYMERERT S E A E
REE

AEERMMHNEBRENR 2 A FEAMBE
RERKREEZ Mm% KEEREHEE
BEzZEEEASKRARES EFE DGR
RABES M EAXEBOMEER
SREEMEERREENEZRITAHN
RESL))SL -WEEREBEHTE &
EME2RBUTLBRYMEZTHER -

HEMENEGEEZ REDENRB AR
YR EAS AR EARBE A
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HR R EARSIATRARIRITT IS ER
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—tFE I3BRLEISBET) °

HEREDAAREZEBRARZIHA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

7 Investment properties (Continued) 7 REYE(E)
Fair value hierarchy A {5 & 5l

Fair value measurements using

146

RANT&Ez A FERE
Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for  Significant other unobservable
identical assets observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEERERT HMEATEEZ EAFTATEHEZSH
52 ®E (&A1) B (4 512) (&% 513)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Recurring fair value KEEAFEETE
measurements
Investment properties as at RZZE—NF
31 December 2018 +=ZA=+—H
ZIREME
— The PRC — — — 336,711
— Hong Kong — &% — — 27,000
— — 363,711
Investment properties as at RZZTE—+F
31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—H
ZIREME
— The PRC — — — 60,421
— Hong Kong — BH = = 28,300
— — 88,721

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant

RA SR M

7 BREYWEGE)

ERAEXRTAEESH (RBI3) 22 F

unobservable inputs (Level 3) BEFtE
Investment properties
Hong Kong The PRC Total
BB HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THT TR TR
At 1 January 2018 R=ZFE-N\E—A—AH 28,300 60,421 88,721
Transfer to an owner-occupied BEERAME
property — (58,026) (58,026)
Transfers from owner-occupied EoaRAME
properties — 345,069 345,069
(Losses)/gains from fair value adjustment 2 {8 F7 15
(B#R) Mz (1,300) 5,433 4,133
Exchange differences X EE — (16,186) (16,186)
At 31 December 2018 RZBE-N\F
+=A=+—-"H” 27,000 336,711 363,711
Total valuation (losses)/gains for the FETE 5B T 5t
year included in profit or loss for ERFEETA
assets held at the end of the year, BaPzERNHE
under “Other gains, net” (B18) /B (1,300) 5,433 4,133
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for RERMBEEFABEF
the year included in profit or loss for 2 FRAER
assets held at the end of the year (B1E)  MuEg28 (1,300) 5,433 4,133

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

REME (&)

EREARAEESH (RBI3) 2AF

7 Investment properties (Continued) 7

Fair value measurements using significant

148

unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

B & (8]

Investment properties

REME
Hong Kong The PRC Total
R F B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TET THEL
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H 27,500 — 27,500
Transfer from an owner-occupied EEERAmE
property — 56,042 56,042
Gains from fair value adjustment ATERERSEKE 800 1,386 2,186
Exchange differences X ER = 2,993 2,993
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F
+ZA=1+—8H 28,300 60,421 88,721
Total valuation gains for the FETE W55 T ot
year included in profit or loss for ERBEETA
assets held at the end of the year, BaPEREE
under “Other gains, net” W B%E 800 1,386 2,186
Change in unrealised gain for RERFFEES ABER
the year included in profit or loss for ~ ZFERAEBRUNHEF
assets held at the end of the year 800 1,386 2,186

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been derived

using the comparable sales transactions as available in the

relevant market or using the valuation result based on income
approach to derive the fair value of the properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

Land use rights 8 tTiERARE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET
At 1 January m—A—8 70,334 72,568

Transfer from investment property ERREYE

(Note 7) (Bt 5%7) 20,211 =
Transfers to investment properties (Note) % = % & #) % ([} &%) (4,248) (3,127)
Transfers to assets held for sale (Note 18) ## % % /£ i & & 7= (i 3518) (3,520) —
Demolition and relocation (Note 25) bR & & 2 (Pt 5E25) (1,466) —
Exchange differences PE W =% (3,381) 5,626
Amortisation 5 (1,546) (4,733)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 76,384 70,334

Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group transferred

certain portion of the owner-occupied land used rights located in Hangzhou to

MeE: BEZZ-—N\FER-_FT—+F+-A=+—H
IFFEE - REEBRMEE T BB iEREE

investment properties and rented them out (Note 7): RIEEWEWBE (7))
2018 2017
—EB-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
On the date of transfer PR
— Fair values of land use rights transferred — BB T ERARENATE 44,808 19,643
— Carrying amounts of land use rights transferred — P& # + 3 FB#E R SR E (& 4,248 3,127
Excess of fair values over carrying amounts AFEBBERAOENSHE 40,560 16,516
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) BT B IR (M RE21) (10,140) (4,129)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other REMEEMBRABRNEGE RS
comprehensive income 30,420 12,387

As at 31 December 2018, land use rights with net book amount
approximately HK$6,456,000 (2017: HK$4,633,000) were pledged
as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23).

R=ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—0 EEFE
#16,456,0007%% T (= T — £ 4F : 4,633,000
Bz T FEREEREREALAEES
T8 SR 1T & 3R Z HE IR (BT 5E23) ©

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M mARME

9 Subsidiaries

The particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018 are set out as follows:

Country/place of

9 KEXF

Particulars of

RZB-NF+-ZA=+—H REHEE
BEfBARZHEBRINAT

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMARL/RIAR hHR BERT/BK
A8 EEERER TEXBREE Y RAFE AEBEEGRE
2018 2017
“E-N\F |ZE—+F
Directly held:
BEERF:
Joyocean Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 4,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
MEREERRA RBRAEE ARAAF REBRRES 4,0008% & B & 100% 100%
ETREER [EZrd) 3
Skyyear Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 4,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
REERERRA RBRAEE ARAA REBRRES 4,0008% & B & 100% 100%
ETREER [EZrd) 3
Concept Creator Investments British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
Limited liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
EBREERRA RBRAHE ARAA REBRRES 1,0008% & X E {8 100% 100%
ETRERR [Evd 3l
China Ting Property Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
China Ting Property Limited RBRAKE ARDRA REBRLHES 1,0000% & R B & 100% 100%
ETRERR [Eid 3l
Indirectly held:
MERE:
Manfame Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEREERRA RBRAEE ARAHF REBRRES 1,0008% & X E {8 100% 100%
ETREER [EZrd)' 3
Oceanroc Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEREERAF RBRAEE ARAA REBRRES 1,0008% & X E {8 100% 100%
ETREER [Eivd 3l
Bolinding Hangzhou Textile The PRC, wholly foreign owned Garment manufacturing and ~ US$30,000,000 100% 100%
Technology Limited enterprise retailing, trademark
holding and property
investment in PRC
EREMMSARRERAR TE IEBECE MRBERTE 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%
REBRRDERE
(hE)

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018




Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SR M

9 KEARGE)

Country/place of

Particulars of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMRL/BIER hHK BRT/EK
=L EEERER TEXRREEHE RAFE AEBELRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F |ZZ2—+F
China Ting Fashion Trading Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding US$500,000 100% 100%
Limited company in Hong Kong
ZRREEHERAA BiE ARAT REZKR(BR) 500,000% 7 100% 100%
Witpower Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in the 2,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company British Virgin Islands US$1 each
SHREERAA RBRAHE BRAA REBRZEE 2,000/ & B A E 100% 100%
ETREZR 1% 7T 2 R 1p
China Ting Garment Mfg Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
(Group) Limited company in Hong Kong
ERAR(EE)BRAA BE ARAT KRB S (FE) 5,000,000/ 7T 100% 100%
Concept Creator Fashion Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$200,000 100% 100%
Limited company in Hong Kong
BBERERAR BiE ARAT KRES(FE) 200,000 70 100% 100%
Concept Creator Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$10,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
EBERA A B ARAT KRES(FE) 10,0007% 7T 100% 100%
Concept Creator Investments Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding HK$100,000 100% 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited company in Hong Kong
BIBERE (BE)BRAR BiE ARAT REZKR(BR) 100,007 7T 100% 100%
Diny (Hangzhou) Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and US$3,130,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
RGN BERERAF HECAEBELR RRBERTER 3,130,000% 7 100% 100%
FAEBR(RE)
Finity Fashion (Shenzhen) The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
e CRINER A HECSAEBELR RRBERTER 10,000,000 70 100% 100%
RAEBR(RE)
Finity International Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and ~ US$10,900,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
FREBAREEERAA HECSAEBEELR RRBERTER 10,900,000 7T 100% 100%
RFAEBR(RE)
EREEERERAT —T - NFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEWMBBRWE

9 Subsidiaries (Continued)

9

MTE;\ —.l (nﬁ)

Name

&

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment
and type of legal entity
EMARL/BRIAR HHR
EEERER

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREE B

Particulars of
issued/
paid-in capital
BERT/BK
IR A5 7 1B

Equity interest
attributable to the Group

Hangzhou China Ting Fashion
Company Limited
MMESBREER AR
Hangzhou China Ting Tailored
Fashion Company Limited
MMESTRERERR A
China Ting Woollen Textile
Company Limited
ERBMMEHEE
BRRA
Hangzhou Fuding Fashion
Company Limited
MMNERERERAF
Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion
Company Limited
MMEBEBRERARA

Hangzhou Huaxing S|Ik Pr|nting

Company Limited

MMERGBENRER

China Ting (Hangzhou) Textile

Technology Company Limited
Z8MMHEHRRBRRA

He Shan Tri-Star Silk Dyeing
and Printing Work Limited

BLZEARNALE
BRRA

Zhongshan Tri-Star Textile
Printing Technology
Company Limited

ML= 2 S e R
BRRA

Hong Kong Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited

EEEEREARAA

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
B ANEBECE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
hEANEBECE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

RECNEREELE

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
hEANEBE R
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
hEANEBE R
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

RECNERELE

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

hEANEBE R

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

RECNERELE

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

mEHEBELE
Hong Kong, Limited liability

company

BB ARAT

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Garment manufacturing
in the PRC
AREE (R )
Garment manufacturing
in the PRC
PR EE (R 8
Wool textile and garment
manufacturing in the PRC

EHEmMEKREE (R E)

Garment manufacturing

in the PRC
PR B (P )
Garment retailing in the PRC

EREE (PE)

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

A AR T E A B TR
N ()

Garment manufacturing
in the PRC

PR B (P )

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

A AR T E A B TR
N ()

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

Ao T E A B TR
BN ()

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REER(FE)

US$4,180,000

4,180,0003% T
US$8,000,000

8,000,000 7T
US$59,500,000

59,500,000% 7

US$2,000,000

2,000,000% 7t
US$200,000

200,000% 7t
US$8,000,000
8,000,000% 7T
US$16,000,000
16,000,000 7T
US$3,321,000
3,321,000% ¢
RMB6,250,000
ARH
6,250,0007T
HK$100,000

100,0007% 7T

AEBELRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F |ZE—+F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%




Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SR M

9 KEARGE)

Particulars of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
MR/ RIER %R BRT/EK
=L EEERER TEXRREEHE RAFE AEBELRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F |ZZ2—+F
Interfield Industrial Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Fabric printing and dyeing HK$23,410,000 100% 100%
company
RHEXERAF BiE ARAT EH % 23,410,0007 7T 100% 100%
Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$1,610,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
RN ERBEARAT RECSAEBELR PR BE (th ) 1,610,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Brand The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and US$8,200,000 100% 100%
Management Company owned enterprise retailing and trademark
Limited holding in the PRC
HIERRBERERAR TE IBEELE RRBERTER 8,200,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
FABR(RE)
Zhejiang China Ting Jincheng  The PRC, wholly foreign Silk fabric weaving US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Silk Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HIEReRGRAERLAF  TE IBEELE AR S (P ) 3,820,000% 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Knitwear ~ The PRC, wholly foreign Knitwear manufacturing US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTESHBERBERDA hEAEBELE St m s (R ) 3,820,000% 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Textile The PRC, wholly foreign Home textile weaving US$11,200,000 100% 100%
Technology Company Limited ~ owned enterprise in the PRC
HIERHBHBRERRF  TE IEEELE RO E md s () 11,200,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Concept Creator The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$5,000,000 100% 100%
Fashion Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
TR EREARAT HECSNEBELR PR B (R ) 5,000,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fucheng Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$4,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTERBEEARAT HECSNEBELR PR EE (th ) 4,000,000% 70 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fuhowe Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$4,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTERBREARAT HECAEBEELR PR B & (th ) 4,200,000% 70 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Group The PRC, wholly foreign Properties holding and RMB50,000,000 92% 92%
Company Limited owned enterprise garment trading in
the PRC
HIERERRREAERAR FE IBHFELE BENERKKES (RE) AR# 92% 92%
50,000,0007T
Zhejiang Huali Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$2,150,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTERBEARAT HECSNEBELR PR B (R ) 2,150,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
Zhejiang Huayue Silk Products  The PRC, sino-foreign joint Spun silk fabric weaving Us$2,500,000 55% 55%
Company Limited venture in the PRC
HIEBRBERRERAF  FE PHeELE RAE RS (P E) 2,500,000% 7¢ 55% 55%
EREEERERAT —T - NFER
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A IS IRER M

9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MERE (&)
Country/place of Particulars of
incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
BEMRL/ RIER %R BRT/EY
A7 EEERESR TEEBREEHY IR A5 7 1B AEEEERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F |ZE—+F
Hangzhou China Ting Industries  The PRC, wholly foreign Investment holding RMB35,000,000 100% 100%
Investment Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
MHESEXREBRAR  HE - SEBELE REER (P &) ARE 100% 100%
35,000,0007T
Zhejiang Xinan Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$3,580,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTEZERERAF RECSNEBELR PRI AGE 3,580,000% 7T 100% 100%
China Ting Finity International ~ The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and US$8,500,000 100% 100%
Fashion Retail owned enterprise retailing and trademark
Company Limited holding in the PRC
E0FREERRETERR HE - NEBELE ARHEERTER 8,500,000% 7 100% 100%
NG| HAERR(PE)
The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent HARAX iR 2 & THE AR EER
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of EXEW HZEEXEBHEEREEBRN
these subsidiaries as no English names have been registered. BEAERXEBHME -
The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Group which, in LR PRESRAETENEFNERALMA
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the KAEBATOHEEFECAEERB R
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Al -BERR TEEMKMBAR &R
Group. Giving details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion EFERIBEAR-

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 75 iR & MY AT

=
A

Interests in associates 10 RBE AR 2R
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interests in associates (Note (a)) REE &R Rz #E e (M 5E@)) 1,846 1,806
Loans to an associate EXT—HBE QA — 70,929
Less: Provision for impairment R E B — (70,929)
Loans to an associate, net (Note (b)) BEXT—MEBE QA -
758 (M aE (b)) — —
Notes: &
(a) Movements of interests in associates are as follows: (a) REEABZEREHNT
2018 2017
—®-N% e
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
At 1 January ®—A—8 1,806 1,673
Additions NE — 658
Share of profits/(losses) DAEEF (B8 146 (632)
Exchange differences [EH =% (106) 107
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 1,846 1,806
(b) An associate, Hangzhou China Ting Property Development Company Limited (b) BENRMMEREHEREERAA(ER

(“China Ting Property”), was granted certain loans by the Group in previous
years. It has repaid such loans and interests within its financial capacity during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and has been deregistered as at 31

December 2017.

FHEDRBEFEEAKSERTETER H
ERBE_Z2—tHFT-A=Z+—HLFEHE
HMBENTHEZZERRMNE AR -F

—tF+-A=+—HEHERL-

2017

—T—tF

HK$°000

FHET

At 1 January n—A—A8 197,685

Accrued interest income FET A B A 4,533

Repayment of loans from China Ting Property ELEHEERBER (250,489)

Reversal of impairment on loans to China Ting Property BERTFESEMEZ RAERD 41,135

Exchange differences EHZ5 7,136

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8”H —
ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR

155



156
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A B RS IR & MY T

10 Interests in associates (Continued) 10

Notes: (Continued)

REE QT e ()

BEE (%)

(c) The summary of the financial information of the Group’s associates in aggregate () AEEBEARNZABERETHENT -
is as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N% —E—t%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHRT
Total assets BELE 94,569 76,858
Total liabilities BELE 89,922 72,358
Revenue A 202,361 605,972
Profit for the year F WG F 372 226,045
(d) The particulars of the Group's associates as at 31 December 2018 are set out (d) AEEBR-_T-NF+_A=+—BZB®EA
as follows: AIZFBERIWT

Particular of
Country of incorporation  issued/paid-in

Equity interest

Name and type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
AR LB R Rk B#T/
BB EEEBER EWRAFEE AR AL IR EEXEK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Hangzhou Ranyue Clothing Company The PRC, limited liability RMB1,400,000 28.57% 28.57% Wholesale and retail of
Limited (“Hangzhou Ranyue”) company garments
UM 1R AR 2B R 22 B ([N B 45 1) FE - BRAR AR 28.57% 2857% MRLBHERETE
1,400,0007T
Hangzhou Huasheng Accessories Company The PRC, wholly foreign US$250,000 25% 25%  Accessories and plastic
Limited (“Huasheng Accessories”) owned enterprise bags manufacturing
MMERBHAERQR ((EEHEHH] hEEBERE 250,000 7T 25% 25% BUEEH KPR K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

- . . & = S2 (s
10 Interests in associates (Continued) 10 REEERNRl 2R (M)
Notes: (Continued) Fit 3 ¢ (#8)
(e) Set out below is the summarised financial information of China Ting Property, (e) LTHINBE-T—tF+-_A=+—ALF
which was material to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017: BEEAEHEUYASBEEATXEZHBER
B
2017
=R
HK$'000
FHET
Summarised balance sheet EESERUE
Net assets BEFE Not applicable 7~ A
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZEBRARBE
Revenue e A 465,608
Interest income, net FE WA F & 108
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FREMNREEBARLE 229,375
China Ting Property has been deregistered as at 31 December 2017. ESEMER_—T—LtF+-_A=+—HHH
Hide
(f) Set out below is the summarised financial information of the Group's shared (f) NTHIAEES(BHEERARBD(TREER
portion of the associates excluding China Ting Property: BHE) 2 S EREE -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income/(loss) & P #,/ (E518) &
for the year Hih2EKRA (F518) 146 (632)

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR 157
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A B RS IR & MY T

11 Interests in joint ventures 11 REERAIZER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 14,690 3,307

(a)

Movements of interests in joint ventures are as follows:

(@ RAELERARZEREHNT :

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —T—LtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

At 1 January n—A—H 3,307 5,797
Additions NE 17,781 =
Share of losses ShEE (4,603) (2,791)

Elimination of profits from downstream ¥t 5 T 5% 22 5 3 #ll

transactions (1,183) =
Exchange differences I W =5 (612) 301
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 14,690 3,307

During the current year, the Group invested in a joint
venture, Hangzhou Weiding Technology Limited
("Hangzhou Weiding”), a company incorporated in the PRC
at a consideration of RMB15,000,000 (approximately
HK$17,781,000).

The Group's interests in joint ventures, which are unlisted,

RAFEFE - AEBNUANARE
15,000,0007T (4917,781,000/% 7T) &
REREGEARAMMESRIEE
RABI(MMESR]D  ZRAARF
B & A 3L o

AEBERGERARGEETRA Z

are as follows: BT
2018 2017
—B-N\F —FE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Revenue LN 5,332 10,712
Expenses 53 (18,060) (16,184)

Loss and total comprehensive loss FAEBEBREEEGELE

for the year (12,728) (5,472)

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

=)
AR

&M mARME

1M1 REERF 2ERE (F)

(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)
2018 2017
S R —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FABT
Current assets mENEE 33,950 12,634
Non-current assets ERBEE 330 40
Total assets EEBE 34,280 12,674
Current liabilities mEBAE (6,074) (6,190)
Total liabilities BfEAE (6,074) (6,190)
Net assets B EFE 28,206 6,484
(b)  The particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 by AEBR-_Z-—NF+—_A=+-—
December 2018 are set out as follows: HzAERalZFBEHINET

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Particular of
issued/paid-in

Equity interest

Name type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ERAL/RIAR/ B#17/
=L WHREEEBRER BEURRAFE AEBEGRE TEXRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F | Z2—tF
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited US$5,100,000 51% 51% Garment retailing
(“Ting Camuto”) liability company
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited &5 B[R A 5,100,000 7T 51% 51% MKZE
([ Ting Camuto |)
Hangzhou Weiding The PRC, limited liability ~RMB15,000,000 50% — Garment retailing
company
S e BRAE AR 50% — KKZE
15,000,0007T
ESEEERARARN —T-NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

12

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Intangible assets

12 BILEE

Customer Exclusive
Goodwill ~ Trademark relationship supply right Total
wE wE EFB%E BRUER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d)
Pt 5 (a) Ft 35 (b) Kt (o) ft3E(d)
At 1 January 2017 R=Z-t5-A-H
Cost A 92,786 55,740 14,691 31,015 194,232
Accumulated amortisation ESE 3t - (45,090) (13,230) (22,999) (81,319)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (87,856) = = = (87,856)
Net book amount REFE 4,930 10,650 1,461 8,016 25,057
Year ended 31 December 2017 HBE=-Z—t &
+=A=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYERAEFE 4,930 10,650 1,461 8,016 25,057
Additions NE — — — 4,870 4,870
Amortisation 1 88 — (2,442) (1,461) (3,732) (7,635)
Exchange differences X =R = = = 9 9
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 4,930 8,208 = 9,163 22,301
At 31 December 2017 R-BE—+t&
+=—HA=+—H
Cost B AR 92,786 55,740 14,691 35,894 199,111
Accumulated amortisation Eag g - (47,532) (14,691) (26,731) (88,954)
Accumulated impairment ZFRE (87,856) — — — (87,856)
Net book amount B F B 4,930 8,208 = 9,163 22,301
Year ended 31 December 2018 ®HE—-Z— )\ F
+=—HA=+—H
I‘HEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 4,930 8,208 - 9,163 22,301
Amortisation #iH — (2,442) - (4,256) (6,698)
Impairment BB (4,930) - - - (4,930)
Exchange differences N ER - - - (50) (50)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE — 5,766 - 4,857 10,623
At 31 December 2018 R=-Z-—NF
+=ZA=+—H
Cost 24N 92,786 55,740 14,691 35,844 199,061
Accumulated amortisation ZEt#H — (49,974) (14,691) (30,987) (95,652)
Accumulated impairment 2FHRE (92,786) — — — (92,786)
Net book amount BREFE - 5,766 — 4,857 10,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets (Continued)

During the year, amortisation expenses of approximately
HK$2,442,000 (2017: HK$2,442,000), and HK$4,256,000 (2017:
HK$3,732,000) have been charged in selling, marketing and
distribution costs and against revenue, respectively.

Amortisation expenses of approximately HK$1,461,000 have been
charged in administrative expenses during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Notes:

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the CGU identified for OEM garment business and
fabric printing and dyeing business, the identified groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinations. The goodwill being
allocated to the OEM garment business resulted from the acquisition of
Zhejiang China Ting Group Company Limited is included in the OEM segment.
The goodwill being allocated to the fabric printing and dyeing business resulted
from the acquisition of Interfield Industrial Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Interfield”) is also included in the OEM segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on higher of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

Goodwill of OEM garment business has been fully impaired in previous years.
As at 31 December 2017, goodwill of the Group solely represented the
goodwill of the fabric printing and dyeing business.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

RA SR M

12 BEEE (&)
ER - BESERAIS 492,442,000 T (Z T —+
F 1 2,442,0007% T.) %4,256,000%8 T (= F
—+ % : 3,732,000 L) EDRIBHE - &
SR DA A A R IR A AR o

HE-_ZT—t+t&+-_A=+—BIEE "
HE 3 B ST 491,461,000 TE BITHRE XA
Eili

BB

(a) 8 R R
BEIETRIERERRER REHEDRE
BZERMBIZREELEN  REHANA G
RS &R IR E L BRAR o BB
TESKEEEFRREARIMESRLERRFBH
ERREBZEEIIARREEED R - BN
R EFHEEGR R A REMEAR (BB $
BOMELEZEHENREE 2BHEBTIAR
RERED B -

ReEEBMZ A REEETIRE A FERH
ERARERBEFETEZURRERE)E
E o ERBEAEAEADREREEEMHAERS
hFEMRZMBERE - ERKBEARSRER
el - REHRZBRZASREIRTIXARZ
EFHEREEE - AFHRZBRZAERETIE
3% (ZF—+1F :3%) 2R KR - BRE
VY ARBURSELBNREZEB 2 RATH
BEX-

R ERER R ER 2 B E R AR FE 28
HE -R_Z—+tF+_A=+—H £&EEH
BEZIEBNEEBHHE -

RERBEFEERAZEIEM/EIMOT :

2018 2017
—2-N% —T—tF
Fabric printing and dyeing business EREDREK
Budgeted gross margin TEEEFME 18% 20%
Pre-tax discount rate R % Al 47 3 & 14% 14%
Weighted average growth rate used to AAEHEESRE BeREY
extrapolate cash flows beyond the hnAE R K
budgeted periods 4% 8%

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEWMBBRWE

12 Intangible assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU. The weighted average
growth rate beyond the budget period is estimated based on current capacity

of the CGU.

During the current year, fabric printing and dyeing business under Interfield has
been undergoing business transformation. Certain property,
equipment and land use rights of Interfield have been demolished or relocated
as requested by local government during the current year (Notes 6 and 8). In
addition, Interfield’s property, plant and equipment and land use rights with
carrying amounts of HK$8,674,000 have been presented as held for sale
following the decision of the Group’s management to sell such assets in the
near term (Note 18). Thus, management is of the view that the recoverable
amount of the fabric printing and dyeing business as at 31 December 2018
became lower than the carrying amount of this CGU and such shortfall leads to
an impairment of goodwill of HK$4,930,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018. No other class of assets other than goodwill was impaired.

(b) The trademark represents the right to use the FINITY brand and TRENTA brand.

(c) The customer relationship was acquired in a business combination with Interfield

Industrial Limited.

(d) On 24 July 2009, the Group entered into an exclusive supply agreement with
Bernard Chaus, Inc. (“Bernard Chaus”) pursuant to which the Group was
appointed as the sole supplier of all its career and casual sportswear in the PRC
for a term of 10 years from the date of the agreement. In return the Group
agreed to pay Bernard Chaus an exclusive supply premium of US$4,000,000

(approximately HK$31,015,000).

On 31 May 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with Xcel Design
Group, LLC (“Xcel”) pursuant to which the Group was appointed as the sole
supplier in the PRC/Asia of certain women'’s apparel to certain Xcel's retail
licensees for a term of 44 months from the date of such agreement. In return
the Group agreed to pay Xcel an exclusive supply premium of US$500,000

(approximately HK$3,867,000).

On 1 November 2017, the Group entered into an exclusive supply agreement
with Hangzhou Ranyue pursuant to which the Group was appointed as the sole
supplier of Hangzhou Ranyue for a term of 10 years from the date of the
agreement. In return the Group agreed to pay Hangzhou Ranyue an exclusive

supply premium of RMB845,000 (approximately HK$1,003,000).
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BRVEE(R

BT 5

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(&)

()

ERERBAERREAAH LTS RREEHE
BEMNE - FRERTBR/IRBLA - WRRF R
ReEFBENZFERR - RIEHHBE 2 NEF
R RRRBRSEL BN 2 BRI N R ©

RAFRE - PEE T AOEAIENREREST T X5
R o R EM BTN ESK - RENETY
¥ - BRE RRR A DA B 3 A5 FA A (Ff 7E6 % 8) B 4E
TR ERE - o - RAN K E B 12 8 R HA
NEEZSEENRER FHNEEEA
8,674,000/ 7T 2 ¥ %~ BB e 3% A Je = 3 &
ARZIAREDE (HE18) - At - ERER
ROARNRAEBHATRESER-_T—-N\F
T A=+ BERZBESELBMMEEE -
BHERBSERBE_T—\ET_A=1—
H I £ 75 2 7 184,930,000 7T © bR i 8 M8
ZEEEYERE -

PR R AFINITY (GEJe i) FITRENTAR K2 2 12
H e

BEHRDRTBELARATETEB SO
B -

RZTZENF+AZ+TWB  A%EEHBernard
Chaus, Inc.([Bernard Chaus |) i X 78 5 £ /& #
HoOBL AEERZEREMTAA LHERR
EHEREFREAMZBRUER  RERGE
B e 5t + 4 - A& B [ B 32 144,000,0005 7T
(#931,015,0007% 7T) % K it f& ¥ B FBernard
Chaus

RZE—+tFRA=Z+—H K&K E HXcel
Design Group, LLC ([ Xcel ]) & f% 1 3% ° 1R #% 1
#HARERERRE TREERE TMNZB
REER  DETE TXlWTEF T - AH
mip#EE e+ NER - AEERE XM
500,000% T, (#93,867,0005% 7T ) 7B =K f /& R B T
Xcel ©

RZT—tF+—A—B  KEBERMNBEEE
KRBREE R - RiIRHHE  ARERETR/N
MBS EBREER A hiREB e+
FoAR & EMEAE XM AR 8450005 (4
1,003,0007% 7T ) #8 5K 4 F& 3R B T 70 M #5458 o
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RA B RS R & MY AT

Inventories 13 FE&
2018 2017
S —E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials R 131,504 150,779
Work in progress T8 m 148,623 163,994
Finished goods UK T 779,829 837,186
1,059,956 1,151,959
Less: Provision for inventories A FERE (64,295) (207,553)
995,661 944,406

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to approximately HK$987,416,000 (2017:

HK$1,002,314,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories are as

BRABAXAFTABERAZEFEE

X 7R %9 £987,416,000/8 T (— T — + 4 :

1,002,314,000% 7T) °

FEREREBHEZSHMT

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 207,553 136,516

Charged to the consolidated FFAGREER
profit or loss 30,441 59,215
Write off 3 (168,651) —
Exchange differences b H =5 (5.048) 11,822
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 64,295 207,553

As at 31 December 2018, inventories aged over four years
amounted to HK$168,651,000 (2017: Nil) were written-off as

unrealisable.

RZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—H " KRici#f
M4 H € ¥ 4168,651,000/8 T (Z T — &

FE)NFERBIZZLR MM

EREEERERAA

—E-N\FER
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A B RS IR & MY T

14 Financial instruments by category 14 ZEES7z2€@MI A
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT F& T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKASNEZSRMEE
Trade and bill receivables EIRE 5 R & EREE 462,573 450,331
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% #4 5k K 51 BR 2 E b
THMEE 303,994 —
Other loans and receivables H B & e W R IE — 332,032
Pledged bank deposits B IRITFER 50,957 28,939
Fixed deposits EHFER 20,553 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMBEHER 448,547 469,447
Available-for-sale financial assets AHNESHEE — 286,002
FVPL BATEINRERR KT EE
ZEMEE 304,269 19,967
1,590,893 1,586,718
Financial liabilities tMAE
Liabilities at amortised cost BREHEKASEREZBE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5B R & H At
J& 1~ FRIE 620,234 594,485
Borrowings &= 367,057 247,271
987,291 841,756
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RA B RS R & MY AT

15 Trade and other receivables 15 FEWE Z R R H 4 B
15
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade and bill receivables (Note (i) EIRE 5 R K& EWEE
(B 5EG)) 528,710 498,981
Less: Loss allowance (Note 3.1(d)) R BB R (MY 5E3.1(d)) (66,137) (48,650)
Trade and bill receivables, net B E 5 RRAKRERZEFHE 462,573 450,331
Amounts due from related parties JE W B8 3 75 3 E (BT sE34(0))

(Note 34(c)) 45,649 15,226
Promissory note (Note (ii)) A Z 8 (B 5EGi)) 38,124 36,914
Entrusted loans (Note (i) Z & 5 (B (i) ) 166,022 174,443
Advances to Zhejiang Haoran (Note 16) 4 Tl T i& SRR 2K (M 5E16) — 17,528
Prepayments SEEN O 143,075 126,689
Deposits and other receivables & & & H A fE U RIR 110,336 117,871

965,779 939,002
Non-current portion JEBNERED &
— Promissory note (Note (ii)) — A B8, (i) — 34,978
— Prepayments for property, plant and  — ¥ % - BB k& E KA
equipment KB 15,526 —
Current portion BV ER &8 5> 950,253 904,024
965,779 939,002
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free EREEFFRBRAERR LR RIEEX
and repayable on demand. EE -
Notes: B 5
(i) Trade and bill receivables (i) EHEZRRIREKER
The ageing analysis of gross trade and bill receivables based on invoice date is BHESEFRRENERAREREZEARIIE
as follows: oW
2018 2017
—2-n% —E—tf
HK$000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Up to 30 days 0%30H 239,711 284,150
31 to 60 days 31260% 71,560 73,796
61 to 90 days 61290% 58,526 50,326
91 to 120 days 912120% 94,501 38,152
Over 120 days HBiA120K 64,412 52,557
528,710 498,981

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR 165
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A B RS IR & MY T

15 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(ii)

15 BWEZRARRHMEKRR
5 (&)

MisE: (4
Trade and bill receivables (Continued) (i) FE R B 5 AR AR R FE R i ()
For OEM garment sales, the Group's trade receivables from its customers are RERERERKRHEENS AREREEATS
generally settled by way of letters of credit or telegraphic transfer with credit ZEWRE ZHRR—RUAEARKEESXEE
periods of not more than 90 days. The grant of open account terms without EEHTEIRB0R - BEARMEMREZRZER
security coverage is generally restricted to large or long-established customers SHR—RESRFEILHERFZARSR
with good repayment history. Sales to these customers comprise a significant HEF - AEERMULEEPETZHE  HRR
proportion of the Group’s OEM garment sales. On the other hand, for new and BRERKRHEBZR/ATD - B AEE—
existing customers with short trading history, letters of credit issued by these MEXEBERFEREZHELPARBEER
customers are normally demanded for settlement purposes. REEARAEETAR -
For sales of branded fashion apparel to franchisees, the Group normally MEFTEREHET I REREHEEMS - %
requests payments in advance or deposits from such customers, with the B-RERZEFRFEMKEN RS - #HEAR
remaining balances settled immediately upon delivery of goods. The Group also ERERNEEE AEETERERLER
grants open account terms of 30 credit days to long-established customers with HrREEFPRESEFEERZEERSHIR -
good repayment history.
Retail sales are settled in cash, by credit cards, through internet payment TEDNURE AR BES X FRBHE
service providers or collected by department stores/online retailers on behalf of BAEEIHEERAR/ B ETEAREAEER
the Group. The agreed credit terms with credit card companies are usually B-BEARARBEZEEHBE R14B A
within 14 days. Department stores and online retailers are normally required to Ao AEE-—REKAERTARKLTEENE
settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 months from the date of sale. ERESMEANRAEESEEMEKE -
Bill receivables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months. BREEZ FHEHBEAMEAR -
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair EHRESERREMERREBE REERELAQ
values. FEBEE -
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected REEEREBN B RELERESREL A
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade BREGGEEEE  ZAERMERKE SRR E
receivables, except for those individually significant trade receivables or trade FEERENEEREE HEESEIANER
receivables at default which are to be tested individually. ESBERKBEONEKRE SERBRIN - BEH
BEETAR -
The loss allowance increased approximately by a further HK$19,025,000 for RAFERE @ BRE ZERAOE B EE— 21 m
trade receivables during the current year. Information about the impairment of #719,025,000%8 7T - H BB E 5 IR FURE K A
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk SEAEBRNEERR  INERR XTI EREBRE
and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1(d). B A 2B 5E3.1(d) ©
Movements on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as BRE FERFREREOESHMOT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FHET
At 1 January R—A—H 48,650 50,655
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss AR A B 19,025 14,894
Write off s — (17,316)
Reversal of provision BERE — (979)
Exchange differences MEH =5 (1,538) 1,396
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 66,137 48,650
Promissory note (ii) EREE

The promissory note represents a senior unsecured promissory note with
original principal amounted to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,350,000) converted from trade receivables due from a major customer
which will be payable in various installments until July 2019. The promissory
note is interest-bearing at 5.25% per annum.
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AR EZREARR—EETEEFEHRRER
sz —hHEABEREALERE  RELXLHEAR
10,000,000 7t (48 % # £977,350,0007% 7T) * &
REZEZT—AFLtADZHIM - REERIR
F85.25%: 8 -
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Entrusted loans

On 24 December 2012, the Group entered into three secured entrusted loans
(“Entrusted Loan A") with total principals amounting to RMB30,000,000
(approximately HK$35,562,000) due from a company established in the PRC
(“Borrower A") through a lending agent, a commercial bank in the PRC.
Entrusted Loan A is interest-bearing at 18% per annum payable on a quarterly
basis and the principal would be payable on or before 25 December 2014. An
affiliate of Borrower A pledged to the lending agent certain number of
properties located at Yuhang District in Hangzhou as collaterals.

Further on 5 February 2013, the Group entered into another eight secured
entrusted loans (“Entrusted Loan B”) with total principals amounting to
RMB130,000,000 (approximately HK$154,101,000) due from a company
established in the PRC, an affiliate of Borrower A (“Borrower B"”), through a
lending agent, a commercial bank in the PRC. Entrusted Loan B is interest-
bearing at 18% per annum payable on a monthly basis and the principal would
be payable on or before 5 February 2014. An affiliate of Borrower B pledged to
the lending agent a parcel of land located at Lin‘an City in Hangzhou as
collateral.

On 27 January 2014, the Group renewed Entrusted Loan B with the borrower
for twelve months from the original expiry date of 5 February 2014 to 5
February 2015. The terms and conditions of Entrusted Loan B, other than the
repayment period, remained unchanged.

Corporate and personal guarantees were provided by affiliates of Borrower A
and B in favour of the lending agents to secure the obligations of Borrower A
and B under the entrusted loan agreements.

In June 2014, there was a failure for Borrower A and B to settle the interest
within the agreed payment schedules set forth in the agreements for both
Entrusted Loan A and B.

On 5 August 2014, the lending agent of Entrusted Loan B had reached eight
civil claim mediation agreements with Borrower B, in which Borrower B had
agreed to pay the principal of Entrusted Loan B amounting to RMB130,000,000
and the interest due up to 20 June 2014 before 31 October 2014. In addition,
according to the civil claim mediation agreements, Borrower B was required to
settle the interest incurred during the period from 21 June 2014 to the date of
settlement at 22.5% per annum.

On 17 November 2014, the lending agent of Entrusted Loan A had reached
three civil claim mediation agreements with Borrower A, in which Borrower A
had agreed to pay the principal of Entrusted Loan A amounting to
RMB30,000,000 and the interest due at the rate of 18% per annum before 30
November 2014.

Borrower A and B failed to settle the principal and the related interest in
accordance with the civil claim mediation agreements by 30 November 2014.

On 18 November 2014, Borrower A and B filed voluntary bankruptcy at the
People’s Court of Yuhang District which then approved the appointment of the
administrator and accepted the petition for bankruptcy proceedings. In
February 2015, the Group lodged proof of debts through its lending agents to
the administrator in respect of the claims. The first creditors’ meetings were
held on 19, 20 March and 2 April 2015.

15

RA SR M

W E 5 ik R H R WK
5 (%)

B 5

(iii)

(%

EFXER

N-T——F+-A-+mWA  NEEEBER
RE(AR—EPEFERTTL=HEK—MH
RPEBEKRZZ AR (BERAAD ZEERERLE
RIEFXERAD KX BBERARS
30,000,0007T (#8 & # #935,562,0005% 7T) ° & 5t
BRARERI8%:T B ABFEXN A
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Entrusted loans (Continued)
Two rounds of open tenders were held by the trustee of bankruptcy in
November 2017 and March 2018, respectively, to identify potential
restructuring investors, which were both terminated with no qualified investor
identified. The third round of open tender commenced in March 2019 and is
still in progress as at the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the pledged collaterals
held by the Group for entrusted loans are determined based on the valuation
performed by the Valuer using market based valuation techniques with
reference to current prices in an active market of similar properties.

As at 31 December 2018, Entrusted Loan A of approximately HK$16,169,000
(2017: HK$16,990,000) was impaired. Based on the valuation performed by the
Valuer, fair values of the pledged collaterals for Entrusted Loan A and B is
higher than such entrusted loans’ carrying amounts. The directors are of the
opinion that there is no further impairment for Entrusted Loan A and B as at
31 December 2018.

B E 5 iR R H R W
5 (&)

BEEE

(iii)

(8)

EXER(H)
BEEBABR=-FT—tHF+-AR=F-N
FZADBETMEIRBIE  ANEEEEM
BEE HERMEIHARRRAEMS KL -
E=HBAHBER T —NAFE= ARG RAR
SRHMMELTH -

R_B-NEFR-_F—tHF+-A=+—R8"
ARERZREERAFEERERRORFE
TIREEMERERTSNGHEST EZLLLE
BUMFRELTRT S LOERNBRABEEN
EEE -

RZZE-—NF+-A=+—8 ZRXERAD
16,169,000/ 7T (= T — £ 4 : 16,990,000/ 7T)
HRABERE - REBEHEMAEGE REEE
HARBRIERERRNATFERRZERRAE
BFOEAE EFERR ZEXRRARBR =%
—NF+_A=+—RLmE—FRE

Movements of the entrusted loans are as follows: ERERZEHMT ¢
2018 2017
—g-ng —E—t%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January R—A—AR 174,443 160,974
Exchange differences MEH =5 (8.421) 13,469
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8” 166,022 174,443

The carrying amounts of the Group’s net trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments, promissory note and entrusted

A6 [ B W B B AR AR R E A R R AR IR (R
BEBENFIE AXZBEREFRER) FE

loans) are denominated in the following currencies: ZEREE N T BHEEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
HK$ BT 5,148 21,631
RMB AR 345,577 348,613
us$ X 264,798 227,043
Euro 5 3,035 3,669
618,558 600,956

The carrying amounts of other receivables are aged current and do
not contain any impaired assets.
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=
A

175 ¥ K MY RE

FVPL 16 BAFEIKREERRTE
BretmEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT
Listed equity securities (Note () EPBAZEZMED) | ] 15393 | 19967
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran (Note (ii)) AL &R IR A FEYERE
BRATEEs7EREE
(B 7 (i) )
— Equity interests — BRAREE 41,511 —
— Shareholder’s loans — BREER 230,683 —
— Advances — B 16,682 —
| 288876 | .
304,269 19,967

Movements of the Group’s FVPL for the year ended 31 December

2018 are as follows:

AEEBE_T-N\F+_A=+—81
FEMNBAFEIGERGRTREZ S

BREEZBAT
FVPL in
Listed equity Zhejiang
securities Haoran Total
RAIERD
RATFEIERE
BRirPEE
FARAES ZERMEE wot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FTERT FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—A—H 19,967 - 19,967
Additions NE 136 — 136
Disposals BE (12) — (12)
Reclassified from available-for-sale AR 4% F 7 Bt 76 3 &5 % A
financial assets on adoption of FORKEAHEES
HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2) MEEZEHHHA
(Fff5E2.2) — 286,002 286,002
Reclassified from other receivables 7 %48 & 74 B 75 3R &5 2 8
on adoption of HKFRS 9 FO5E B B H {th FE WK
(Note 2.2) HEH D8 (H:F2.2) — 17,528 17,528
Fair value loss — unrealised AFEEE — KEH
(Note 25) (Bff 5£25) (3.869) — (3,869)
Exchange differences N =5 (829) (14,654) (15,483)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=A=+—~8 15,393 288,876 304,269
ESEEERERAT - N\FFRK
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16 FVPL (Continued)

Movements of the Group’s FVPL for the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

16 BAVEIIKRERGERTE
Bre@MEEE)
AEBRE-T—tFT-A=+—B1t
FEHRATENFCESRTEREL S

MEEZFHAOT
Listed equity
securities
EHRAES
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 19,498
Additions NE 413
Disposals RE (6,360)
Fair value gain — unrealised (Note 25) NEEEE — RER (M 5E25) 5,059
Exchange differences X =5 1,357
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF+-A=+—H 19,967

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The fair values of all equity securities are based on their current bid prices in an
active market.

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran

Zhejiang Haoran is a company engaged in commercial property development in
Hangzhou. The principal asset of Zhejiang Haoran is a commercial property
project located in Hangzhou (the “Property”), which is valued using direct
comparison approach.

Repayment of the shareholder’'s loans of RMB211,285,000 (approximately
HK$240,996,000) has been in default since 2014. In June 2016, the Group
initiated a legal action against Zhejiang Haoran for the repayment of a portion
of the loans amounted to RMB8,700,000 (approximately HK$10,313,000). In
March 2017, the People’s Court of Yuhang District decided in favour of the
Group and the Group subsequently collected the relevant loan together with a
compensation of interest of RMB8,895,000 (approximately HK$10,277,000)
(Note 24).

The Group further issued two demand letters to Zhejiang Haoran to demand
for the repayment of a portion of the shareholder’s loans of RMB172,700,000
(approximately HK$196,652,000) and part of the advances of RMB7,250,000
(approximately HK$8,256,000) in March 2017 and August 2017, respectively.
Legal actions had been initiated subsequent to the issue of the demand letters.

In June and August 2018, the aforesaid legal actions for repayment of
shareholder’s loans and advances against Zhejiang Haoran were rejected by the
Hangzhou Intermediate People’s Court and the People’s Court of Yuhang
District (collectively the “Courts”), respectively. Whilst the judgements from the
Courts stated that the Group has the legal right to recover such amounts, it
was of the view of the Courts that the Group would not be able to request for
immediate repayment for repayment until Zhejiang Haoran has settled all third-
party debts.
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(ii)

MBERAEFNRAFEDRAREEMIGHR
TREEESH-

BRI RNBEAFEIRERERPEEZ
ETREE
HTERR—HRAMEEFEDEREOR
Bl ALERANEBERERMRMMAEERYE
HE (ZWE] ZOEAERLBRESTHE
B

% B 3 A R %211,285,0007T (#7240,996,000
BLT)MNBERE - NFREERH - R
—NERA  ANEE AL RBEERFAD
22 SROMT T 2R 1838 28 9 B 5k A R #68,700,0007T
(#910,313,000 L) e R=ZE—+F = " ;41
[ A BREBT I 78 7N o [ Bk 5 - 7R o= I BE 15 ICBUE
B E R E R RS E A R %8,8950007T (4
10,277,000 7T) (Fff 524) -

AEER_ZT—+tF=AR=Z—tFN\AD
B —HRAIEARBEMEFTBAE - K
BEDDRREZKARK72,700,0007T (49
196,652,000/ 7T ) K &6 53 2 58 A R #7,250,0007C
(#98,256,0008 7T) - AEEE R BN RBAE
BAREIRR A

REZB-NERNRARNA - MR RARERR
AR A RER (B8 AR 2 Bl B @ Lt %
WL AEERRERRBROERFR - BE
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16 FVPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran (Continued)

Management has disagreed with the Courts’ judgments on the basis that there
is no legal evidence indicating such shareholder’s loans and advances are
subordinated to other creditors or otherwise such loans could only be repaid at
the time of winding up of Zhejiang Haoran. In July and August 2018, the
Group lodged appeals to the relevant courts in the PRC for the repayment
claims regarding the shareholder’s loans and advances, respectively, and sought
to overturn the judgements rendered for each of the claims. In February 2019,
the appeals were dismissed by the relevant court and the original judgements
made by the Courts were remained unchanged.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group took further legal actions
against Zhejiang Haoran including a petition to wind up Zhejiang Haoran as a
shareholder and to enforce its right as a shareholder of Zhejiang Haoran to
access books and records. The petition to wind up was overruled by the
Hangzhou Intermediate People’s Court in November 2018, but the Courts ruled
that the Group has the right to access to certain documents and records of
Zhejiang Haoran as a shareholder, including the sales contracts of the Property,
in February 2019.

Having considered the litigation results, the Group decided that it will continue
to pursue recovery of its FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran through petition to the Trial
Supervision Division of the Higher People’s Court of Zhejiang Province and/or
the Supreme People’s Court of the People’s Republic of China to seek for
retrial of the Group’s petitions to demand for immediate repayment from
Zhejiang Haoran. Moreover, the Group will inspect certain documents and
records of Zhejiang Haoran in order to collect more information about its
business and financial performance upon the expiration of appeal period for
such judgement.

As advised by the Group's legal counsel as to the PRC law and after
considering the merits and basis of the legal proceedings between Zhejiang
Haoran and the Group, despite of the aforesaid appeals lodged by the Group
being dismissed by the relevant court, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group will be successful in the forthcoming legal proceedings.
Thus, the directors of the Company considers the assumptions and basis
applied in the fair value assessment of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran, continued
to represent their best estimates and such financial assets will be realised in the
coming twelve months from 31 December 2018.

The Group was unable to obtain any financial information of Zhejiang Haoran
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018. As such, the fair value of
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31 December 2018 was estimated by
management using the Adjusted NAV approach based on Zhejiang Haoran's
financial information as at 31 December 2016, which was its latest financial
information made available to the Group. The fair value of the Property has
been adjusted to take into account the latest market price movements of
similar properties at nearby locations during the current year assuming the
construction of the Property has been completed during the year. Interest
expense for the current year has been accrued for interest-bearing liabilities
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and assuming the balance outstanding
and the interest rates remained unchanged from those as at 31 December
2016. Construction costs incurred subsequent to 31 December 2016 have been
accrued up to mid-2018 which is the assumed completion date of the
construction of the Property, assuming such costs have been incurred in
accordance with the original project budget provided to the Group with certain
overruns. Other assumptions adopted in the valuation, including but not limited
to the minority interest discount rate, were assumed to remain unchanged from
those as at 31 December 2017.

RA SR M

16 EAFEIREEZRPE
BremEE(E)
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EEBIRRERIR  BEABMEREER
T A% PR BRI e B SR A R S R I Lt (R
A REMEREENTERFRE S ATEE -
R=B-NFLARNA A&BERHEREBE
B 53 Bl 3h AR SR B R R B AR M S@ SR SRR AR -
YABEBEE - BEREHOAR - R=F
—NEZR - ZF5LHFFABERKE - #RE
Be BR#)

BE—Z—/\FT-A=+—HLFE F%£H
RN R — SRR RF R (BEERRR
BEMITERNZ2E) ARBIITEERTE
RZBREMMKRE R &ETN - BE2FN =
Z—\F+—AERMNPRARZRERKED - E%
BR-ZF-AF-AZR  AEBEEABRRERE
ERIT AR E T XM Rk - BEZMEN
HEAK -

RBERFABR - AN K ERE A B RB AT
HRBARZERRSRHEARKNEZS AR
ERBHAEEERREZH  USKERFEEHE
SRATTE AL EVERMN 25 - #EM =R AT
ROBAFEINEEBRERTREZ SRMEE -
b SN - 7 55 B 2 B T T AR B R T XM RS
8 - AR BB HBT R S A M E R R R B HL 2
BRUBRENESER -

RS 8 B 2 B AR O T R
KEZRZEREFORRRKE  BERAAKHE
REZ EREEMARRD  BARREERR
AR W R RRAERIZF B - Bt AR
AEERA  NINLERNEAFEIIKERS
RPRBEZERMEEN R FEMGHMERZ
BREEBEEBRRAREENRELS  MEES
MEERR-_Z-N\F+-A=+—HEFR
R+—EARER -

FEERLEBHIERAR-_F-N\F+=-A
St HRBEZALFENERNSBER -
Fit - R=ZZ—NF+A=+—BRITHER
mﬁ&¥ﬁﬂ%&ﬁé%¢ﬁ@2ﬁ@ﬁém
RFETy B E R ERBENIER —RF
T=-RA=+— EWW%QH&%K*IT ) i
MEM B AR RACHABREEFEAMGE - &%
MENRFEE TIAFE - AEEREFFEH
RHBI R RN RO TS EBES - W RRZ
%¥MMIE#$¢FWmW AEEMSHX

ERR-F-R"F+-A=+—HHOREES
gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 0 R % A {588 A4 i T ) 2
E-AFET-A=+ " RERFTE -R_F

—RETZAZ T HREENBEKXAER
HAEZE-N\FED(ERRA/ZMEEINE
KA BRBR{AEBKASERERETA
SENRTBEEEE (ERETEX)EL - BRR
BEFFRAOEMERRER (BFETRR D
BRESRFER) A _F—+F+-_A=+—H
ERFTE -

EREEERERAA T — )\ FFRH

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

N

17

A B 1% R M R

Cash and bank balances

BeERBITHEER

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Cash at bank and in hand WITHERLFERS 402,833 400,048
Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) E AR 1T 77 3 (B 5 (a)) 45,714 69,399
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMBHHEHR 448,547 469,447
Fixed deposits (Note (b)) T HA 77 3K (BT 5E(b) ) 20,553 —
Pledged bank deposits (Note (c)) EERRITE R () 50,957 28,939
520,057 498,386

Denominated in: LATRF| EHE A -
HK$ BT 9,318 13,721
RMB (Note (d)) AR ¥ (M 5(d)) 314,924 281,818
uss$ ETT 193,773 196,526
Other currencies Hith &5 #& 2,042 6,321
520,057 498,386

Notes:

(a)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 2.62% (2017: 2.32%)
per annum; short-term bank deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 days to
less than 3 months.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate on the Group’s fixed deposits
is 3.68% per annum; fixed deposits have a maturity ranging from 3 months to
less than 1 year.

Bank deposits of approximately HK$50,957,000 (2017: HK$28,939,000) have
been pledged for trade finance facilities made available to the Group by
relevant banks.

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits is 1.45% (2017: 1.29%)
per annum.

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with
banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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18 Assets held for sale

As at 31 December 2018, certain property, plant and equipment
and land use rights located in Heshan, PRC of approximately
HK$5,154,000 and HK$3,520,000, respectively, have been
presented as held for sale following the decision of the Group's
management to sell such assets in the near term to cooperate
with Heshan local government’s “three old” transformation for old
towns, old factories and old villages. As at the date of this report,
such assets held for sale are open to tender through public
auction platforms. The Group has been working with local
government and currently in the process of identifying appropriate
potential buyers.

RA SR M

18 FEHEEE
R-_ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H8 AEEE
WEMBRTNENE  EFRFE  ENEI=
ElE A5EEEBEERNOEALE
ZEEERRT 215 FA 45,154,000
77T }%3,520,0008 T B T AL A R BIES L
MYE BERXEMLHEREZINA
BIEHE RARESBH  ZEHELHE
EEBALAABEFEHETARBEZE K
SE—EHHEWBREES BRAIEYES
BREEER ©

19 Share capital 19 B
Number of shares Total
RHEHE st
(in '000) HK$'000
(F %) FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRO10B T2 E B
Authorised: JATE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 HRZ=-T—+F—H—H "
and 2018 —E—tFRZFE-NF
+=-—A=+—8 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRER :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-—_ZTE—+F—H—H8-
and 2018 TEEFERZZE-N\EF
+—-—A=+—8 2,099,818 209,982
ESEEERERAT - N\FFRK
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20 Reserves 20 f#fE
Share-based Capital
Share Capital  Contributed Statutory compensation  redemption  Revaluation Exchange Retained
premium reserve surplus reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
HRBXH
RfGE  EAHE  BARR  iRBE  BMEE EARREE  EREE  NERE  REEA it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TER T TAT TER T TAT TER T
(Note (i)) (Note (i)~ (Note (iii)  (Note (iv)) (Note (v))
(H20)  (W&6) (=) (W2 WEW)
A January 2018 N-2-NE-F-A 78251 M6 (&) 1380 un WU US4 B SR 231585
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - - 21,045 21,045
Profit appropriation AR - - - 5,300 - - - - (5,300 -
Currency translation differences ERREEE - - - - - - - (143,334) - (143,334)
Revaluation surplus upon transfers of % T HENEEAREN
owner-occupied properties to SZERBA (K
investment properties (Note 7) 7) - - - - - - 207,638 - - 207,638
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+2R=t-8 8251 N AL 0 W1 B A0 I 24030
Share-based Capital
Share Capital ~ Contributed Statutory  compensation ~ redemption  Revaluation Exchange Retained
premium resere surplus reserves resere reserve reserve resere eanmings Total
BB
BhEE  ARRE  HARR  iRBE @ BMEE 44RDEE 0 EREE  SERE  REEN &3t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEn Thn TEx TEn Thn TiEx TEn Thn TR TEn
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iv) (Note (v))
(M) (&) (a6 (&) (Kizt))
At 1 Janury 2017 R-$-t§-A-8 98251 e GRY 13 7 A0S M T 205879
Proft for the year ERER - - - - = = = = 149,689 149,689
2016 final dividend paig “E-RERARERS - - - - - - - - (17,848) (17,848)
2017 interim and special dividend ~ =F—tFEHFHR
paid (Note) RS () - = = = = = = = (41,366) (41,366)
Profit appropriation AR = - - 2462 - - - - (2462 -
Currency translation differences EuagzE = = = = = = = 170,008 = 170,008
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of T B AN EEEREN
certain porton of an £ ERHEH ()
owner-occupled property to
investment property (Note 7) = = = = = = 16,952 = = 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to profit i - B AR
or loss upon deregistration of an ~~ EHE S HEZ R
associate = = = = = = = (20278) = (20278)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-££
t-A=t-H 978,251 1,46 (4,624) 136,849 707 241 27,54 308,734 852,162 2,315,954
Note i3
Representing: R&:
2017 interim dividend paid “Z-tEEHPERE = = = = = = = = (29,607) (29,607)
2017 interim special dividend pald ~ —F-+EE iR HER
ks - - - - - - - - (11,759) (11,759)
- - - - - - - - (41,366) (41,366)
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20 Reserves (Continued)

21

Notes:

(i) Capital reserve represents capital contributions other than the paid up share
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.

(ii) Contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation of
the Group took place in 2005 over the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange.

(iii) Statutory reserves include statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations on foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer an amount of their profit for the year to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital.
The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to make good of previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of
these subsidiaries.

The appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund is solely determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in the PRC. The enterprise expansion fund
can only be used to increase capital of group companies or to expand their
production operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

(iv) Share-based compensation reserve represents value of employee services under
the Group’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme.

(v) Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

RA SR M

20 f#4E (&)

B &

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EXRFEREERLE  BETeBEASEET S
BRRZBWBA -

FREZHAAABERRE-_FFAFAKE S
7 2548 AT MR B B U8 2 ) 2 B £ T M B S X A
BITMERBZRAmBE M2 Z8 -

EERBRBEAECAREREERRES - BRE
RAEBERIIINERAECEZHBRARR
AREZHBENBARAR - EFEENSE
HESEAEARE EERFAMSRTERT
MEARS0% ° LK EI AR EERESE
ARNRBRHAEFE 2 BRIEMLEEHNE A
RIZEZX -

CEFRESZOEMABFBTFESMBAFZ
ERYET  CAMBBLER CEXBREES
ERREEMEEBTARZER  KAERE
HAERR-

BN N RMEREASEERAREER
AR B BT BIA T 2 R BRI EE -

AXRREFEFEEBELDRN ZEE-

21 EEFREH
EEELE TP EIPY R
ERNBHEABENALETHEHER
— B B AR B B - ED R K 8 K AT B
AEREE - EHBEMT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—iF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTH B B 78,463 80,862
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFSTR AR (83,136) (21,752)
(4,673) 59,110

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
expected to be settled after more than 12 months.

BEMGEREENMBEEREHRABEAR
BE+ —EAREME-

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movements in net deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets are as

21 EERFH (&)

follows: T:
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 59,110 45,411
Credited to the consolidated profit or loss &t A 4R & 18 25 & (Fff 5£27)

(Note 27) 6,668 14,481
Debited to equity (Note 27) T A (Mt 5E27) (69,213) (5,651)
Exchange differences IE % = %8 (1,238) 4,869
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H (4,673) 59,110
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BEFSMEERABBERFRNZEE (T
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of TR R — B EARE R K 8 2 A 5R) a0
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T

Decelerated Provisions Net fair
tax for value losses Government
depreciation inventories of FVPL grants Total
RAVETIRE
BRRVTEEZ
SREEZAY
HEBERE FERE EEBEE BRREE EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL FEL THET TAT
Deferred income tax assets BEFMBHEE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t&—-H—H 22,890 34,131 2,251 - 59,272
Exchange differences EREE 1,737 2,956 122 = 4,815
Credited/(charged) to the REABREKITA/ (k)

consolidated profit or loss 3,036 14,804 (1,065) = 16,775
At 31 December 2017 and RIB—+tE+ZA=Z+-AR

1 January 2018 “Z-\¥-f-AH 27,663 51,891 1,308 - 80,862
Exchange differences ERER (1,440) (2,779) (87) (14) (4,320)
Credited to the consolidated FAGERRR

profit or loss 2,903 7,610 674 381 11,568
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+ZA=t—-H 29,126 56,722 1,895 367 88,110
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21 Deferred income tax (Continued) 21 EEZERBH(E)
Revaluation

Accelerated of buildings Undistributed

tax and land Customer  profits of PRC
depreciation use rights relationship entities Total

EFRTR MERE
MEHERE THRRE EFME RAEET @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL TER TERL TER

Deferred income tax liabilities ~ BEFREHEE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—t&—-H—H 1,049 10,796 244 1,772 13,861
Exchange differences ERER (10) (44) = = (54)
(Credited)/charged to the REABRERITA/

consolidated profit or loss (nK) (495) (359) (244) 3392 2,294

Charged to equity arising from RERNEEZRENER
revaluation of an owner-occupied B ffi 1 & RAH B
property upon transfer to

investment property - 5,651 - - 5,651
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&+-A=1—-H 544 16,044 - 5,164 21,752
Revaluation
Accelerated of buildings  Undistributed
tax and land use  profits of PRC
depreciation rights entities Total
EffEFR hEG¥E
mRHBRE T EAE KA EEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TERT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAR
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\§—A—H 544 16,044 5,164 21,752
Exchange differences EXER V)] (3,080) - (3,082)
Charged to the consolidated FAGEERR
profit or loss 165 652 4,083 4,900
Charged to equity arising from ERNEEERENMER
revaluation of owner-occupied EfMEREANE
properties upon transfer to
investment properties — 69,213 — 69,213
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FTZA=1—8 707 82,829 9,247 92,783
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fe= A

o

21

=

B %5 R MY R
Deferred income tax (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities of

approximately HK$58,502,000 (2017: HK$59,482,000) have not
been established for the withholding taxation that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the
PRC totaling HK$1,170,042,000 (2017: HK$1,189,646,000) as the
directors considered that the timing of the reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and the related temporary
difference will not be reversed nor taxable in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of approximately
HK$66,380,000 (2017: HK$60,166,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$269,403,000 (2017:
HK$240,665,000), that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. The tax losses expire from 2019 to 2022 (2017:
2018 to 2021).

22 Trade and other payables

21

22

EEFTEH (&)
R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H ELHRE
T & & 4958,502,000% T (= & — + 4 :
59,482,000/ 7T ) W A #2 B & T[T B A A
i o BE 28 F $£1,170,042,000/8 70 (= Z
—+4F 1 1,189,646,0005 7T) B 2 FEFO L
TEH B - R EER AR LA HI 5 B B B
ERBENNEBEBBEREEBTSNA
B R B B R & 4 R R o

il 18 B8 5% 745 1) 25 7] 45 48 oK IR JE RR U )
B ELEHMEREEREEHISEIER
PR o NS B I B AT 45 B DA 8 R SR B AR
UL A 2 B 18 #9269,403,0000 T (= &
— 4= 4F 1 240,665,0005% 7T) M & 22 0% 1T B
15 7% & 7= 4966,380,00008 7T (Z T —+4F -
60,166,000/ 7T) - B EEEE — T — NLF
E-T_oFER(CEEF TN
FE—T=-—F)-

BN E SRR E ME N
|

2018 2017

—B-N\F —ZF—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade and bill payables ERESERRARENZRE 503,088 475,551

Other payables and accruals H{h f& 1+ ;B K fE 5 B 189,804 231,293
Amounts due to related parties FE 151 B8 32 75 538 (Bt 5E34(c))

(Note 34(c)) 1,269 1,045

694,161 707,889
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22 Trade and other payables (Continued) 22 BEREZERARHEAMENSK

5 (&)
The ageing analysis of trade and bill payables based on invoice ENESERRENEREREZBHZER
date is as follows: BoMWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
Up to 30 days 0£30H 304,335 329,734
31 to 60 days 31260H 65,514 41,063
61 to 90 days 61290H 32,570 24,604
Over 90 days B0 H 100,669 80,150
503,088 475,551
Bill payables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months. ERNEEzFHIHBEMEAA -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are RNEB 2 EMNE RN R EMERRIEZ
denominated in the following currencies: RREIE A T3 B EHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TR
HKS %7 30,027 11,278
RMB AR 575,627 565,570
Other currencies Hih B 14,580 15,637
620,234 592,485
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate FE 5 8 5 BR 3% K% HL th P& < 301 2 BR T (A B
their fair values. HAFEEE -
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. L
23 Bank borrowings 23 |RITEXN
2018 2017
—E-NEF —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
Bank borrowings RITIE X
— secured — BHEA 367,057 247,151
— unsecured — EEH — 120
367,057 247,271
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BERIITWAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Portion of bank borrowing due for —FREHEER ZRITEREP
repayment within one year which HEHHAREREER
contains a repayment on demand ;— BER )
clauses — secured (Note) 178,495 41,531
Portion of bank borrowing due for —FEREHEER ZRITIERED
repayment after one year which contains 15 * R # 5 E B K E B §
a repayment on demand clauses — — BER )
secured (Note) 127,073 167,334
Term loan due for repayment within one — & RNEIHEE 2 B HER
year — secured — HEH 61,489 38,286
Term loan due for repayment within one —FREIEEEZBHE R
year — unsecured — EE R — 120
Total bank borrowings RITfE KA 367,057 247,271
Note:  According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation of Financial Statements MiaE: BBEFBREESRIMBRRZZ5 — BERA
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on HUERERERGR2BERERZAH] &
Demand Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding repayment R GHMNE S AR )28 EREEGHRK
on demand clause (“callable feature”), which gives the lender a clear and ([ESHE]) 4 T EFRAE A I 2 IR (R

unambiguous unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a current liability in its

FIBE R 2 EIE ERER -
BEERAKERES

BARRBERE

AlfERABREAE
CRERE

balance sheet, as the borrower does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Accordingly the long-term portion of the Group’s bank borrowing was classified
as current liabilities in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2018, the secured bank borrowings were secured
by certain leasehold land and buildings (Note 6) and land use
rights (Note 8) with aggregated net book amounts of
approximately HK$132,130,000 (2017: HK$131,843,000).
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KA R B EAREEMN AT HEERRZHRE

EERERFMBRERL T _EA Bt R=F

*/\EJr A=+—R AKEZRITEREH
PEREEABRASBEARDAERE -

R—ZE—N\F+=_A=+—8 BEME
%J’ALM@HEE/ME #9/132,130,000/8 7T
T — 4 131,843,000/ 7T) 2 & T M
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Bank borrowings (Continued)
An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank

23 RITEMA)

AEERTEREAEREERER 2

borrowings by type and currency is as follows: wamT
2018 2017
—B-N\#E —T—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
HK$ at floating rates B FEFIE 305,568 208,865
RMB at fixed rates AR - EE F = 61,489 38,406
367,057 247,271
The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date REEBZERFEMNENT :
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\% —E— %
HK$ BT 3.38% 2.55%
RMB AR 5.27% 5.05%

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

RITEFR2EMEEE R FERS -

AEBERERERBEDT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E— %
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FH&ET
Floating rate 32 Bl FI &
— expiring within one year — —FANER 320,186 358,089
Fixed rate TE FI| =
— expiring within one year — —FRNER 58,073 81,180
378,259 439,269

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject
to review at various dates during 2019.

—FAERMZBERFERE AR _Z
—hWEARTRBHTIAER -

EREEERERAA

—E-N\FER
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24 Other income 24 HMW A
2018 2017
—2-N\%F —E—t
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBT FH&ET
Compensation received (Note 16(ii)) B W E & (M FE16(i0)) — 10,277
Rental income He A 6,210 9,945
Commission income el A 4,953 3,694
Scrap sales &R S 1,301 1,987
Government grants BT Bh & 2,846 783
Investment income KEKA 2,556 168
Others H A 3,610 1,864
21,476 28,718
25 Other gains, net 25 Hfttl = F 8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net exchange gains/(losses) FEH W= (&i18) 58 31,637 (4,217)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & %) % /) A (& Yz (K aE7)
(Note 7) 4,133 2,186
Fair value (loss)/gain on FVPL BEATFEINEEEERTEE
— unrealised ZEMEENNTE
(BB s — RER (3.869) 5,059
Fair value gain on FVPL — realised BEATFEINECEERRTERE
EMEENATFEKE —
B &1 47 5,370
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE & EZED
and equipment (B#8) = (3.959) 3,902
Reversal of provision for customer claims %[0 & F B & # & 1,985 549
Gain on requisition and demolition of M BE REENA R T
property, plant and equipment and land B & P K 3 B Uk =5 (Bt &)
use rights (Note) 27,071 —
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 12) B R E & 18 (i E12) (4,930) —
52,115 12,849

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights located in Hangzhou, of a net book amount of
HK$13,278,000, were made requisition of by local government to be
demolished and/or relocated. Relevant compensation amounted to
HK$40,349,000 were granted by local government with this regard, resulting in
a net gain of HK$27,071,000. Such compensation has been fully received by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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fi3r: BE_Z-—N\F+-_A=+—HLEE ££H
A7 R ) BR TS B 413,278,000 T H 1 %
B 55 B 55 4 DA R 3 {5 PR R 4K o BT AR
MR o R EE - B R THES
40,349,000 7T + B i 2 4 % Ik 2527,071,0007
ToHEZET-N\FT_A=+—HIEFE K
EEEEHKBHES -
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26 Finance income and costs 26 BLEUW AR KA
2018 2017
—e-N% —T— %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Finance income — interest income on AERA — FEWAKE
— bank deposits — RITER 4,265 3,668
— loans to an associate (Note 34(a)) — BT HEBERR
(P 5E34(a) ) — 4,533
— promissory notes — A AR EE 3,077 3,145
R R 7342 NN
Finance costs Bh & B AR
— interest expense on bank borrowings — $RIT{E KT B X (10,149) (8,668)
— other interest expense — HEmFEHALX (454) —
R A (10603) | (8,668)
Finance (cost)/income, net BE(RA) WA FE (3.261) 2,678
Income tax expense 27 FIEBHAX
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax BN ERFT 15 %%
— Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) — BB HEH (M @) 8,663 16,164
— PRC enterprise income tax (Note (b)) — FIE®EFEH (HEb)) 16,077 14,202
— Over-provision in prior years — REFEREEE (4,005) (58)
Withholding tax SCEik — 1,074
Deferred income tax (Note 21) IEEFT 1S R (P RE21) (6,668) (14,481)
14,067 16,901
ESEEERERAT - N\FFRK

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

27 Income tax expense (Continued) 27
Notes:
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% on the

estimated assessable profit up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of
estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

(b) The PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the PRC tax laws and
regulations. The standard PRC enterprise income tax rate is 25% during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, a subsidiary of the
Group, Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion Co. Ltd., is qualified for a preferential income
tax rate of 15% under the tax breaks to small and micro business. The
remaining PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to standard PRC enterprise
income tax rate of 25%.

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

Fri8 B X (&)
B

(a) BE-Z—\E+-A=1+—HILFEE sl
JE &R Bt % 7 7 #8 382,000,000/ T 1 & © & F
1SR LARE R8.25% 1 4 - T ot 1k 5+ PR RR B i
F 8 382,000,00078 JT LA E Y ERIE D M - BA
T E16.5%{E H &1 -

BE-ZT—tF+-_A=+—RILFE FEFH
15 B T 12 1k 5 B8 AR Bl i I A % %16.5% 1 (B¢
o

(b) B P AS AR Ty B R TE AR B S A B ST A BT B
REIRPERE R AR T EOET R Rt E o
REE-T-—N\ER-F—+tHF+=-A=+—
BILEE  ZENTECEMEHBERA25% -

RBE_Z-NFR-F—tF+-_A=+—
BIESFE - REBE— R B QRN EH 2
BRARBREBENHCENRFEEEMEERE
BI5%MEBAEHBE - AR F R T & B
B 2R3 LA25% KO R AE R B 1 3 PR AS B A R A
B o

A 55 1B 5L BR P 1S T BTDAE B 2 5 TR B 1R AR 4R

EERZENER 2 MEFOVEFEZ
BERRAERDT :

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Profit before income tax Fk BT 15 B4 A0 = 51 41,275 157,348
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates RERERREMER 24
applicable to profits in the respective MEFTE 2 BIE
jurisdictions 8,376 39,296
Income not subject to tax BERB 2 BA (944) (21,964)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ) A AR ERZ HIBEIE
losses (6,472) (13,676)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes “~Al #1772 Bl &2 6,384 5,189
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (4,005) (58)
Tax losses not recognised RERZHIEEE 10,728 7,040
Withholding tax TEH B — 1,074
Income tax expense S fHAx 14,067 16,901
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Income tax expense (Continued) 27 FiBHEAX(E)
The tax charge relation to components of other comprehensive Ht2mBA (BB ERTH Z2FHEX
income/(loss) is as follows: T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Before tax Tax After tax Before tax Tax After tax
BR B A B\ BB & B &L A BiIE B i 12
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FHEIT FHET FHET
Currency translation BEHmEZER
differences (144,098) — (144,098) 172,314 = 172,314
Fair value gains on B AWK L
transfers of owner- ERAEER
occupied properties REMHEZ
and land use rights to A F{EY
investment properties (P 7E65%8)
(Notes 6 and 8) 276,851 (69,213) 207,638 22,603 (5,651) 16,952
Release of exchange T8 — A B
reserve to profit or loss 73 &) 1% 2% Hi [E
upon deregistration of X {#E#E =18
an associate — — — (20,278) = (20,278)
Other comprehensive H2EEA
income/(loss) (E518) 132,753 (69,213) 63,540 174,639 (5,651) 168,988
Deferred tax (Note 21) iR IA
(Mt &E21) (69,213) (5,651)
ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR
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28 Expenses by nature 28 BEoBEZHX
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&ET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 6D B

— Audit services — BZR 3,300 3,300

— Non-audit services — EBEZR 500 500
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 8) = i {# F 42 % &4 (Bt £8) 1,546 4,733
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) 2 & & # 8 (i 5£12) 2,442 3,903
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WE REETE (T5E6)

equipment (Note 6) 96,151 97,306
Employee benefit expenses (including RERFAZ(BREEEMS)

directors’ emolument) (Note 29) (Fft 5£29) 537,969 536,161
Changes in inventories of finished goods R MEERRFEE

and work in progress 89,853 (238,386)
Raw materials and consumables used EFEREM R & FE R 897,563 1,240,700
Processing and subcontracting charges MIkSBER 353,021 263,186
Direct operating expenses arising from EXRSWARENEZEE

investment properties that generate EEMX

rental income 316 273
Operating lease rental in respect of M BERERE2KEHEE

property, plant and equipment itk 18,449 22,757
Provision for impairment of receivables W FRIBERERE — F8

— net — 13,915
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE(MHE13)

(Note 13) 30,441 59,215
Others Hm 248,840 252,475
Total cost of sales, selling, marketing and $E&EMKA « $HE LD H

distribution costs and administrative B AN DA R AT I 2 B RE

expenses 2,280,391 2,260,038
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Employee benefit expenses (including 29 EERABXX(BIEESMH
directors’ emoluments) )

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Salaries, wages and bonuses e ITEARELA 457,745 460,762

Pension costs — defined contribution BIKE KA — F 88 RE S

plans (Note) (B 7E) 59,045 56,180

Staff welfare BIT@&EH 21,179 19,219

537,969 536,161

Note:

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute a minimum of 26.6% (2017:
28.4%) of employees’ basic salary to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The Group has also established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per month.

(@) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2017: four) directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2017: one) individual during the year
are as follows:

G

AEETEMBARZEEA2ERERTRNEE R
B2 ERGATUR ARG B o A% E D BB AR &ER
BREELH©2266% (ZF— 5 : 28.4% ) Mkt &IH
R REEZRAKBFERE -

AEETREBRTBHMEARSF S (MRE S
B BHEHABIEEMBUGREARE - AKER
BEVASAREERBBAZSHIELH®A - ERAS

% 1E 81,5008 7T °

(a) EEESHFMAL
AEEFARSFMIABZALE
RARRMNEER(ZE—tF: 0
£) - A& R 3625 2 DT
NRER-FR - BNBHT —RAL
(ZF—tF:—R) MW T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx T

Basic salaries, housing allowances and EA#H 4 - EEEE &
other allowances H b2 AL 871 1,446
Contributions to pension plans RIKNE T &It 18 18
Discretionary bonuses WETEAL 350 400
1,239 1,864

ZELEEERERAT —ZT—N\FFR
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29 Employee benefit expenses (including

31

directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BERMNE (BEREEMH

&)(
(a)

&)

TEBEEHM AL (FH)
BTIIMEEE 2 ABIT

Number of individuals
AH

2018
—2-N\%

2017
—E—+tF

&
1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,0007%8 7T
1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T

Emolument band
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

30 Earnings per share 30 ERER

(@) The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the (@) ERELABFNDBIEARDGRER
Group's profit attributable to equity holders of the A A JE(E 7R £ 8 & F)4921,045,000%
Company of approximately HK$21,045,000 (2017: T (= F — 4+ 4 : 149,689,000/% 7T)
HK$149,689,000) and weighted average number of ordinary RERNDRITE BT NEFEHSH
shares in issue during the year of 2,099,818,000 (2017: 2,099,818,0000% (— T — + £ :
2,099,818,000). 2,099,818,0000%) 5+ & -

(b)  Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the (b) ERREEEF T ERAA S S
weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume R H s . ABIET BTG 2
conversion of all dilutive potential shares. MEH e mRtE .

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there HE—" T NER—"ZE—+E+—

were no dilutive potential ordinary shares deemed to be BE=+—BILEE BESESET

issued under the share option scheme as there are no 1515 B RS RE St 2 B8 4T (T () B 1E 8

outstanding options as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. TR BEEER S —\E8—
T—tFF A=+ —BHEHRK
1T {68 ) 8 FSCHEE ©

Dividends 31 kKE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THETT
Interim dividend, Nil (2017: HK1.41 cents EFRHRE (ZT— 4 :

per ordinary share) B 0% T3 A% .41 L) — 29,607

Interim special dividend, Nil (2017: HK0.56 R HARERIR B (Z T —+EF ¢
cent per ordinary share) 5% & 8 1R0.567 1) — 11,759
— 41,366

At a meeting held on 22 March 2019, the directors did not
propose any special dividend or final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

RERERERRME

32 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32

flows
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from (a) KEHHNELCEMBHES FHEE
operations is as follows: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&ET
Operating profit £ Al 48,993 158,093
Adjustments for: FE
— Depreciation of property, plant — ¥ BERRETE
and equipment 96,151 97,306
— Amortisation of land use rights — - AR 8 1,546 4,733
— Amortisation of intangible assets — — 7 & # 85 6,698 7,635
— Reversal of impairment loss on — BERT—HEEQRZ
loans to an associate VRN SRk — (41,135)
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, — HEME - BE K& HE
plant and equipment BB (k) 3,959 (3,902)
— Gain on requisition and demoliton — #1% « BB MR E UK
of property, plant and T RERA R
equipment and land use rights B Y z= (27,071) —
— Net fair value loss/(gain) on FVPL — R AFEFIRAEBZF R
FPREZEREEZ
REEEE ()
R 3,822 (10,429)
— Fair value gains on investment — BEWE 2 AT ERZE
properties (4,133) (2,186)
— Provision for impairment of — FEREREE
inventories 30,441 59,215
— Impairment losses on financial — eBMEEREERE
assets 19,025 —
— Provision for impairment of — EWHRIEREEE
receivables — net — F8 — 13,915
— Impairment loss on goodwill — HEREEE 4,930 —
— Elimination of profits from — HE TR Z % A
downstream transactions 1,183 —
Changes in working capital: LEES 2B
— Inventories — FE (127,292) (221,722)
— Trade and other receivables — BB SRR KR EAm
Ji& W 3R IR (90,145) (138,343)
— FVPL — BRAFEIRERESER
TREBEZERMEE (77) 8,603
— Trade and other payables — ERNBSERREAM
J& 1~ /38 36,663 93,059
Net cash generated from operations &L & FT1S 3 € F 58 4,693 24,842

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

32 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32 ZESBHEHREHRERMT (&)
flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (b) MREABEEREFEAN HEYWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: 5 K222 1S A E B4
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Net book amounts BREFE 11,293 4,278
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEWME  WERKH
plant and equipment (Note 25) (EB8) s (M E25) (3.959) 3,902
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BE M & E
plant and equipment Fr 15 ;I8 7,334 8,180
(c) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, compensation (c) REEREREHREAN BHEHG
from local government’s requisition and demolition of BRARFRYE BERZENLR
property, plant and equipment and land use rights THERAENBES R
comprise:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net book amounts BREFE 13,278 —
Gain on requisition and demolition of 1% - &= K& & & A & T
property, plant and equipment and  f& B & A K AT W
land use rights (Note 25) (H$37E25) 27,071 —
Compensation from requisition and M- BEREEBEAR T
demolition of property, plant and ERAEMARFREES
equipment and land use rights 40,349 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M W& M
32 Net cash generated from operations 32 ZRERERERKRMET (E)
(Continued)
(d) Net debt reconciliation (d) EEFHEYR
This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising REHI N EREFEREETBDE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. EZBEHEK-
Dividend
payable Borrowings Total
BT RE &= 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHA& T FHA T FHAT
At 1 January 2017 R=—F—+tF—HF—H — 283,066 283,066
Non-cash — dividends declared FBRe —BEERKRE 59,214 — 59,214
Cash flows ReEnE (59,214) (39,354) (98,568)
Exchange differences e N =5 = 3,559 3,559
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=—A=+—8~ = 247,271 247,271
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF—H—H — 247,271 247,271
Cash flows REnE — 122,571 122,571
Exchange differences bE 3 =58 — (2,785) (2,785)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—N\%F
+ZA=+— — 367,057 367,057
33 Commitments 33 &IE
(a) Capital commitment (a) EBEAXREE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following RZE-—NF+_A=+—HB K
capital commitments: SEBEAUNTERKE:
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted but not provided for: EHEEE -
— Property, plant and equipment — M- BEREZE 34,721 —
— Investment in Hangzhou Weiding ~ — R/ i 8 8 1% & 11,387 —
46,108 —

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

33 Commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

As lessee

The Group leases various retail outlets, offices, warehouses
and plant and equipment under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation
claims and renewal rights.

The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases
are calculated at a certain percentage of sales of the
respective retail outlets or at the higher of the minimum
commitments and the amounts determined based on a
percentage of the sales of the related outlets.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

33 &IE(4E)

(b)

KEHERE

ERABA
AEBREBEIAHBEL2MEE HH
HEAZEZEE PAE BEREUR
BE Rt EHEZFEH M
BREOESAETR -

ETREMECERNRNDRES
EEHEHEZETEDOLE &
NREAEEREAERAAEER
ZE-—BAOUFEESHEMEZR
SEE -

REFATHHELEHER RN 2
REBEFIEABEMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FH&ET
Land and buildings T R EF
— No later than 1 year — TEB1F 14,975 15,230
— Later than 1 year and no later — BEIFETBBSE
than 5 years 7,485 8,528
22,460 23,758
Property, plant and equipment M BE k&
— No later than 1 year — NHEBIF 78 99
— Later than 1 year and no later — BEIFETBBSF
than 5 years 254 257
332 356
Total 3 22,792 24,114
As lessor fERH A

The Group leases offices, dormitories and plant under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms between 1 and 5 years, escalation claims and
renewal rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

As lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

RA SR M

33 &IE(E)

(b) HEHREHREGE

1ER M A ()

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H &K
SERBERATFHE A2 TAR
HE2HEZ REAKEHERAK

NI
2018 2017
—®-N%F —E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
— No later than 1 year — THB1F 17,326 13,098
— Later than 1 year and no later — BEIFETBBSE
than 5 years 45,215 18,422
62,541 31,520

34 Significant related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Longerview Investments Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), which owns 71% of
the Company’s shares. The remaining 29% of the shares are
widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Longerview
Investments Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

The directors are of the view that the following companies are
related parties of the Group:

Name Relationship with the Group

Huasheng Accessories An associate
China Ting Property

Hangzhou Ranyue

An associate
An associate
A joint venture
A joint venture

Ting Camuto
Hangzhou Weiding

The name of Huasheng Accessories, China Ting Property,
Hangzhou Ranyue and Hangzhou Weiding referred to in the
above represents management’s best efforts at translating the
Chinese name of these companies as no English name has been
registered or available.

3 EXRBERIRS

7N £2 B Alongerview Investments Limited
(REBE RS EMB ) FriEhl - HiF
BARABN%Z B - 8T 229% P& {7 H
ARBERABE-AEB2HEKRERAAR
Longerview Investments Limited (7 % &8 &
RESFEMK L) ©

BEERRTINRBAAAEE ZET -

=g HEALEEZBER
Edng Rl Bk & 1 A)
05 i E /NG|
M e 15 Bk & 1 A)
Ting Camuto SN
A0 R aERAE

HREREL FERFHE MMBHE
UM E R BB R A R AR
BANEBLEEERENBDEERXEH
s e

ESEEERARRAE —T-NA\FFR
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A B RS IR & MY T

34 Significant related party transactions 3 EXBELRS (E)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHBEERETZRE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RKRABEERR TXZRFGTIR
transactions below were conducted in the ordinary and HEREEXEBBAEPET Mt
usual course of business and the pricing of these ER 5 2 EERIB R A & [ 5 EE &
transactions was determined based on mutual negotiation 7 EARTER R EE o

and agreement between the Group and the related parties.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHIT
Purchases of accessories [ 3 B B R BR B k)
from Huasheng Accessories 7.114 6,710
Sales of garments to Hangzhou Ranyue [\ 47 1 £ 1% $5 & X %% 153,288 7,285
Sales of garments to Hangzhou M) 70 M ME S 88 R 2K
Weiding 18,163 —
Interest income from China Ting REESEHEZFSWA
Property — 4,533
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEEZHRM
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short-term employee % & & £ b 52 53 (& 8 & 7|
benefits 12,993 16,715
Post-employment benefits R K48 F 116 99
13,109 16,814
(c) Year-end balances with related parties () BREEFZFRER
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Receivable from a joint venture FEUR A & A R A 3,749 4,134
Receivables from associates JiE Us B 8 N B FR OB 41,900 11,092
Payables to associates JE < Bt & X B R IA 1,203 1,045
Payable to a joint venture FENA &R RIRIE 66 —
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RA B RS R & MY AT

34 Significant related party transactions

35

(Continued)

(c) Year-end balances with related parties

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their

fair values.

The amounts due from/to related parties were denominated

in RMB.

Balance sheet and reserve movement of

3 EXBELXRS (#)

() EBREERZFREERE

WEESRZREEEE N TEERS -

FE U, 1+ 8 32
@

77 RIE A ARG

35 ARAICEEEEREREE

the Company 2E
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —ET—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARZEE 1,218,446 1,218,636
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Uz it BB 2 & 7% 18 535,101 533,366
Other receivables and H fth & Y I8 R TE S 5RIE
prepayments 360 297
Cash and bank balances Re RBITER 326 3,147
535,787 536,810
Total assets EEHAE 1,754,233 1,755,446
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity XA A REIFHE AELER
holders of the Company
Share capital A& A 209,982 209,982
Reserves & (a) 1,541,615 1,542,609
Total equity EREE 1,751,597 1,752,591
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities HEBEE
Other payables and accruals ~ HhEMRBREE A 2,636 2,855
Total equity and liabilities EZRAEHAE 1,754,233 1,755,446

EREEERERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS IR & MY T

35 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 35 AQFZEEEEBREGEHE

- =
the Company (Continued) 25 (&)
Note: Bt 3
(a) Reserve mo t of the Company (a) ARBZHERD
Other Retained
reserve earnings Total
Hip ks REBBA M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+t&—HF—H 1,455,617 145,217 1,600,834
Profit for the year F P F — 989 989
2016 final dividend —E-RERBAERE — (17,848) (17,848)
2017 interim and special dividend —Z -t FHHRERRE — (41,366) (41,366)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZZT—+&+=-A=+—8 1,455,617 86,992 1,542,609
At 1 January 2018 R=F—-N\F—A—H 1,455,617 86,992 1,542,609
Loss for the year FRNEER - (994) (994)
At 31 December 2018 R=F-NF+=-R=+—8 1,455,617 85,998 1,541,615
. . . = 2L
36 Benefits and interests of directors 36 EECEANKRER
The remuneration of each director of the Company paid or AEEBENNENAARSTES 2 H
payable by the Group is set out below: T
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE_ZT-\F+_A=T—RHILFE:
Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing to pension
Name Fees  Basic salary bonus benefit allowances plans Total
Hi B R Bike
%A ik EXFe WL fHAeBEE EEEE STEIMR st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER TER TER
Ting Man Yi T&SR - 3,000 - - - 18 3,018
Ding Jianer TER - 2,130 - - - 18 2,148
Ting Hung Yi (Chief TR (7TEA4E#)

Executive Officer) - 3,000 - - - 18 3,018
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter REE — 1,495 — — — 18 1,513
Cheng Chi Pang Bt 240 — — — — — 240
Wong Chi Keung B2 360 - - - - - 360
Leung Man Kit ARG 240 - - - - - 240

840 9,625 — — — 72 10,537
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Benefits and interests of directors

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R & MY AT

36 EE2REANRER (F)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: HE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE:
Estimated
Discretionary money value of Housing Contributions to
Name Fees Basic salary bonus  other benefit allowances  pension plans Total
H it 3 A BRE
4 ik EXEHE BEEL it eBEE FERE STEIER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTET FTHET FTET THET FTET THET
Ting Man Vi THS = 3,000 400 — — 18 3418
Ding Jianer TES = 2,130 200 - = 18 2348
Ting Hung Yi (Chief TR (/7B 4E3)

Executive Officer) = 3,000 400 = = 18 3,418
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter RTE & = 1,450 700 = = 18 2,168
Cheng Chi Pang B8 240 = = = = — 240
Wong Chi Keung 2R 360 = = = = = 360
Leung Man Kit 2RHG 240 = = = = — 240

840 9,580 1,700 - - 72 12,192
During the year, no emoluments, no retirement benefits, payments FA-BMERKELEERGEMEESFEE
or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were MEEFEX i TEAMME  RAKEF -
paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any NREEF  TMEEMENRE(ZZT—+
payable (2017: Nil). No consideration was provided to or FE) BESEREERENAE=H
receivable by third parties for making available directors’ services REIENE=FEAREBE(CCZT—LF:
(2017: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in m) o MEAES  HIZHEAB REEEE
favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and FaEMmal L2 ER BEERIEMR S (=
connected entities (2017: None). T—tF &\ o
No director of the Company had a material interest, directly or MEARNAEERERNRAIEKERAZE
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and MEARG THREAPEEZXIEER
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the EERED MARAELEKIBERTD
Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year FERERSIFAEMRFEFE( T —+
or at any time during the year (2017: None). FomE) e
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Five-year Financial Summary
REMBHE

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—/\&F+=-A=+—H

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non- AEEBEBERESRFELEHNEENREE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set B{E & IEfE I MEREEIEH LT -

out below.
For the financial years ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+T—HLHBEFE
(Amounts expressed in HK$’000, unless specified)
(BREEEBNH 2UTBTES)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
TN ZTE-HF ZE—R"E ZZT—tF | ZE-N\F
Revenue HEE 2,539,001 2,386,175 2,151,522 2,335,429 2,274,818
Cost of sales $HE B AR (1,808,136)  (1,691,292)  (1,500,291)  (1,670,143) | (1,711,636)
Gross profit EF 730,865 694,883 651,231 665,286 563,182
Other income H e A 22,977 23,334 12,704 29,267 21,476
Other (losses)/gains, net Hit (B518) a8 (240,115) (109,737) 43,891 53,435 52,115
Selling, marketing and HE BHEK
distribution costs o KA (334,752) (311,591) (278,655) (277,417) (258,431)
Administrative expenses THAX (318,130) (309,935) (304,840) (312,478) (310,324)
Net impairment loss provided for & B & E T 18 7R &
financial assets BEREEFE = = = = (19,025)
Operating profit/(loss) mEwA (BE) (139,155) (13,046) 124,331 158,093 48,993
Finance income/(costs), net BMEWA (RA)FHE 26,793 18,656 1,314 2,678 (3,261)
Share of profit/(losses) of DI E R EDEF
associates (B#) (131,619) 11 (141) (632) 146
Share of (losses)/profits SEEERE(ER)
of joint ventures ikl (2,943) (5,057) (5,088) (2,791) (4,603)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEB AR (FE) (246,924) 564 120,416 157,348 41,275
Income tax expense FiaHi X (42,367) (41,697) (39,084) (16,901) (14,067)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB J5H (289,291) (41,133) 81,332 140,447 27,208
Non-controlling interests FEE 1 = 8,363 2,035 495 9,242 (6,163)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR RIBREZFE A
holders of the Company e (B518) /A (280,928) (39,098) 81,827 149,689 21,045
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As at 31 December 2018

Five-year Financial Summary
EEMBHE

R=ZF—-N\F+=A=+—AH

As at 31 December
R+=RA=t+—-H
(Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)
(BREBEBN 2UTET25)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T—NFE —TE—HF —ZT—RE —ZT—+F | ZE-N\E
Non-current Assets FERBEE 1,282,065 1,104,284 971,559 870,359 1,030,889
Current Assets BB E 2,333,726 2,307,498 2,222,989 2,668,188 2,788,853
Total Assets EEHE 3,615,791 3,411,782 3,194,548 3,538,547 3,819,742
Non-current Liabilities FERBAE 12,959 12,738 13,861 21,752 83,136
Current Liabilities mEBAE 1,041,435 996,264 881,647 967,534 1,096,597
Total Liabilities BEHE 1,054,394 1,009,002 895,508 989,286 1,179,733
Total Equity EEAE 2,561,397 2,402,780 2,299,040 2,549,261 2,640,009
Net Current Assets REBEEZRE 1,292,291 1,311,234 1,341,342 1,700,654 1,692,256
Total Assets Less Current BEBER
Liabilities mEaE 2,574,356 2,415,518 2,312,901 2,571,013 2,723,145
EREEERAERAT —ZT—N\FERH
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Schedule of Principal Investment Properties

TEREVER

Approximate

Gross Floor Area Group'’s
Particulars (Square meters) Lease Term Usage interest (%)
BRBEEEEE AEBEHER
B (FFK) HHE A% (%)
Block 1, No. 18 Wu Zhou Road, 33,172.9 Medium term Industrial 100%
Yun He lJie Dao,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RBHIA T I%¥
BN T BRI [
EEE
M BE 1857 1%
Factory complex at No. 195 Xin Tian Road, 52,395.91 Medium term Industrial 100%
Yuhang Economic Development Zone,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
BT A h Af T
FUN T BRI [
BRI AS B B 3 2
TRIE1955% R B 4x & B8
Flat G—J, 4/F. with portion of flat roof, 315.4 Medium term Commercial 100%
Lladro Center,
Nos. 72-80 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 87
EENEEE HHA [SES

IR 38 5572-805%

i B AL
AEGIE(EEMETERS)
(BR ¥ A 3 ER875%)
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